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Directors’ Profile
EE/GIT

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung, aged 54, is Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Shum is responsible for the formulation and implementation of
corporate policies and strategies. Mr. Shum has over 20 years
of experience in international trading and investment in China.

Shum Chun, Lawrence, aged 34, is Managing Director of the
Company since 2009. Mr. Shum graduated from the University
of Saskatchewan with a degree in Bachelor of Arts, majoring
in Economics. Prior to joining the Company in 2004, Mr.
Shum has pursued a career in finance and accountancy in an
international accounting firm. He is the son of Mr. Shum Siu
Hung.

Cen Ziniu, aged 44, graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University and has been involved in trading businesses in
Hong Kong and China, holding senior managerial positions.
Mr. Cen has extensive experience in dealership management,
business formation and marketing. He is responsible for
market development of the Group and overseas operations.
He is a cousin of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond, aged 54, has been executive
director and head of the Group’s liquefied petroleum gas
operations since August 2003 and is now in charge of liquefied
petroleum gas operations in China and worldwide. Prior to
joining the Company Mr. Chiu had over 20 years’ experience
in banking and management. He has been involved in the
financing and supervision of business projects in China since
the late 1980’'s and was in charge of the management and
control of a wide range of projects.

Siu Ka Fai, Brian, aged 50, graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts degree.
He conducted a further course of study in real estate at the
University of British Columbia in Canada and then had over
20 years experience in the investment and real estate field,
working with various reputable companies in Hong Kong and
China. Mr. Siu joined the Group in 2005 and is currently in
charge of the Group’s purchasing and re-export operations.
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Directors’ Profile
EE/GIT

Wang Jian, aged 33, graduated from Guangzhou Jinan
University with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics and a
Master’s Degree in Finance. Prior to joining the Group in 2008,
Mr. Wang was engaged by a major bank in Mainland China
and worked in its banking business department.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony, aged 61, has been
independent non-executive director since August 2001.
Mr. Cheung is an associate member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheung graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly: the Hong
Kong Polytechnic) with a higher diploma in Accountancy. Mr.
Cheung has over 30 years of experience in account, finance
and investment banking profession specializing in equity/
debt fund raising, mergers and acquisition and corporate
restructuring before working with publicly listed companies
undertaking corporate management, planning and strategies
development functions. Mr. Cheung is an independent non-
executive director of PetroAsian Energy Holdings Limited,
Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited and Mobile
Telecom Network (Holdings) Limited, whose shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict, aged 54, has been independent
non-executive director since March 2006. Mr. Chan is a holder
of a Master of Science Degree in Applied Mechanics (Cranfield
Institute of Technology, U.K.) and a registered professional
engineer in Hong Kong and the U.K. Mr. Chan is the recipient
of the U.K. Institution of Mechanical Engineers Outstanding
Project Price Award, 1981. For the last 20 years, Mr. Chan
has taken up key management positions in engineering and
technology businesses in Hong Kong, ranging from pumping
equipment and control systems, mini-piling, and software and
hardware engineering businesses.
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Directors’ Profile
EE/GIT

Dr. Xu Mingshe, aged 57, was accredited a doctor’s degree
in economics by the Xiamen University. He graduated from the
Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Languages with a bachelor’s
degree in English, holds the title of Senior Economist, and
has over 20 years’ experience in the banking-finance field.
Since 1980, Dr. Xu has held in succession a series of position
in the top management level in banking sector in China, and
has been well connected in the finance and corporate sectors
both in China and overseas. Dr. Xu’s expertise includes public
listings, project financing, syndicated loan, debt restructuring
and merge and acquisition. He has taken part in a
considerable number of overseas listing of Chinese enterprises
and other major fund raising exercises. Dr. Xu was appointed
as independent non-executive director of the Company on 1
July, 2006 and an independent non-executive director of EPI
(Holdings) Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange)
from 2006 to 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement
FRBHE

On behalf of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the report on the audited
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012 to the
shareholders.

In 2012, the Group continued to achieve outstanding
performance and brilliant results. For the period, the Group
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$13.5 billion and a
net profit after tax of approximately HK$810 million including
the discontinued operation, representing an increase of
approximately 33.1% and 168.1% respectively as compared
with the same period of 2011. This is the second consecutive
year since 2011 that the Group has made remarkable
achievement with over two fold increase in profit.

For business expansion, the Group has successfully
commenced its marine bunkering business in Hong Kong in
May 2012, and recorded a turnover of more than HK$1 billion
in just 8 months. Our professional performance has also
gained market recognition in all respects.

South China is an energy market with strong demand. As
estimated by a major international oil company, energy
demand in South China accounts for over 2% of global
demand, surpassing the demand in most European countries.
Its great potential for development is predictable.

In view of such a large energy market, the Group is vigorously
developing its oil products and natural gas businesses apart
from continuously expanding its LPG retailing business in
South China. | am confident that with the efforts of all our
staff, the Group can become a leader in integrated energy
industry in South China in the near future, and create higher
economic benefits for the shareholders.

The Company recommends a final dividend for 2012 of HK3.8
cents per share.

As our business continues to grow, | take this opportunity to
express on behalf of the Board the appreciation we have to
our staff for their dedication, hard work and contribution to the
success of the Group in the past year.

Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE ZaTwm AT

In 2012, the Group’s Liquefied Petroleum Gas (“LPG”)
business continued to expand into the downstream market.
The acquisition of Guangzhou autogas refueling project was
fully completed in January 2012. During the year, the business
of Lianxin Energy Development Limited (“Lianxin Energy”)
17 autogas refueling stations was fully consolidated into
the Group’s accounts. As a result, the Group made another
remarkable achievement with substantial profit increase. In
addition, the Group has started to provide marine bunkering
service in Hong Kong since May 2012. A customer base
of certain size is expected to be established before the
completion of Zhuhai oil storage depot construction works,
ensuring a considerable turnover rate upon commencement
of operation of the oil storage depot, for the oil products
business to lower its operation costs and increase its
profitability.

Based on the strategies set in 2011, the Group will still focus
on the diversified business development in South China in
the near future. In view of such a large energy market, the
Group is vigorously developing its oil products and natural gas
businesses apart from continuously expanding its LPG retailing
business, to promote the Group to become one of the major
suppliers of energy products in South China.

1. Group Overall Performance

In 2012, by including the discontinued operation, the
Group recorded a total turnover of approximately
HK$13,462,296,000, representing an increase of
33.1% as compared with the total turnover in 2011 of
approximately HK$10,116,643,000. Profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company for the period was
approximately HK$810,934,000, representing an increase
of 164.9% as compared with the profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company for the same period
of 2011 of approximately HK$306,159,000. The total
turnover and profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year 2012 from the continuing operation
is approximately HK$12,456,376,000 and approximately
HK$426,617,000, representing an increase of 23.1%
and 39.3% respectively as compared to that of 2011.
The Company did not conduct any equity fund raising
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activities in 2012. As of 31 December 2012, the Company
had an issued share capital of 1,305,853,374 shares (at
the end of 2011: 1,305,853,374 shares). Basic earnings
per share for 2012 was HK62.1 cents, representing a
leap of 164.9% as compared with the basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2011 of HK23.45
cents. The basic earnings from the continuing operation
is HK82.67 cents for the year 2012, representing an
increase of 39.3% comparing to that of 2011.

1.1 Segment Performance
LPG Business

LPG sales volume of the Group for 2012 amounted
to about 1,676,000 tons, representing an increase
of 15.6% as compared with about 1,450,000 tons
for the same period of 2011. The average LPG
market price in 2012 was around 10% higher than
that in 2011, driving the turnover for the year up
by 26.1% to approximately HK$11.57 billion (Same
period of 2011: approximately HK$9.17 billion). Due
to the marked rise in the Group’s turnover brought
about by the introduction of the oil products
business, despite the substantial increase in LPG
turnover, its contribution to the Group’s total
turnover fell to about 85.9% (Same period of 2011:
about 90.7%).

Based on the calculation that, in the view of the
management, can reflect actual LPG gross profit
more precisely (i.e. incorporation of net foreign
exchange gain or loss arising from financial
matching arrangements into LPG purchase costs),
the LPG gross profit for the 2012, 2011 and 2010
was roughly HK$923 million, HK$557 million and
HK$434 million respectively.
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The gross margin of LPG business for 2012
increased to 8.0% from 6.1% for 2011, mainly
driven by the new autogas refueling business
and the significant increase in sales to industrial
customers. The Group has prepared to expand
into the downstream market to increase the gross
margin of LPG business since 2009. The efforts
made in the past few years have obviously achieved
results. We believe that the gross profit margin of
LPG business will further improve as the Group
opens up more high-margin markets.

Qil Products Business

The Group has started to provide marine bunkering
service to vessels in Hong Kong harbour and
neighbouring waters since May 2012. In just 8
months, the Group supplied fuel oil of about
200,000 tons, and recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$1,005,920,000 and a gross
profit of approximately HK$38,704,000 (Gross profit
margin: 3.9%).

The Group’s marine bunkering business in Hong
Kong has its strategic significance. The Group’s oil
storage depot in Zhuhai is expected to commence
operation in the second half of 2013. In the future,
the oil products business in Zhuhai is expected to
be one of the major core businesses of the Group.
Therefore, the Group has early in 2012 established
a non-wholly-owned project company in Hong Kong
as a business spearhead to test the market space
of marine fuel oil in Hong Kong. During the year,
the project company fully served its purpose as a
ground breaker by entering the Hong Kong market
successfully and establishing marine bunkering
business channels. The marine bunkering business
in Hong Kong not only generated additional income
to the Group in the year, but also built a business
network outside of mainland China which the Zhuhai
oil storage depot can tap into in addition to its local
clientele. Upon commencement of operation, Zhuhai
oil storage depot can privet on the enlarged network
to increase its business volume and enhance its
operation efficiency.
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As the project company has served its purpose
as a ground breaker for the oil products business,
the Group seized an investment opportunity to
dispose of its 51% interest in the project company
to a third party, and retained its remaining 49%
interest, so that the project company can continue
to provide support to the Zhuhai oil storage depot.
Details of the transaction have been announced by
the Company on 5 September 2012. The disposal
and related investment matters were completed
in December 2012, and generated a gain of
approximately HK$376,277,000 to the Group.

Despite the short history of the oil products
business, its turnover has accounted for 7.5% of
the Group’s total turnover in 2012. The oil products
business has become another key development
area of the Group in the future. We believe that its
proportion of the total turnover will grow rapidly,
and its contribution to the Group’s profit will also
continue to increase.

Electronics Business

In 2012, the Group continued to adopt the same
business model with Thailand as the major market
in its operation of trading mobile phones and
electronics components (“Electronics”). In line with
the Group’s policy of focusing on principal operation
of energy products development, the trading volume
of Electronics business has decreased year on
year. Turnover of Electronics business for 2012
was approximately HK$886,410,000 as compared
with the turnover for the same period of 2011 of
approximately HK$941,715,000, representing a
decrease of 5.9%. Its contribution to the Group’s
total turnover also fell from about 9.3% for the
same period of 2011 to 6.6% for 2012. However,
gross profit of Electronics business for the period
rebounded to approximately HK$88,000,000 (Same
period of 2011: approximately HK$62,102,000).
Gross profit margin also rose from 6.6% in 2011 to
9.9% in 2012.
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1.2 Operating Cost Control 1.2 EERFEH

Finance Costs

In 2012, the Group’s finance costs including
discontinued operations amounted to about HK$287
million, representing a significant increase of about
40.0% as compared with that of about HK$205
million for the same period of 2011. The significant
increase in finance costs was attributable to: (1)
high effective interest rate for RMB borrowings in
the PRC during the period, and increased lending
spread by overseas banks, leading to a substantial
increase in effective interest rate paid for USD loans
as compared with the same period last year; and (2)
significant increase in credit sales to bus companies
upon the consolidation of Guangzhou autogas
refueling station business, and significant increase
in credit sales to industrial customers during
the period, leading to considerable increase in
receivables. As a result, the Group had to increase
its short-term RMB loans to meet its new liquid
funds requirement.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses
including the discontinued operation for 2012
amounted to approximately HK$240 million,
representing an increase of about 142.6% as
compared with that for 2011 of approximately
HK$99.28 million. The significant increase in selling
and distribution expenses was primarily attributable
to the consolidation of Lianxin Energy’s accounts.
Most operating expenses of Lianxin Energy arose
from wages of gas station staff, LPG transportation
cost and warehouse rental, depreciation charge
for tools and equipment, and rent of lands on
which autogas refueling stations are located. In
2012, these expenses amounted to nearly HK$70
million in total, accounting for around 49.4% of the
increased selling and distribution expenses. Such
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expenses were the major reason for the surge in
selling and distribution expenses in 2012. After
a year of operation, the selling and distribution
expenses of Guangzhou autogas refueling business
have basically stabilized. Such surge in expenses is
less likely in the future.

Administrative Expenses

The total administrative expenses of the Group
including the discontinued operation for 2012
amounted to approximately HK$217 million,
representing an increase of 19.7% as compared
with that for the same period of 2011 of
approximately HK$181 million. A number of
executive management staff were employed for the
new autogas refueling business and oil products
business in 2012 to ensure their safe and smooth
operation. Amongst all the administrative expenses
items, emolument of management staff, rent for
office premises, amortization of land and travel
expenses therefore increased significantly by
approximately HK$16 million, accounting for around
44.8% of the increased administrative expenses.
As both LPG business and oil products business
of the Group are still under rapid development,
administrative expenses including wages, preliminary
expenses and professional fees will continue to
increase moderately.
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1.3 Performance Conclusion 1.3 ¥EEEE

The overall operation in 2012 shows clearly the
development plan of the Group to become a major
supplier of energy products in the region. The LPG
business has obviously attained a considerable
scale of operation, and has entered the harvest
cycle, contributing remarkable profit to the Group.
With strong momentum, the newly established oil
products business is expected to exhibit faster
growth than the LPG business. It is a reasonable
expectation that the sales volume of oil products
business would surpass that of LPG business in the
next few years, and generate enormous profit to the
Group.

Included in the profit attributable to equity holders
for 2012 of approximately HK$811 million was profit
of the discontinued operations and gain on disposal
of the discontinued operations (approximately
HK$384 million). After excluding this non-recurring
income item, the recurring profit of the Group from
ordinary operation in 2012 will be around HK$427
million, representing an increase of around 39.3%
as compared with profit attributable to equity
holders for 2011 of approximately HK$306 million.
The leaps in profit clearly shows the great profit
potential of the downstream market.
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2. Conditions of the LPG Business 2. RILWEBKR
2.1 Market Condition 21 HGKR
Guangdong LPG Market BEREZIATE
Unit: thousand tons
. 2011
China domestic production HEBERNAESE 22,240 87.1% 21,860 86.5%
Import WOE 3,330 12.9% 3,410 13.5%
China total supply REEHES 25,730 100% 25,270 100%
China domestic consumption BB R EES 24,460 95.1% 24,100 95.4%
Export HOE 1,270 4.9% 1,170 4.6%
Total BmeE 25,730 100% 25,270 100%
Source: Guangdong Oil & Gas Association FF  BREHRES
Unit: thousand tons
. 2011
By . FIE “
15
Guangdong production EREANEES 2,350 41.8% 2,470 41.2%
Transfer from other provinces EREINAAE 1,050 18.7% 1,250 20.9%
Import HEO= 2,220 39.5% 2,270 37.9%
Guangdong total supply BRAHES 5,620 100% 5,990 100%
Guangdong consumption ERENERE 4,670 83.1% 5,090 85.0%
Export HAs 950 16.9% 900 15.0%
Total weE 5,620 100% 5,990 100%
Source: Guangdong Oil & Gas Association FR - BREHREE
Since 2012, the import tariff of LPG has further 2012Ff8  BILREN @B A 2%
reduced from 2% to 1%, lowering the import cost BETHAZ1%  EORKAFIE
to a certain extent. This shows that the government H—-FRRENRYE  BTRBNBE
intends to encourage the import of high quality LPG EEISIEEENRIERIEE R

and promote LPG application. RERZHER -
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Guangdong has always been the province with
the largest LPG demand in China and the widest
application of imported LPG. As a result of the
shift to new energy in certain part of household
market in recent years, the growth in LPG demand
in Guangdong has shown clear signs of slowdown,
with a negative growth of 6% in 2012. However, the
application of LPG as chemical feedstock has just
started in Guangdong. With the gradual completion
of some intensive processing facilities, the demand
of LPG (particularly high quality imported LPG) will
substantially increase. In addition, more vehicles and
factories are converting themselves from using oil to
gas as the fuel. We estimate that with these driving
forces, the overall LPG demand in Guangdong will
grow at 8% to 10% per annum.

Guangzhou Autogas Market

Guangzhou autogas market is a mature and
effectively-managed stable market. Since 2008,
its demand has maintained at 400,000 tons to
420,000 tons per annum. Currently, there are 38
autogas refueling stations in Guangzhou serving
about 8,000 buses and 20,000 taxies. Out of the 38
stations, Lianxin Energy owns 17, SHV China owns
11, Sino Gas owns 6, and each of the remaining
operators owns only one or two stations. The three
largest operators together own about 90% of all the
stations. As the retail pump price is regulated by the
government and adjustable monthly in accordance
with a price formula, and the provision of autogas
business is only permitted in designated areas,
hostile competition is unlikely to occur.

ERE —EHREARILRERKER
AME—EH  TE2FEREDR
ftREZTTLER&RZME D < i
FHRUEDRATSE EE A6
B BERARECENERERD
BRI T MEDSR - 20120 F
BB enMAE - NBREREEL
B RIERIEALETIRENAR
B REERBTEER - BB — LR
MIBEREEREK  RIER(EE
EEON - BENRLER)NER
BERBERA - IR BER K
MR T EFREIR I
o SRR A ERE R RA
BERENE8% — 10% B FIEK -

RN EME TS

M E pnm i 2 — B AT -
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2008 FF £ 5 (R £ & F 400,000 Mg
420,000 28 - 2T HAIHLE
38T E A UL - A KN 498,000
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O BEATRERERITE B
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BE - HRpEREEmREE— - =
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AR E MR T E BB BT
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2.2

2.3

LPG Purchase

The Group acquired about 1,676,000 tons of LPG
in total in 2012, representing an increase of about
15.6% as compared with that of about 1,450,000
tons in 2011. Imported gas sourced mainly from
the gas field in the Middle East amounted to about
926,000 tons in 2012, representing an increase
of 9.9% as compared with about 843,000 tons
in 2011. Domestic gas was sourced from the oil
refineries of Sinopec in Guangdong, Guangxi, Hunan
and Hubei, and included certain shipments from the
north. Total domestic purchase amounted to about
750,000 tons, representing an increase of 23.6%
as compared with about 607,000 tons in 2011. The
purchase ratio of imported gas and domestic gas
has changed slightly from 58:42 in 2011 to 55:45 in
2012.

LPG Sales

Wholesaling Business

The Group’s LPG wholesaling business continues
to cover mainly South China and neighboring cities
and countries. Its target customers include overseas
customers, local industrial customers, autogas
refueling operators, and other terminals and bottling
plants in the region. Total wholesaling volume
reached about 1,183,000 tons in 2012, representing
a seemingly slight decrease of about 4.1% as
compared with that of about 1,233,000 tons in the
same period of 2011. In fact, upon the completion
of acquisition of Lianxin Energy in January 2012,
the original wholesaling volume to Lianxin Energy
has been changed to downstream retail sales of
the Group in the period. Accordingly, excluding the
supply to Lianxin Energy, the actual wholesaling
volume in 2011 was only about 1,010,000 tons.
Compared with the wholesaling volume recorded in
2012, an effective increase of 17.1% was recorded
in 2012. Wholesaling business includes:

2.2

2.3
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Industrial Customers

The Group’s major customers include chemical
plants, aluminum mills, air-conditioner
manufacturers, lighter manufacturers, ceramic
factories, glass factories and automobile
manufacturers in the region. Sales to the local
industrial customers in 2012 amounted to about
578,000 tons, representing an increase of 33.2%
as compared with that in the same period of 2011
of about 434,000 tons. During the period, some
new chemical plants located in the coastal areas
of Guangdong have commenced production.
These factories use LPG as raw material in their
production process, and have strong demand for
high quality imported gas, driving the Group’s
wholesaling volume to the local industrial customers
directly. Besides, the Group continued to strengthen
its technical and financial supports to other factories
during the period. Through promoting the oil to
gas conversion campaign, the Group continued to
increase its sales to the industrial customers.

Autogas Operators

In 2012, the Group supplied a total of about
19,000 tons autogas to autogas operators in
Guangzhou and Wuhan, representing an increase
of approximately 18.8% as compared with the
supply of about 16,000 tons (excluding the supply
to Lianxin Energy) to autogas operators in 2011.
During the period, the Group successfully entered
into a contract with another autogas operator in
Guangzhou in relation to regular supply of gas to
the customer since May. This is the major reason
for the larger increase in autogas wholesaling
volume in 2012.

TEAF

FTERFBIERAMEIR - t571
MR - Z=FHRR - KRR - FIE R
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Overseas Customers

In 2012, annual sales to overseas customers
amounted to around 314,000 tons only,
representing a decrease of approximately 27.0%
as compared with about 430,000 tons in the same
period of 2011. Only about 180,000 tons of the
annual sales were transhipped to Hong Kong,
Macau, the Philippines and Vietnam through the
bonded warehouse in Zhuhai Terminal, while the
rest were shipped directly to the warehouses of the
customers in overseas terminals after loaded in their
shipping ports. Such business, which only generates
slight profit, has not been the key development
focus of the Group. However, the use of sales to
overseas customers to timely lower inventory is a
very effective way for the Group to mitigate price
fluctuation risk.

Other Terminals and Bottling Plants

As the largest LPG wholesaler in South China,
the Group is actually the source of supply for
other terminals and bottling plants in the region.
Since 2006, although the Group has targeted the
industrial customers and autogas operators as the
customers for its long term development, it has still
maintained supply to its counterparts in the region.
However, the Group has changed its focus to
domestic gas, and operated such business with the
determination of purchase by sales strategy, leading
to fluctuations in sales volume. Market demand was
weak in the first half of 2012, but increased rapidly
in the second half. Annual sales was approximately
272,000 tons, representing a jump of 109.2% as
compared with about 130,000 tons in the same
period of 2011,

BINEF

2012 B HBINEF 2
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Downstream Business b3 ¥ £
Bottled LPG TREERIER

Downstream business refers to sales of bottled
LPG conducted by the Group’s bottling plants. In
2012, the Group did not conduct any acquisition
of bottling plant. Therefore, as of 31 December
2012, the Group continued to own and operate 16
bottling plants and 220 retail outlets situated in 11
major cities in South China. Targeted customers of
bottled LPG are mainly household and commercial
users (such as restaurants, food outlets). The Group
established a computerized customer service centre
in Zhuhai at the end of 2010 to take customers’
telephone orders. The customer service centre
will promptly notify the bottle wagon closest to
the customer to deliver bottles and complete
transaction. The sales model integrates the bottle
wagon with the efficient telecommunication system
and turns the wagon into a mobile LPG sales outlet,
facilitating the direct sales of bottled LPG effectively.

Besides, the Group’s bottling plant near Zhuhai
Hengqgin has become the source of supply of some
Macau bottled gas operators (including operators
representing international brands). It is providing
stable cross border gas refueling service to Macau
operators.

The efficiency enhancement of the customer
service centre and the opening up of Zhuhai/
Macau gas refueling market have significantly
increased the sales of bottled LPG of the Group
by 14.8% to about 249,000 tons in 2012 (2011:
about 217,000 tons). As of 31 December 2012,
the Group had about 811,000 regular household
customers, representing an increase of about 6.4%
as compared with that of about 762,000 in the
same period of 2011. The Group also had about
4,300 regular commercial customers, representing
an increase of about 10.3% as compared with that
of about 3,900 in the same period of 2011.
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2.4

Autogas Refueling

In January 2012, the Group completed the second
phase acquisition of the equity interest in Lianxin
Energy, and commenced the direct operation of
autogas refueling business. Through the 17 autogas
refueling stations in Guangzhou, the Group provided
refueling service to 1,675,142 buses and 6,413,266
taxies in 2012, and recorded an autogas sales of
approximately 447,411,000 litres (equivalent to
approximately 244,000 tons).

Ratio of Wholesaling and Downstream Sales

The ratio of wholesaling volume and retail sales
was about 71:29 in 2012. As compared with that
of 85:15 in 2011, the share of downstream sales
was significantly raised. Meanwhile, the gross profit
of the LPG business also significantly increased
correspondly. This shows that the expansion of
retail sales is the most effective way to improve
gross profit.

Logistics and Distribution

Currently, the Group owns 25 tanker trucks for
distribution to industrial customers to ensure the
quality of LPG delivered. Also, there are about 170
bottle wagons shuttling around the locations where
most customers are located, ready to carry out
job orders from Zhuhai customer service centre
for prompt delivery of bottled LPG. The number
of tanker trucks and bottle wagons will continue
to increase in the coming year to further enhance
logistics efficiency. The addition of two berths
in Zhuhai Terminal is estimated to complete and
put into use by June 2013. The addition of two
propylene tanks (1 x 2,500 tons, 1 x 1,500 tons) will
start in June, and is expected to complete in 2013.
The construction works in relation to warehousing,
logistics and distribution will be completed in 2013,
by then, the logistics and distribution capacity of
the Group will be greatly enhanced.

2.4
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3. Oil Products Business
3.1 Hong Kong Marine Bunkering Market Condition

European economic turmoil and US economic
downturn in 2012 have dampened global trade
volume, causing global shipping industry to hit
the bottom. Hong Kong was affected under this
condition. As the number of incoming vessels fell,
the demand for marine bunkering in Hong Kong sea
area decreased by approximately 17%.

Unit: thousand tons
By T

Marine bunkering volume B EMhRE
Increase/(Decrease) ) IEE

Despite the unsatisfactory prevailing market
condition, the PRC government pays much attention
to the promotion of sea transportation business in
South China, and increased the storage capacity
of fuel oil in the coastal areas. These measures
will create favorable conditions for Hong Kong and
attract vessels of other origins to Hong Kong to
refuel, facilitating the stabilization and development
of Hong Kong marine bunkering industry.

3.2 Purchase of Fuel Oil

The marine bunkering business of the Group
commenced in May 2012. In 2012, the Group
purchased a total of about 200,000 tons fuel oil,
most of which were purchased from a Hong Kong
oil companies (i.e. companies with oil storage depot
on Tsing Vi Island).
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3.3

3.4

Marine Bunkering

The Group provides marine bunkering service
through two main channels: (1) a marine bunker
station anchored in Yau Ma Tei Typhoon Shelter is
supplying marine diesel oil to small cargo vessels
and fishing vessels sailing between the PRC and
Hong Kong. The station has oil storage of around
2,000 tons, and can refuel up to 4 vessels at the
same time. This marine bunker station is also
performing a contract granted by the Hong Kong
Government to supply not less than 15,000,000
litres ultra-low sulphur diesel to vessels of 11 Hong
Kong Government departments in two years; (2)
4 bunker ships with loading capacity of 200 tons,
250 tons, 350 tons and 1,000 tons as at end of
the year 2012. The bunker ships mainly sail near
anchored ships for fuel oil transfer with fuel oil from
oil storage depot. The bunker ships serve import
and export merchant ships, container ships, cruises
and even foreign warships visiting Hong Kong.

Logistics Facilities

To enhance equipment function and improve marine
bunkering distribution capacity, the Group has
ordered two oil carriers with capacity of 4,500 tons
in early 2013 from a famous shipyard in the PRC.
The two ships are planned to complete and put into
service by the end of 2013. In addition, the 70,000
tons oil products storage depot in Zhuhai Terminal
will also complete and commence operation in this
year. With such oil storage depot, the Group can
purchase from various channels, helping to lower
purchase costs.

3.3

3.4
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Business Outlook

Looking forward, capitalizing on the success in opening
up the downstream market, the Group will reinforce its
autogas refueling development plan in Guangdong, and
promote Guangzhou autogas refueling model to other
cities in the Pearl River Delta region through Lianxin
Energy’s discussion with local governments of other
cities. The Group will also establish strategic corporations
in the energy business to promote the Group to become
one of the major suppliers of energy products in South
China.

In respect of the plan to sell bottled LPG in Hong Kong,
the Group has been granted the license of “Registered
Gas Supply Company” by the Hong Kong Government.
The Fire Department has granted relevant approval
to the Tuen Mun transit warehouse. In the meantime,
the Building Department is in final consideration of the
structural works of the transit warehouse. We believe that
construction approval will be obtained shortly. The Group
will strive to complete the construction of the transit
warehouse and commence the sales of bottled LPG
in Hong Kong under the NewOcean brand as soon as
possible upon obtaining approvals from all departments.

On 27 June 2012, the Group signed a co-operative
letter of intent with Sinopec Guangdong to jointly
investigate the followings: (A) expansion of the bottled
LPG downstream sales and distribution business through
the chained convenient stores in the gas stations of
Sinopec Guangdong; (B) integration the Group’s autogas
refueling stations in Guangzhou with the new natural gas
refueling stations located in 30 gas stations of Sinopec
Guangdong to increase the share of clean energy in
Guangzhou autogas market; (C) business support from
Sinopec Guangdong to the Group to development
fuel oil, light diesel oil and oil products business. The
above proposed cooperation has undergone in-depth
discussion, and is in the final stage of finalization.
Relevant cooperation agreement is estimated to be
signed in the near future. We believe that the cooperation
with Sinopec Guangdong will facilitate and accelerate the
Group to become one of the major suppliers of energy
products in South China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE ZaTwm AT

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2012, the net current assets of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$420,019,000
(2011: HK$124,339,000) and the Group’'s bank balances
and cash was approximately HK$1,196,143,000 (2011:
HK$877,595,000). At the end of reporting date, current
ratio was 1.04:1 (2011: 1.01:1), quick ratio was 0.97:1
(2011: 0.96:1), gearing ratio was 0.07:1 (2011: 0.24:1)
which was calculated based on total long term borrowings
of approximately HK$186,511,000 (2011: HK$444,842,000)
and total equity of approximately HK$2,584,976,000 (2011:
HK$1,847,535,000).

Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

The Group derives its sales revenue principally in Reminbi,
and its cost of sales is mainly denominated in US dollars
and Reminbi. As a significant portion of the sales revenue is
dominated in a different currency from the sales revenue, the
Group manages its exposure to foreign exchange risks through
natural hedges between purchases and sales and appropriate
use of forward exchange contracts.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2012 and 2011.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2012, the Group pledged its bank deposits
amounting to approximately HK$4,056,010,000 (2011:
HK$4,209,577,000) to secure general banking facilities granted

to the Group.

Employees and Employee Benefits

As of 31 December 2012, the Group employed 1,100 (2011:
740) full time employees in Hong Kong, Macau and the
PRC. The Group remunerated the employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing market practice.
Employee benefits provided by the Group include a Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme, medical insurance scheme and an
employee share option scheme.
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The Company is committed to good corporate governance
principles. Its Board recognises that an effective corporate
governance framework and high governance standard are both
essential to the Company’s long-term development.

Corporate Governance Practices

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year ended 31
December 2012 the Company has complied with the code
provisions (the “CG Code”) contained in “Code on Corporate
Governance Practices” in force up to 31 March 2012, and
the amended CG Code contained in “Code on Corporate
Governance and Corporate Governance Report” in force as
from 1 April 2012 as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, save for a deviation from the provision governing tenure
of non-executive directors mentioned below.

Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for specific term, subject to re-
election. The Company deviated from this provision in that
none of the non-executive directors are appointed for a
fixed term, instead their tenure of office are governed by
the provisions for retirement by rotation and re-election as
provided in the Bye-laws of the Company. (These provisions
are described in the paragraph headed “Non-executive
Directors” below). The Board believes that the fixing of
the tenure of non-executive directors by way of provisions
contained in the Bye-laws, and the shareholders’ right to re-
elect retiring non-executive directors as contained in the Bye-
laws, will serve the long term interests of the Company. In the
opinion of the Board, the measures adopted by the Company
are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code during the year.
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Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises six executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. Biographical details
of all directors of the Company are set out in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ Profile” on page 4 to page 6. All directors
have disclosed to the Company the number and nature of
offices they held in public companies or organizations and
other significant commitment, including the identity of the
public companies or organizations and indication of the time
involved.

Membership of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2012 were as follows:

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cai Xikun (retired by rotation on 21 May 2012)
Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe

Managing Director Shum Chun, Lawrence is the son of Shum
Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company and a cousin of Cen
Ziniu, executive director of the Company.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

The Board establishes the strategic direction for the
development of the Company and sets out the objectives of
the management, with operational decisions and execution
delegated to the management. The Board also approves
annual budgets, major funding proposals and investment
proposals, and oversees the processes for evaluating the
adequacy of internal controls, risk management, financial
reporting and compliance. The Board is responsible for the
corporate governance functions of the Group, including the
development and review of the Group’s policy and practices
on corporate governance The Company has received
confirmation from each director that he has given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company during the
year under review.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, Board
meetings are initiated by the Chairman and all directors are
consulted on the agenda. Procedures are established for all
directors to have free access to board papers and related
information, to review the Group’s internal control, and to
have the services of the Company Secretary to ensure matters
are transacted in the Board in accordance applicable rules
and practices. Directors may seek independent professional
advice upon reasonable request to discharge their duties. The
Board reviews its structure and composition from time to time
to ensure that appropriate expertise and independence are
maintained.
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Board of Directors (Continued) EFE (2

Proposed regular Board meeting schedule for the current year AFEERTARAZESESZHBRENA
is circulated to the in the preceding year. The following table —FHESLEHR TRETHZE2012F12
shows the attendance of directors at meetings of the Board ABTHEFEASEENESFS SR IEF

during the year ended 31 December 2012: A0dk -
Number of Meetings

Name of director Attended
EFNA HEZERH
Executive Directors: HITERE -
Shum Siu Hung (Chairman) BAME(ERE) 4/4
Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director) BB (EFLEMTE) 4/4
Cai Xikun (retired by rotation on 21 May 2012) 25 (R 2012 F

5 A21 AHERT) 2/2
Cen Ziniu 54 4/4
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond AR 4/4
Siu Ka Fali, Brian BRIE 4/4
Wang Jian FE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUHHITESE - 29
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony RE9E 4/4
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict FRABIE 4/4
Dr. Xu Mingshe AL 4/4

REBFERN  MEERCEHRIAAF
EBNEHRLEN  BREEREEERSE
H - WENCD2METRAAROEI - AR
RBRGHERLESTRE  LWEREBRE
RETMRARE RN LIREE

During the year under review, all directors received regular
briefing and updates on the Group’s business, operation and
corporate governance matters. They also attended training
relevant to the industry, regulatory updates or directors’ duties
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as listed
company directors.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

According to the records provided by the directors, a summary
of training received by the directors during the year under

reviewed is as follows:

EEE(/

RESFEHENLCE  EFRNEEFERE
B A

Type of Training

Name of director Attended

EFNS e

Executive Directors: HITESE -

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman) BAME(ERE) A B

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director) BB (EFAMEHE) A, B

Cen Ziniu ZF4 A B

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond A A, B

Siu Ka Fai, Brian EES: A B

Wang Jian FE2 A B

Independent Non-executive Directors: BTIHITESE

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony REIE A B

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict FRIEE A, B

Dr. Xu Mingshe HwEtET A, B

Notes: 1Bt

A Attending briefing and updates on rules and regulations related A B (R R EVRVE R SFRIE B A8 A R 1E
to corporate governance law and practice oS E

B Reading of material and updates on the Group’s operation and B MERAEEREETENKCERM B CE
finance and on the industry generally BB

Chairman and Managing Director ITRREFHER

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
are separated by written guidelines adopted by the Board to
ensure a clear division of responsibilities. The responsibilities
of the Chairman include leadership of the Board, providing
relevant information and mobilizing the collective resources of
the directors in the Board’s roles and functions. The Managing
Director is responsible for leadership of the management, and
for execution of business strategies and front-line execution.
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Non-Executive Directors

As at the date of this report, three members of the Board are
independent non-executive directors. The term of appointment
of non-executive directors is governed by the Company’s
Byelaws pursuant to which at each annual general meeting
one-third of the directors of the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
greater than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that the chairman of the Board and/or the managing
director of the Company shall not, whilst holding such office,
be subject to retirement by rotation or be taken into account
in determining the number of directors to retire in each year.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and concluded
that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

During the Relevant Period, arrangements have been made for
the non-executive directors to meet with the Chairman without
the presence of the executive directors, to consider and
discuss various matters in respect of the management of the
Company.

Board Committees

The Company has set up three Committees in accordance
with the CG Code, namely the Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Audit Committee. The Nomination
Committee has just been set up in March 2012. In addition to
the above 3 Committees, the Board has set up an Executive
Committee comprising all executive directors on the Board.
Under its terms of reference, the Executive Committee is
responsible for the oversight of the management of the Group
and the formulation of administrative guidelines.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee, which are in line with the principles
of the CG Code and are posted on the Company’s website.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors and two executive directors as follows:

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Committee Chairman)
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring
formal and transparent procedures for developing remuneration
policies and overseeing the remuneration packages of the
executive directors and senior management. It takes into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee meets
at least once a year to access the performance and review the
annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives.

2 meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held in the
year 2012 to review, among other things, the remuneration
packages of the Chairman, the executive directors and senior
executives, and the attendance of each member is as follows:

FHERE

ARBIMRIENHFMEZESRERE R
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Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
BRAMSA HEEERE
Shum Chun, Lawrence (Committee Chairman) LR (ZEESTEE) 2/2
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony w95 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRIBAE 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe AL 2/2
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond AR 2/2
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Nomination Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the
Nomination Committee, which are in line with the principles
of the CG Code and are posted on the Company’s website.
The Nomination Committee comprises all independent non-
executive directors and two executive directors as follows:

Shum Siu Hung (Committee Chairman)
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the size, structure and composition of the Board, identify
suitably qualified individual for appointment to the Board,
assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors.

1 meeting of the Nomination Committee were held in the
year 2012 to review and discuss the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and also assessed the independence of independent
non-executive directors of the Board. The attendance of each
member is as follows:
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Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
REMR HEZERE
Shum Siu Hung (Committee Chairman) BVE(ZEEEE) 1/1
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony RE5E 1/1
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict [RB & 11
Dr. Xu Mingshe ®REMLBL 1/1
Shum Chun, Lawrence 2a 1/1
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Audit Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Audit
Committee, which are in line with the principles of the CG
Code and are posted on the Company’s website. The Audit
Committee comprises all independent non-executive directors
and two executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Cen Ziniu

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting and internal
control procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate

relationship with the external auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee met 2 times during the year 2012 during
which the following matters were reviewed and discussed:

° Auditing and financial reporting matters;
° Appointment and remuneration of external auditor;
o Non-auditing work of external auditor;

o Maintenance of the Group’s internal control system; and

° Review of interim results and audited financial
statements.
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Audit Committee (Continued) E#RERE (&5
Attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at REEANERZESEHUKNELERIEOT
meeting during the year is as follows:

Number of Meetings
Name of Member Attended
34=R HEEHRRE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) KEB(ZEEEF/E) 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict FRBJE 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe mEELT 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence 2a 2/2
Cen Ziniu ZF4 2/2
Corporate Governance Function EREQEE
The Board does not have a Corporate Governance Committee. EEQUVERIGEETRTZET - DETA
The functions that would be carried out by a Corporate ZEEMNEEHRERESSHNT

Governance Committee are performed by the Board as a
whole and are as follows:

35

to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

o BREFHAQANBREEXRERT
M

s ENLEREEASAE
ARENEERR

2 E el &

o BERERAATMEERYT AR
S5 040 B R A ¢

s R %Fpﬁ&ﬁt@f}gﬁﬁﬁ"ﬁi&%$ﬂ’9
RTEARARFM(E)

o  EEAQNFBELRENLEEARBREAD
SFRIMIEBEEE




36

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1/S8EREBHBR A A

Corporate Governance Report

EEARE

Corporate Governance Function (Continued)

The Company’s corporate governance policy is formulated
with an emphasis on transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply
with the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance
policy regularly in order to maintain high standards of
business ethics and corporate governance, and to ensure the
full compliance of our operations with applicable laws and
regulations.

During the year under review, all members of the Board
have discussed and reviewed, among other things, the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance.
They have also reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of directors, and the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements as well as its disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report. A code of conduct applicable
to employees and directors setting out the standards of
behaviour that the Company expects from them and the
guidelines on how they should handle different situations
in business dealings with the Group were formulated and
adopted by the Board. The board also established written
guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code for dealing
in the Company’s securities by employees of the Company, or
directors or employees of the Company’s subsidiary or holding
companies, who are likely to possess inside information of the
Group.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness and for this
purpose has maintained an internal audit function which
is internally resourced and forms part of the Group’s
permanent establishment. The management of the Company
has established a set of comprehensive policies, standards
and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk
controls for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records; and
for ensuring the reliability of financial information to achieve
a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors.

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control is conducted by the internal audit function on an on-
going basis, and the responsible personnel will directly report
to the Audit Committee on any significant finding on internal
controls.

The Board considered that throughout the year 2012, the
Company complied with the code provisions on internal
controls as stipulated in the CG Code. During the year the
Company conducted a full review of the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group and discussed the
assessment bases with the management.
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Inside Information

The Company adopted a policy for disclosure of inside
information which sets out guidelines for the release and
control of inside information to ensure that the Company, its
directors and employees meets the obligations for the handling
and dissemination of inside information. A framework has
been set up to assess whether any particular information is
inside information, to ensure that any information considered
to be inside information should be kept confidential before
the relevant information is fully disclosed to the public, and to
coordinate the disclosure of the information in accordance with
the requirements of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules. The Chairman, the Managing Director, the
executive director responsible for the control of the Group’s
operation and the Head of Investors Relations are authorized
as spokespersons of the Company.

Shareholders’ Rights

Rights of shareholders of the Company are provide under, and
are subject to applicable laws and regulations (which include
the Bermuda Companies Act and the Listing Rules) and the
Bye-laws of the Company. Set out below is a brief summary
of certain rights of the shareholders of the Company, which is
for easy reference only. The relevant laws and regulations and
the Bye-laws of the Company should be referred to for a full
account of such shareholders’ rights.

Convening special general meeting on requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall have the right to require an special general
meeting (the “SGM”) to be called by the Board by written
requisition deposited at the registered office of the Company
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda stating the purposes of the requisitioned SGM.

If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to convene
such SGM, the shareholders making the requisition, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene an SGM, provided that
the SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
3 months from the date of deposit of the requisition.
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Inside Information (Continued)
Proposing resolution at shareholders’ meetings etc.

Shareholders, representing at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights
or not less than 100 shareholders, can by written requisition
request the Company to (a) give to shareholders notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved at the next annual
general meeting of the Company, and which the requesting
shareholders intend to move at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at the any next
general meeting of the Company.

In the case of shareholders requesting the Company to give
notice of a resolution to be moved at an annual general
meeting, the written requisition must be deposited at the
Company’s registered office not less than 6 weeks before the
date of that annual general meeting. In the case of any other
requisition, the written requisition must be deposited at the
Company’s registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda not less than 1 week before
the date of the general meeting.

In order to notify the Company at the earliest opportunity of
the deposit/intended deposit of a written requisition referred to
in the above, a copy of the requisition may be delivered to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 20/F,
Times Tower, 393 Jaffe Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Proposing a person for election as director

Procedures have been set up by the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws for shareholders of the Company to propose
a person for election as a director. Details of the procedures

are available on the Company’s website.

Contacting the Board for enquiries

Shareholders may contact the Board for enquiries in respect of
the Company’s information, to the extent such information can
be made available to the public. Such enquiry should be sent
by mail addressed to “The Company Secretary, NewOcean
Energy Holdings Limited” and delivered to the principal office
of the Company at 20/F, Times Tower, 393 Jaffe Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong or by telephone at (852) 2866 7244.
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Inside Information (Continued)
Investor Relations

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy on 30 March 2012. The use and effectiveness of such
policy will be monitored and reviewed regularly by the Board.
The Company recognises the importance of shareholders’
privacy and therefore will not disclose shareholders’
information without their consent, unless required by law to do
S0.

To achieve equal access to information on the Company’s
latest major development, measures have been taken
to ensure all necessary information and appropriate
updates are made available to investors in a timely
manner through corporate communications and other
corporate publications on the Company’s website
under the column of “Investor Relations”. Corporate
communications required to be given under the Listing
Rules, any applicable laws and corporate procedures will
be provided to shareholders in plain language and in both
English and Chinese versions to facilitate shareholders’
understanding. Shareholders should direct their questions
about their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at 26/F,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. For enquiry about the information of the Company,
shareholders may contact the Company Secretary as stated
above.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in the Company’s
general meetings. Members of the Board will attend to answer
their questions.

The Company has also posted its constitutional documents on
its website and there was no significant change in them during
the year under review.
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Auditor’s Remuneration BB
During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable REBEFEERN B BT AR %A
to the Company’s auditors, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu EE e HEHRAGAITZERLOT ¢

is set out as follows:

Services rendered Fees paid/payable
BR 75 4= 1t Bft A
HK$’000
T
Audit services Ei R 3,150
Non-audit services FEBET IR S 666
Total CEl 3,816
Accountability and Audit BEERIEREZE
The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing EERMARRAEH B BERE - WER
the financial statements of the Group and ensuring that R BRRETEETERLREB 228 A
the financial statements are in accordance with statutory EERBE o INEEZEED 2 PR S E 4]
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The AREIRE S BB T IZEENRENR o

statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page
53.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 50 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group was
principally engaged in the sale and distribution of liquefied
petroleum gas and petroleum products, and the sales of
electronic products.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 56.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK3.8 cents per share to the shareholder whose names
appear on the register of members of 20 May 2013 amounting
to approximately HK$49,622,000. On 18 March 2013, the
number of shares issued and fully paid is 1,305,853,374
(2011: 1,305,8583,374).

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spend approximately
HK$224,329,000 (2011: HK$289,843,000) on property,
plant and equipment to expend and upgrade its gas plant,
approximately HK$269,164,000 (2011: nil) to acquire property,
plant and equipment, through the acquisition of subsidiaries.
Details of these and other movements during the year in
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note
17 to the consolidated financial statements.

EECEHIESHE012F12A31HILE
B FRRIASE R MERE -

EBRY

$QTE&§?&QT RRAZETEWEB
RAFBER A M BHRERM S0 -

RNEE2012F 12831 HIEFE - AEEF
EREHEERSERCARRLEARER K
BETEMZIHE -

KBRS IR

$%@@§mm¢mﬂmﬁ¢¢ﬁ%%
CEHRE S BN AEEEWER

BEEZZM2013F5 A20H & 5 R & i}
B A% SR 25 =A% 3.8 B R HEAAR B, - MRREAIE
49,622,000/ JT °» MW 2013F3H18H ' B
BT R R D E B &1,305,853,374 %
(2011 : 1,305,853,374 %) °

]E > WEBRRRE

F R KK EEEBE 224,329,000% T
(2011 : 289,843,000 JT ) 1A ¥ % - # 25
RELE UEBARRAEGE  RIEEY
269,164,000 7T (2011 = 8 ) 3% 15 U B [ /B
RABEYE  HERIREE AEERFNRN
Ry BBEREEZEHNFE SRR
AU BHRERMTET -




H )
Directors’ Report
=== A0 A
EEEWE
Reserves
Details of movements in the Group’s reserves during the
year are set out in the paragraph “Consolidated Statement of

Changes in Equity” at page 60.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2012 were as follows:
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2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Contributed surplus MABR 1,667 1,667
Retained earnings REB = 86,205 85,534
87,872 87,201

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer of the Group by itself and the total of
the five largest customers accounted for 13% and 37% (2011:
16% and 55%) respectively of the Group’s total turnover for
the year, including discontinued operations.

The largest supplier of the Group by itself and the total of the
five largest suppliers accounted for 27% and 54% (2011: 16%
and 52%) respectively of the Group’s total purchase for the
year, including discontinued operations.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate
of a director, or a shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) have an interest in any of the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-law, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cai Xikun (retired by rotation on 21 May 2012)
Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent non-executive directors:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe
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Directors (Continued)

In accordance with clauses 86 and 87 of the Company’s
Byelaws, Mr. Siu Ka Fai, Brian, Mr. Wong Jian, executive
directors and Dr. Xu Mingshe, independent non-executive
director, shall retire by rotation from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. All directors retiring
at the annual general meeting have offered themselves for re-
election.

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The term of office for each non-executive director is the
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2012, the interests of the directors and chief
executives and their associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares EFERFETRARBRERG RERERK
and Underlying Shares (Continued) hZziERE)

(a) FLTFISHHMEEO.10 BT &HER P

(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

of the Company

-}

Percentage of

the issued
Number of share capital
issued of the
ordinary Company
shares held FriEELF
Name of director Capacity BT ERTRA
EEga i3 BiEKREA Bigkt
Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner 25,304,000 1.94
Y EnfEAA
Corporate interest (note 1) 490,779,280 37.58
ANRRIE=RES (i 1)
516,083,280 39.52
46 Shum Chun, Lawrence Beneficial owner 49,933,558 3.82
25 BB A
Other (note 2) 73,616,892 5.64
)
123,550,450 9.46
Notes: Bist -
1. These represent the block of 490,779,280 shares 1. ZERGTESHBIZERER ARG

Bt |) B &= % B 490,779,280 % i
D THELHARNTEREE  H
TEIEEE |aXKisE1 AR o FH
DRIBS LW - BERSE(ESEAES
LIEZRF)EBT0% ~ 15% M 15% o

beneficially owned by Uniocean Investments Limited
(“Uniocean”) which were held as corporate interest by
Shum Siu Hung, and were the same block of shares as
referred to in note 1 under section (a) in the paragraph
headed “Substantial Shareholders” below. Uniocean is
owned as to 70% by Shum Siu Hung, 15% by Shum
Chun, Lawrence, and 15% by Shum Ho, Neo, both are
sons of Shum Siu Hung.

ZE RS TR SRR I TE G I T S
490,779,280 M FZ 17 41 8 16% # 2x ©

2. These interests reflect 15% proportional interest of Shum 2.
Chun, Lawrence in the 490,779,280 shares held by
Uniocean.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares EFERFETRARBRERG RERERK

and Underlying Shares (Continued) hZiER(E)
(b) Share options (b) FEBRiE
Outstanding
share option
as at
Exercise Number of 31.12.2012
Date price underlying  #31.12.2012
Name of director of grant per share  Exercise period shares ARITER
EENE BHAH BERTERE TES HRRAEAE MR E
(HK$)
(&)
Shum Siu Hung 16/6/2006 0.625 17/6/2006 - 9,940,358 9,940,358
200k 31/12/2015
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond 16/6/2006 0.625  17/6/2006 - 6,626,905 6,626,905
R 31/12/2015
Siu Ka Fai, Brian 15/5/2006 0.625  17/6/2006 - 4,970,179 4,970,179
LES 31/12/2015
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony  16/6/2006 0.625  17/6/2006 - 1,104,484 1,104,484 47
wEE 31/12/2015
Notes: The share options in this section are held by the relevant Hiat : ABFEREDAHBESEUER
directors in the capacity of beneficial owner. BEBEAHDEE -
Other than disclosed above and nominee shares in BRENFBEREERATESEREAEE
certain subsidiaries held by certain directors in trust for LERERAmRE THBARZE 2R
the Group, none of the directors, chief executive nor their BARRMDIN  R2012F12A31H » &
respective associates had any interests or short positions EF FETHRAEBEAESSEZBE
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the AT EHREERRBREHE R ZE
Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31 FREmIAR o

December 2012.
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Share Options 8 B 4

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out AABZBRETEFBHNGRAETBIRE
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements. BFES7 ©

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s TREBERNQNRFANEREZZE)

share options during the year:

Outstanding at Outstanding at

31.12.2012 31.12.2011
Category 1: Directors Option type 7 31.12.2012 7 31.12.2011
1 EE EEp RRITHE RRITE
Shum Siu Hung 2006B 9,940,358 9,940,358
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond 2006B 6,626,905 6,626,905
R
Siu Ka Fai, Brian 2006A 4,970,179 4,970,179
EXRE

21,537,442 21,637,442

48

Category 2: Independent
Non-Executive Directors
2 BIAFERTESF
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony 2006B 1,104,484 1,104,484
ok #9795
Category 3: Employees 2006A 9,940,358 9,940,358
SWI:RT

32,682,284 32,682,284
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company or their respective spouses or children under the
age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Directors’/Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts of Significance

Details of related party transactions during the year are set out
in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or a
controlling shareholder of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly in any contract, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Substantial Shareholders ETERE

As at 31 December 2012, the register of substantial R2012F 12 A31H » REARQRKRES
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section FHIE 4GP 336 KR E AR ZEERRE
336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that AR BREEEERTEITHRAERE
other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain BB ERZZIN S THREMERADT
directors and chief executive, the following shareholders had BBEARRNRIEEITRAZ MR XE -

notified the Company of relevant interests and short positions
in the issued share capital of the Company:

(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (a) WMELF)SEEEO.10ET B EREL
of the Company 1

Percentage of

Number of the issued

issued share capital

ordinary of the

shares held Company

RISE LT FRi&E LT

Name of shareholder Capacity 28T =% %5)

BERMR {3 BiEKREA BEXES L

50 Uniocean Beneficial owner 490,779,280 37.58

s E=EAA

Tong Shiu Ming Family interest (note 1) 490,779,280 37.58

=HNE Kk (Mat 1)

Family interest (note 2) 25,304,000 1.94
RikE=m (H1aE2)
Integrated Asset Management (Asia) Beneficial owner 73,100,000 5.60
Limited (“Integrated Asset”) ([ AE ) BREA A

Yam Tak Cheung Held by corporation (note 3) 73,100,000 5.60

TEE AR RIERSMES (H1:73)

Notes: Hst -

1. This represent the same block of 490,779,280 shares 1. ZEBRMDOEERIHZEBRZSD
held as corporate interest by Shum Siu Hung, spouse of I AR R R A 2490,779,280
Tong Shiu Ming as referred to in note 1 under section (a) ARt - BIEEREBITHABRI
of the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ 7 RN 2z | (o) RMIFE 148
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, and A - WERAENBUARGERE

were deemed to be the family interest of Tong Shiu Ming.
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+== A D
EEFEWME
Substantial Shareholders (Continued) FERFEE)
(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (a) RELAF)EEEEO10BTE BRI
of the Company (Continued) B(#&)
Notes: (Continued) st - (4&)
2. These represent the same block of 25,304,000 shares 2. ZEROGDNEERNACZEBSIVESR
held beneficially by Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Tong Shiu 5 ¥ 125,304,000 BERE ) - E[ES
Ming as referred to in the paragraph headed “Directors’ REZTHABRRG KABRGH
and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Mz | —EBAAR - WS AE /NI
Shares” above, and were deemed to be the family interest RiGEmIEE ©

of Tong Shiu Ming.

3. 73,100,000 shares of the Company were held by 3. KA 8] 2 73,100,000 A% B 19 B 2 [ 5
Integrated Asset as beneficial owner. Yam Tak Cheung Ao EEEHEARIE100% #E - WH
owned 100% of Integrated Asset and was deemed to be TR A AR BE A3 AR AR R -

the controlling shareholder of Integrated Asset.

(b) Share options (b) FRERIE
Outstanding
share
Number of option as at 51
underlying 31.12.2012
shares 7 31.12.2012

Name of shareholder Capacity Fri51HRR MERTED

BRMR {3 B8 H {02

Tong Shiu Ming Family interest (note) 9,940,358 9,940,358

=N E KichEm(Hat)

Note:  These represent the share options to subscribe Kiat - B3R B 9,940,358 IX IR 10 2 B AR #E
9,940,358 shares held by Shum Siu Hung, spouse THENAzRESSERE(R L
of Tong Shiu Ming as referred to in section (b) in the X[EENEFBITHAS RN NXE
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ BARR D R 2 2 5 (o) B+ WK AR
Interest in Shares and Underlying Shares” above and BENRAZ Rk -
were deemed to be the family interest of Tong Shiu
Ming.

Other than disclosed above, the Company has not been B EXXFTHEES  EAANTFESH S R
notified of any other relevant interests or short position in the 2012F 12 31 H » A AT D BITI/RAH I

issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2012. BT A HEM RS IAR
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2013

3R

AEBEIZHMBRIIBFHEZESRE
BEZE - BRMBENHIET -

ARREZZME I HEFHZESEEEN
RAEIZEEREE  AARBERATLET S5
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53 L]
ARBBREERRBFAG LIREFHE

Sfeg) « EMRTT SETENIT AR R B X BED

ORFER °

AEEZW
TE
0%

F4& 20133 A18H




Independent Auditor’s Report
ARGk

Deloitte.
Zan

s

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEWOCEAN ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 56 to 199, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
MR Gilk e

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

5 L

BEZRERBREARTZIES  BRFHA
MBRERREER  ERZBRRBEATT
ZER RIS - IR BEREQFEFE O
B N|ESAAEEMAE - ATHAH
RERNBRERMEMA LT AERE EEM
BiE - ATHRBERESMASHEMZE
BEMEMNETER TR - ZERERATT
BTERARS  URIIRKITESZ G HE
MEZSFEEMBHRRES A FEEMNEXR
B8 AR PR o

BRS RATRA ARG EES W EHRRA
HEELRBEETHREBIERRE - FTEM
2R BN EHE - A A EREER
HRMEBE A BRRFEERERRML
MR - ERBEELZERRGE - &
ZRE SRERELREEEQNTHIIHREE
MBRRABECAIEE  URAEEER
BRzEZREN  BYIHN SRE 2 AERE
Hl2RRBERER - BRI BRIBESMR
RAZEFTHRERERE  MAEH 2 &5
HERERE  ARFEGRAVHHRRZE
B2HTA -

BEEMREARATRIRANEE < EREE A
ERIEEZERE R 2 &R -



Independent Auditor’s Report
&N 2 BRAD

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
,\\/\ = %ELI& %%

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BB 2012F 1231 HIFFE
2012 2011
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
itz3 F#&T FET
(Restated)
(E31)
Continuing operations BFEXR
Revenue WA 6 12,456,376 10,116,643
Cost of sales SHE AN (11,398,888) (9,689,988)
Gross profit EF 1,057,488 426,655
Net exchange (loss) gain & H (E518) s 8 (83,889) 175,314
Other income E b ug A 8 143,345 247,092
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R DY M (227,264) (99,275)
Administrative expenses 1T H (201,909) (180,861)
Impairment on goodwill recognised EREERE 20 (10,000) (40,000)
Gain on deemed disposal of available #8 A HE Rt HERE
for sale investments Fr1s . 41 23,724 —
Changes in fair values of convertible A& 5 A F{E 2 &
bonds ) 43 (701) —
Changes in fair values of derivative T4 T B A F(E 2 2hi
financial instruments 19,637 8,495
Finance costs [ ﬁ}z$ 9 (275,701) (205,403)
Share of profit of a jointly controlled 5> — 2R £t [ 422 1 2 82 5 7
entity 1,219 927
Profit before taxation R 75 R A 11 445,949 332,944
Taxation charge HIE B 10 (17,725) (29,915)
Profit for the year from continuing FHE ST R 2 F Nm Fl
operations 428,224 303,029
Discontinued operations AR
Profit for the year from discontinued — JERF4E % FEA K 2
operations F Rz A 12 384,317 —
Profit for the year F R Al 812,541 303,029
Other comprehensive (expense) Hh 2w (2 ) W
income
Exchange differences arising from MEEEZIERZE
translation (1,194) 59,676
Total comprehensive income for the  FE R4 E S
year 811,347 362,705
Profit (loss) for the year attributable 282 B A A FEAS € 4% 7
to owners of the Company (E518)
Continuing operations FREETS 426,617 306,159
Discontinued operations EHEEWS 384,317 =
810,934 306,159
Non-controlling interests JEFEHIRE = 1,607 (8,130)
812,541 303,029
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

=ANPAN ><
Re 2 E W
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HF 20124 12 531 ALLEE
2012 2011
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
itz3 F#&T FET
(Restated)
(E31)
Total comprehensive income Efh2mEmkes ()
(expense) attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIETZEDN 809,740 365,741
Non-controlling interests FESZEfl R 1,607 (3,036)
811,347 362,705
Earnings per share BB A
From continuing and discontinued SERIEFE R
operations
Basic R 16 HK$0.62 & T HK$0.23 7% 7T
Diluted e HK$0.61 & 5T HK$0.23 %5 7T
From continuing operations FE T
Basic HAK 16 HK$0.33 & T HK$0.23 % 7T
Diluted e HK$0.32# 7T HK$0.23 7% T
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“ra ML R

At 31 December 2012
R20124F 12 431 H

2012 2011

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
et FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - 2R N ERE 17 1,362,710 941,784
Land use rights 3 {55 PR A 18 231,298 250,842
Prepaid lease payments for coast HEREMNEERIE 19 9,963 10,811
Goodwill RS 20 289,608 96,429
Other intangible assets HEmEpEE 21 359,036 8,929
Interest in associates it Nl 22 231,722 =
Interest in a jointly controlled entity ~ —ZRLFIR4IE SR 23 10,420 9,201
Available for sale investment AEHERE 42 = 3,701
Derivative financial instruments PTEMET A 51 - 45,715
Entrusted loan ZrtER 42 - 644,423
Other assets HihEE 24 1,068 175,883
Deferred tax assets BT IBEE 38 1,304 1,781
2,497,129 2,189,499
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 25 705,155 433,595
Trade debtors and bills receivable R E 5 BR 7k M e U ZE 4% 26 2,069,137 2,127,923
Amount due from an associate JiE Ui Bt 8 B 3N IE 28 137,084 -
Other debtors, deposits and HEMEKERER  me kB
prepayments IRIR 26 1,104,393 565,394
Derivative financial instruments PTEMKIA 51 6,906 28,815
Lands use rights + b {5 PR A 18 9,515 3,024
Prepaid lease payments for coast BEEMNEERIEA 19 846 846
Properties held for sales BEFEWE 30 221,989 —
Properties under development RHEBERPME
for sales 31 188,060 185,867
Available for sale investment AHHERE 43 80,809 =
Convertible bonds ARRES 43 79,971 =
Pledged bank deposits BIHIEITER 29 4,056,010 4,209,577
Bank balances and cash IRTTHEB AR E 29 1,196,143 877,595
9,856,018 8,432,636
Current liabilities e R R
Trade creditors and bills payable ENEZERRENEE 32 3,258,442 1,074,288
Other creditors and accrued HihENEER R EZTER
charges 34 193,238 294,057
Amount due to a jointly controlled BN —REREGHEE
entity 28 33 493 _
Derivative financial instruments PTEBET A 51 31,418 106,727
Tax liabilities HiEaE 40,063 44,790
Borrowings — repayable within B — BR—FRNEER
one year 35 5,906,795 6,782,885
Payable to non-controlling FERT— BB A B IR A%
shareholder of a subsidiary R 39 5,550 5,550
9,435,999 8,308,297
Net current assets MENEERE 420,019 124,339
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRSEE 2,917,148 2,313,838
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“ra ML R

At 31 December 2012
R2012F 12431 H

2012 2011

Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt F# FEIT
Capital and reserves BE R &R
Share capital [N 36 130,586 130,586
Share premium and other reserves B 05 (B M E b 1 2,437,818 1,693,168
Equity attributable to equity holders ~ ARAF 2 #253FH A
of the Company FEfL R 2,568,404 1,823,754
Non-controlling interests FEVE 16,572 23,781
Total equity 1ARE TS 2,584,976 1,847,535
Non-current liabilities FEiREIAR
Deferred tax liabilities RIENRIABE 38 145,661 21,461
Borrowings — repayable over BR — R—FrREE
one year 8] 186,511 444,842
332,172 466,303
2,917,148 2,313,838
The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 199 FEE2E N 201343 A 18 HEIL MIXHEENZE
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of F56E 199 EMiR A MK - WAHTIE
Directors on 18 March 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: EREREE
Shum Siu Hung Shum Chun, Lawrence
=D =8
Director Director

T EZE
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For the Year ended 31 December 2012
HE2012F 12431 HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FLTCREREARN
Statutory Share  Contributed Non-
Share Share Special surplus  Exchange options surplus Other  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve  reserves reserve reserve  accounts reserve profits Total interests
e
B RRER HURE BRER ERER MREGE HARBR  RMRR  REEH EL ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
TAT AT FAT 7AT 7AT 7AT 7AT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
(Note ) (Note i
) (i)
THE GROUP 550
At 1 January 2011 01 E1A1A 130,586 711,250 122,085 20,1 84,812 5,663 1,667 33,111 351,763 1,468,708 9,883 1,478,591
Prof (osg) for the year — EMiaF(EE) = = - - - - - - 36159 306159 (3130 303029
Bxchange differences arisng~ £EBZE% 7
from translation B S = = = = 59,582 = = - - 59,582 94 59,676
Total comprehensive EmRE (%i)
(expense)income for the B A&
year - - - - 59,582 - - - 306,159 365,741 (3,039) 362,705
Disposal of partal inferest ~~ HE-FHBATSH
in a subsidiary without ERBUEREIH
losing control of the BLAZEE
subsidy (Mo ] (W) - - - - 1) - - M - % 1940
Dvidend pad (oie 15 EARE(75) - - - - - - - - a0y (1309 - (i30ey)
Dividend paid to non- AR
controling interests k8 - - - - - - - - - - (200) (200)
At 31 December 2011 2011 E12A318 130,586 711,250 122,085 2,11 144,178 5,663 1,667 35,690 044,864 1,823,754 2,781 1,847,53%
Proft for the year ERgH - - - - - - - - B1093% 810934 1607 812,541
Exchange diferences arsng~ EEE%
from translation EXZE - - - - (1,194) - - - - (1,194) - (1,194)
Total comprehensive EREA(TH)
(expense) income for the Wit
year - - - - (1,194) - - - 810,934 809,740 1,607 811,347
Disposal of a subsidary HE-FHEAT
INote 44 (i) - - - - - - - - - - @ B
Appropriations Ak - - - 8,449 - - - - (8,449) - - -
Acquision of addiionl ~ HE-FHBAFES
interests in a subsidiary Ry
ot i) - - - - ) - - e - [0 (M (0000
Dividend paid (Note 15) Btk - - - - - - - - (30,035) (30,035) - (30,035)
At 31 December 2012 2012E12A318 130,586 711,250 122,085 36,220 143,746 5,663 1,667 (1) 1417314 2,568,404 16,572 2,584,976
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For the Year ended 31 December 2012
BB 2012F 1231 HIFFE

Notes:

(i)

(il

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the share capital, share premium and capital
redemption reserve of the Group’s former ultimate holding
company whose shares were exchanged for the Company’s
shares and the nominal amount of the share capital issued by
the Company pursuant to a scheme of arrangement dated 14
April 1999.

The statutory surplus reserves represent enterprise development
and general reserve funds appropriated from the profit after
taxation of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the PRC laws and
regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group disposed
of 32% equity interest of a subsidiary to an independent
third party without losing control. The difference between the
consideration received and the carrying amount of the 32% non-
controlling interests and the exchange reserve related to the
disposed 32% equity content of the subsidiary was credited to
other reserve.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company
acquired 10% equity interest of a subsidiary from the non-
controlling shareholder at a consideration of HKD 40,000,000.
The difference between consideration paid and the carrying
amount of the 10% non-controlling interests and the exchange
reserve related to the acquired 10% equity content of the
subsidiary was charged to other reserve. During the year
ended 31 December 2010, the 10% equity interest of the same
subsidiary was sold to the non-controlling shareholder at HKD
40,000,000 and HK$33,111,000 was credited to other reserve.

wiit :

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

ANER B2 R e dE L AR ) XS R A A £0

ZAS B RRIERAR ZBEAN - BRHEE
MEREE FE  BARAIRE 19994 4 A

14 BTS2 BB EIE ZHEat 3 M 31T A D
EfEZEH

AEBBRRHEERBETEARLME(H
B |) 2 5 BRI B S Z MY B A RIRR B
BENADIK EEERE—RFEES -

HE2011512A31BLLEEE XEEH
—BUYFE=ZFHE KB RRI32% 2%
T B EEBUKAEESE o BREMAE
H32% IEHIERSMEREE  RABEEZ
B AR 32% HEHIEH B2 =BE A
HibEEP -

HE2012F12 A31 HIEFE » AR AR
{& 40,000,000 7 7T A1 FE 428 i) 1% 3R UK B8 — = B
B AR 10% 2 I - EWW%&E%W%#
THIERNERRE REELEZMEA
O%FLWERﬁﬁZ§ﬁaﬁkﬁ@ﬁf
F o BHZE2010F 12 A31HILEFE  A—R
BB /2 B EY 109% #E 25 AL 18 40,000,000 7 7T
€ FIEEHIAE R - 33,111,000 TE 5T A
HipEES -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meERERER

For the Year ended 31 December 2012

62

BB 2012F 1231 HIFFE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 F#TT FEL
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Profit for the year F A5 A 812,541 303,029
Adjustments for: P
Income tax FTiS#: 20,425 29,915
Share of profit of a jointly DA — R LR E 82
controlled entity i ) (1,219) (927)
Other finance costs H o 5h & KA 194,546 144,526
Interests on bank trust receipts UARE(TARE])
loans pledged with Renminbi RITERE A ERTT
(“RMB”) bank deposits BB ER 2R 81,155 60,877
Interest income FEHA (130,505) (82,893)
Interest income from ZEEFF B WA
entrusted loan - (160,710)
Gain on fair value changes of PTE I T AR ERN
derivative financial instruments B 25 (19,637) (8,495)
Gain on fair value changes of AR B S A T E
convertible bonds ZFE 701 =
Gain on deemed disposal of W AHEHEER
available for sale investments iR (23,724) —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEN B R RS (376,277) —
Depreciation of property, M - WSS REREITE
plant and equipment 80,643 54,144
Impairment on goodwill recognised TR E 10,000 40,000
Loss (gain) on disposal and s RMSEYI 2 - Hes
write-off of property, HEEBEE)
plant and equipment 262 (148)
Amortisation of land use rights 4 Hb {5 PR A §H 12,962 2,791
Amortisation of prepaid lease B ETENEE R A
payments for coast 843 825
Amortisation of other intangible H b\ B E
assets 27,023 3,977
Operating cash flows before BESREHAIZEER
movements in working capital eRE 689,739 386,911
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (8 0n) R 4> (271,975) 38,840
Decrease (increase) in trade debtors JEUE 5 BE X & FE U = 15
and bills receivable B (38 00) 96,621 (1,368,156)
Increase in other debtors, deposits ~ HMEUWERR - 24 M8
and prepayments RFRIELE N (169,229) (61,719)
Decrease (increase) in amount due  JEUL— K H A1 HIE 82 5%
from a jointly controlled entity TERL A (38 0) 493 (458)
Increase in properties under HEERPYEEM
development for sales (2,227) (158,150)
Increase in trade creditors and FERE B BRI R RN &
bills payable 0 2,084,641 602,757
(Decrease) increase in other creditors E M EERA N ETE FH
and accrued charges CRL ) & n (180,109) 65,731
Increase in properties held for sales 5B EFE WL M 30 (221,989) =
Increase in derivative financial DT B 75 T B8 hn

instruments

(25,499) (1,635)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the Year ended 31 December 2012
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BB 2012F 1231 HIFFE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FAET FEL

Cash generated from (used in) KEELE(TA)IRSEE

operations 2,000,466 (495,879)
PRC income tax paid S BIFTIS (32,645) (11,6086)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM BERBEE(FA)R&

(USED IN) OPERATING BE

ACTIVITIES 1,967,821 (507,485)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEED
Interest received 2 U FE 10,719 29,705
Interest income from entrusted loan  ZEE XA E WA - 114,995
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BT B A 7 (B 3Bk

(net of cash and cash equivalents s ziRe RERBRE

acquired) HE) 41 (523,295) -
Purchase of property, plant and BALNEYE #ER

equipment B (231,395) (275,561)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits U@ & & #4817 175K 3,790,012 1,602,406
Placement in pledged bank deposits 1M E M ERITIERK (3,633,695) (3,695,049)
Proceeds from disposal of a HE—H B A F e

subsidiary 44 146,086 —
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEM « #e2

plant and equipment &SRS 302 1,017
Acquisition of leasehold land through & 3885 At B A 71U EE &

purchase of subsidiary THE L 40 - (48,234)
Refund of deposit for acquisition of R [E U B & (b sk

LPG stations in Guangzhou PAREN & 24 104,848 —
Subscription of convertible bonds R\ RRES (80,672) —
Payment for land use rights oA A b {5 R A = (24,878)
Payment for relocating the existing EEBBRAERRRH

residents and for demolishing the UGB E L ib EHRBRET

buildings on the newly acquired FT S S B 5B

land - (85,038)
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiary WE—RB AR 2&E 24 = (69,967)
Entrusted loan repayment from an RE—BEIZZITER

entity BN 42 644,423 71,008
Purchase of available for sale BATHEERE

investment (80,809) —
Loan advance to an independent BERT—BLS

party 26 (246,655) —
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING R EFHFMARKSH

ACTIVITIES (100,131) (2,379,596)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HAERETRER

For the Year ended 31 December 2012

BE20124F 12 A 31 HILFE
2012 2011
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEFH
Interest paid BB (211,656) (144,526)
Borrowings raised E5ER 10,879,838 12,313,539
Repayment of borrowings EEER (12,140,514) (8,796,275)
Proceeds from disposal of partial HE—XWB AR D
interest in subsidiaries without R BIER AL E
losing control NAElZ IS - 10,095
Acquisition of additional interests in U E&E — KB A &) ZEIME
a subsidiary = (40,000) —
Dividend paid BRI E (30,035) (13,058)
NET CASH (USED IN) MEEE(FRHEER&
GENERATED FROM FINANCING B8
ACTIVITIES (1,542,367) 3,369,775
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HeRERRE&EEHEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS B8 325,323 482,694
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE [EF#E > ¥
RATE CHANGES (6,775) 14,720
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $#R&¢RERARELER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 877,595 380,181
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FEXBERERARESEH
AT END OF THE YEAR 1,196,143 877,595
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF R&RERRELEHSH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITEHRERE 1,196,143 877,595
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2012
B E2012F 12 A 31 HI-FZ

1.

General

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate holding
company is Uniocean Investments Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The address of
the registered office of the Company is disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Group are the sale and
distribution of liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”), sale of oil
products and sale of electronic products.

The functional currency of the Company is RMB, the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Group operates. For the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements and convenience of the financial
statements users, the results and financial position of
the Group are expressed in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.

Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying
HKAS 12 asset;

Amendments to Financial instruments: Disclosures —
HKFRS 7 Transfers of financial assets.

Except as described below, the application of the new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

ﬂ.

F—;i

RRARRBRETMK Lz EHRREE
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BERARRESBERARAR - —H
RRBEZEFEMKILZ AR » KAAF]
2 ERINFRI AR ER ] —
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ARABDNEREERAR - AEEZEE
EBREEMDH R A HR(ARL
) HERMBARHEETEMR °

ARRZNEEERARE  BRAKE
REFETERLERRZE®E - BiF
HEAWBRERR T B BHERRER
EFOAREZZBERBBIRRAET
(TBETDEEMBERRINFEEE )X
X o

ERHITRESTEEMBERE
ER((EFEMGREER])

RAFEE  AKERBATHF LS
Bing([BESERE])TRMAZEH
R REIERT BB B REER -

R Rl AEEFRIA - Yg [l
F 12 ZERTA HRAEE
BRAUHHREEL  HMBITE: KR
ENE AT =Rl

MBEE -

BR AT Rratsh - AN 2 fE A FT AT B3
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BB 2012F 1231 HIFFE
2. Application of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers of
financial assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments
to HKFRS 7 “Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets”
in the current year. The amendments increase the
disclosure requirements for transactions involving the
transfer of financial assets in order to provide greater
transparency around risk exposures when financial assets
are transferred.

The Group has arrangements with various banks to
transfer to the banks its contractual rights to receive cash
flows from certain bills receivables. The arrangements are
made through transferring the contractual cash flows of
discounting these receivables to banks on a full recourse
basis. Specifically, if the bills receivables are not paid at
maturity, the banks have the right to request the Group
to pay the unsettled balance. As the Group has not
transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to
these bills receivable, it continues to recognise the full
carrying amount of the receivables and has recognised
the cash received on the transfer as a secured borrowing
(see note 35). The relevant disclosures have been
made regarding the transfer of these bills receivable on
application of the amendments to HKFRS 7 (see note
27). In accordance with the transitional provisions set
out in the amendments to HKFRS 7, the Group has not
provided comparative information for the disclosures
required by the amendments.

ERHIREEITEEMBEERE
HN((EFBMHEEEM])2)

FEMBEREENE7TRZEBIE #HE
N - BRMBRE
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BRER M RN EEEBRTAEDN
B

AEBESHERITEXNLFABERE
TRURZBRRBR SR .26 HENEE
TIRTT - RF L VEBRRERENE
ERZERREREBBRASRL
BRENITETRITMER - AEBM
5 MERZEINNRESZN  RTH
RERAKENRBHRE - ARNAE
BAKZERKRE 2 HBEEANRR K
[ #EE - AR REERR 2 28
EEELEERERTASRE/ER
ER(RMFESS) - REREEM B RS
HAB7TRIETASEREEZSE
WRERELARERE (R E27) - RIE
BEVBRELE7RERTAMALZ
BER > AKEXRRBEFTAZKR
BEEERHLELKER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
B E2012F 12 A 31 HI-FZ

2.

Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers of

financial assets (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS

12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised

in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised

in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised

in 2011)

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) — INT 20

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009 to 2011 cycle®

Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities®

Mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 9 and transition
disclosures®

Consolidated financial
statements, joint arrangements
and disclosure of interests
in other entities: Transition
guidance?

Investment entities®

Financial instruments*

Consolidated financial
statements®
Joint arrangements®

Disclosure of interests in other
entities?
Fair value measurement?

Employee benefits®

Separate financial statements®

Investments in associates and
joint ventures?

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income’

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities®

Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine’
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BB 2012F 1231 HIFFE
2. Application of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers of
financial assets (Continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2012.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013.

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014.

- Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2015.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items
of other comprehensive income” introduce new
terminology for the statement of comprehensive income.
Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a “statement of
comprehensive income” is renamed as a “statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income”. In
addition, the amendments to HKAS 1 require items
of other comprehensive income to be grouped into
two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option
to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group
for annual periods beginning on 1 January 2013. The
presentation of items of other comprehensive income
will be modified accordingly when the amendments are
applied.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BB 2012F 1231 HIFFE
2. Application of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets
that are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” to
be subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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B E2012F 12 A 31 HI-FZ
2. Application of new and revised Hong Kong 2. ERAFITREEITEERMERS

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) #R(EFBMBHREERN (&)

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) FEMBREENFEOR MBIR

(&)

e The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the e FHENBHMEEREOREUBE
classification and measurement of financial liabilities BEOEEGTE C REAZEHUTG
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair BEUEEA ST HBEIEZATE
value of a financial liability (designated as at fair HE)ZEERBRE B S| 2B
value through profit or loss) attributable to changes BEATEZSZZREEFM
in the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under RRIRBRBEEVM B REEAF
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated 5% - BUEEEN B RIE A FER
as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of BeMBaEmNSs  BRAEZE
change in the fair value of the financial liability that ERREMEEMEL 2 A FEE
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that BERD2INEMEEKE - R
liability is presented in other comprehensive income, FEHEMPEWRERZEBEZRE
unless the recognition of the effects of changes ERREHTESEHRIBEARS
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive Lz et - MBAEEERR
income would create or enlarge an accounting BEZ AV EZSHHETSENRD
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value BERE - REBEGHENS
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not 39%% - HEBBHANABERA
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under FEFAEZUKAaEs A TEES
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the 2HERBEAZS -
fair value of the financial liability designated as at
fair value through profit or loss was presented in
profit or loss.

Based on the Group’s financial assets and financial BBRAEERZ 2012412 531 B 28t

liabilities as at 31 December 2012, the application of BEERMBAR ERASBVMBERS

HKFRS 9 will affect the classification and measurement EAFORKTEAEE 2 AIHLER

of the Group’s available for sale investments, in which the B SRENTE - R aHHEEREH

available for sale investments will either be reclassified SEBBEEUATE  HBEBEFEE NG
and measured at fair value through profit or loss or fair AR FHERENTE -

value through other comprehensive income.
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BB 2012F 1231 HIFFE
2. Application of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures was issued, including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11,
HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28
(as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described
below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements” that deal with
consolidated financial statements. HK(SIC) — INT 12
“Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities” will be
withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 10. Under
HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for consolidation,
that is, control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a new
definition of control that contains three elements: (a)
power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee,
and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect the amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with
complex scenarios.
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BB 2012F 1231 HIFFE
2. Application of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint
Ventures”. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement
of which two or more parties have joint control should be
classified. HK(SIC) — INT 13 “Jointly Controlled Entities —
Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers” will be
withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under
HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint
operations or joint ventures, depending on the rights
and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In
contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types of joint
arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled
assets and jointly controlled operations. In addition, joint
ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted
for using the equity method of accounting, whereas jointly
controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for
using the equity method of accounting or proportionate
consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current
standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional
guidance on the application of these five HKFRSs for the
first time.

These five standards will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 January 20183. The directors anticipate that
the application of these five standards will not have
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the application of the
other new and revised standards and interpretations
issued but not yet effective is not expected to have a
material effect on the consolidated financial statements.
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BB 2012F 1231 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.
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BE20124F 12 A 31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance (effective
from 1 January 2010 onwards).

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.
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BE20124F 12 A 31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable
to them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognise as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable
to the Group. When assets of the subsidiary are carried
at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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BB 2012F 1231 HIFFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are measured in accordance with that
Standard.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable on the basis specified in another
Standard.
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BE20124F 12 A 31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 “Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets”, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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BE20124F 12 A 31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known,
would have affected the amounts recognised as of that
date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units, (or groups
of cash-generating units), that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
associate or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.
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BE20124F 12 A 31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Appropriate adjustments have
been made to conform the associate’s accounting
policies to those of the Group. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associates. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of an associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The
requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group
losing significant influence over that associate, any
retained investment is measured at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS
39. The difference between the previous carrying amount
of the associate attributable to the retained interest and
its fair value is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when it loses significant influence over that
associate.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Jointly controlled entities

Jointly venture arrangements that involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which ventures have
jointly control over the economic activity of the entity are
referred to as jointly controlled entities.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities of the jointly controlled entity recognised at the
date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in a jointly
controlled entity. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled
entity, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the jointly controlled entity are recognised in the
Group’ consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are
not related to the Group.

The financial statements of jointly controlled entities
used for equity accounting consolidation purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Appropriate adjustments have been
made to conform the jointly controlled entity’s accounting
policies to those of the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received and receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course
of business, net of discounts, sales related taxes, returns
and allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial assets to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purpose other than construction in
progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off
the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or administrative purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and for qualifying assets,
borrowing cost capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property, plant and equipment, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid
lease payment provided during the construction period is
included as part of costs of building under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when
they are in the location and condition necessary for them
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Properties under development for sales

Properties under development for sales are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
both the land use rights and development cost for the
property. Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

Development cost of property comprises construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to the
Group’s accounting policy and directly attributable cost
incurred during the development period. On completion,
the properties are transferred to properties held for sales.

Properties held for sales

Properties held for sales are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill and
are initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of CGU for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-
out method.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which
they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations recorded at the functional currency are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in

profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “land use
rights” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expenses
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items of income or expenses that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, interests in associates and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the current and
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Retirement benefit cost

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
scheme and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets except for derivative financial
instruments (see policy below) are classified as loans and
receivables, held for trading investments and available
for sale investment assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”)

A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (including convertible bonds
and derivative financial instruments) are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets and is included in
the other gains and losses line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables including bank balances and cash,
pledged bank deposits, trade debtors, amount due
from an associate, bills receivable and other debtors
and refundable deposits are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or held to maturity investments.

Equity held by the Group that are classified as available-
for-sale and are traded in an active market are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in the fair value of available-for-sale equity investment
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment
loss or financial assets below).
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financing re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
debtors and bills receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.
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BE20124F 12 A 31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade debtors and other debtors, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the
impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed through profit or loss.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investments revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in according with the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received
net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

FEEBREE)
MBIRE)
MEZERE(E)

AHHEREREREBERST2EB
B m - BEBRR ZEAQFEE
MEEENEMEE W aiER - YR
RIEEEMFHE -

MBERER B

KREEBRTICMBREMEATAT
RiARLHZEE BMBEEE LB
TAZEENDBAVHAENELE -

BATA

BATADERARAEERBAEAE
BeBETHENGRGE ZEAAR -
ARRBEITZRATARNKRBEEZEET
PR 2 B WER P S SRIRFERR ©

I}

BRFYF%

\
/

BRI A T S B 0B 2 B
REAMBNESFBZEY 5% - B
RFE T A AR RS M R(BED
S SR — )28 P R B - LUK
BRI 22 5 B AN TR A OB o 4
M ENBAE BBER LRGN
RI(M 2 ) BT E 15 A 2 5
EFE2FIE -

M EX R BRI R EEER -



Annual Report 2012 =—Z—ZF 51

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE B HmRA T

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE20124F 12 A 31 HILFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (other than derivative financial
liabilities) including trade creditors and bills payable,
other creditors, amount due to a jointly controlled entity,
payable to non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives (including embedded derivatives which are
not closely related to the host contracts) that are not
designated as hedging instrument are classified as held
for trading.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date the derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Call option on non-financial assets

A written option to sell non-financial assets that requires
physical delivery of the underlying assets and is not
readily convertible to cash is not accounted for as
a derivative under HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement”. The call option is initially
measured at fair value and subsequently carried at
cost less impairment if the fair value cannot be reliably
measured.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments (Continued)
Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet
the definition of a derivative when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit and
loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustments
to share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
the share option reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.
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4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the management are
required to make estimates about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets

Determining whether goodwill and other intangible
assets relating to the sale and distribution of LPG and
acquired in a business combination are impaired that
requires estimation of the recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost
to sell and value in use. The group performed impairment
assessment by estimating the value in use of the cash-
generating unit in which the goodwill and the intangible
asset are attributable to, which approximately the fair
value less cost to sell. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. The discount rate represents the rate that reflects
the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected or
where there are revision in future estimated cash flows
due to unfavourable changes in facts and circumstances,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2012, the carrying amounts of goodwill and other
intangible assets are approximately HK$289,608,000 and
HK$359,036,000 respectively (2011: HK$96,429,000
and HK$8,929,000). For the year ended 31 December
2012, there was an impairment loss of HK$10,000,000
(2011: HK$40,000,000) on goodwill recognised due
to continuous thin profit margin and low cash inflows
generated in three CGUs in recent years (2011: three
CGUs different from the three CGUs in 2012). Details of
the goodwill and other intangible assets are disclosed in
notes 20 and 21 respectively.
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4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)

Estimate of net realisable value of properties under
development for sales and properties held for sales

As at 31 December 2012, properties under development
for sales of approximately HK$188,060,000 (2011:
HK$185,867,000) and properties held for sales of
approximately HK$221,989,000 (2011: nil) are stated at
the lower of the cost and net realisable value respectively.
The estimated net realisable value is estimated selling
price less selling expenses and estimated cost of
completion which are estimated based on best available
information. Where there are any decrease in the
estimated selling price arising from any changes to the
market conditions in the PRC, there may be impairment
loss recognised on the properties under development and
properties held for sales.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings as disclosed in note 35,
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued capital and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the
cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues, payment of dividends and the
raise of bank borrowings or the repayment of the existing
bank borrowings.
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during
the year.

Categories of financial instruments

BREAREERMBIA(Z)

BEEBER(E)

FRAEERBERRETE -

REIAZER

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
Financial assets MBEE
Loans and receivables (including ERRERFIE(RIE
cash and cash equivalents) RekZERBEEER) 7,900,535 7,991,804
Convertible bonds AR ES 79,971 =
Available for sale investment AHHERE 80,809 3,701
Derivative financial instruments PTEKT A 6,906 74,5630
Financial liabilities MBaRE
Amortised cost BEIHRR 9,493,360 8,535,568
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBTA 31,418 106,727
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERRERBRRBE

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, entrusted
loan, borrowings, trade debtors and bills receivable,
other debtors, deposits, convertible bonds, available for
sale investment, amount due from an associate, trade
creditors and bills payable, other creditors, payable
to non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and
derivative financial instruments. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. R¥EREERMBIAZ)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERREEARRBE(Z)
(Continued)
Market risk e
(i) Currency risk 0 EEELE

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. Certain trade
debtors, bank balances and cash, pledged
bank deposits and borrowings of the Group are
denominated in foreign currencies as disclosed in
notes 26, 29 and 35 respectively. Approximately
44% (2011: 26%) of the Group’s sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entities making the sale,
whilst almost 50% (2011: 21%) of costs are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity’s functional currency.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as

RARATHEBRE G AINEE
BZEE SASKEEAZINER
o ASEEETREKEZER
BT RES  EEFAETRHE
REER UINEEEBGERE
DRIRAH 5526 ~ 20 R 35HE) »
NEBE 2 HEF 444% (2011 -
26% ) ABBETHEZASEE
BRZMEEEUIINEETERE
50% (2011 : 21%) B AR A A &£ &
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REBEUIINEHNBE EBEER
B AERERBHZEREAER
T

follows:
Liabilities
AR
2012
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET FETT FET
United States Dollars E~ViH
(“USD”) (I=xl) 173,794 168,516 1,266,270 1,562,638
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR
(TARE]) 2,553,571 3,553,178 366,641 35,703
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

During the financial years, the management has
entered into several foreign currency forward
contracts to reduce the exposure of currency
risk. As at 31 December 2012, the Group has
outstanding foreign currency forward contracts and
cross currency interest rate swap contracts with
an aggregate notional amount of USD433,313,000
(2011: USD816,921,000) in relation to RMB. The
details of the derivative financial instruments are
disclosed in note 51.

In addition, two (2011: two) subsidiaries of the
Group with functional currency of USD have
intergroup balances that are denominated in RMB,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

Sensitivity analysis

Since the exchange rate of HKD is pegged with
USD, the currency risk is mainly arising from
exchange USD against RMB and RMB against USD.
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% increase and decrease in USD against RMB
and a 5% increase and decrease in the RMB/USD
spot rate and forward exchange rate. 5% represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in the RMB/USD exchange rate and
the RMB/USD forward exchange rate. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and foreign currency
forward contracts and adjusts their translation at the
year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates
or their fair value at the year end for a 5% change
in forward exchange rate. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit where RMB
strengthen 5% against USD. For a 5% weakening of
RMB against the relevant currency, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit and the
balances below would be negative.
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

REARETEERMBIA(Z)

MERBREEZARRME(E)

mEmE(E)

() EEERE)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRE DT (&)
USD impact RMB impact
AR#RE
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FAET FAET
Increase (decrease) in 4 A% Al 0
profit for the year OR )
(Note) (K1:%)
— monetary assets — EBEER
and liabilities =L 41,918 60,338 94,375 152,141
— derivative financial — PTEM
instruments aC &L (9,449) (114,390) - —

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding on bank balances, receivables, payables
and borrowings denominated in USD or RMB and
derivative financial instruments as at year end.

The following table details the sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in USD against RMB in
respect of the Group’s foreign currency exposure
on intergroup balances. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used by the management in the assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding RMB denominated amounts due
between subsidiaries of the Group and adjusts its
translation at the year end for a 5% change in RMB
rates. A positive number below indicates increase in
post-tax profit for the year where RMB strengthens
5% against USD.
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial BEFRREERMBIAZ)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEmEE(E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EEEE(E)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRRE DT (&)
For a 5% weakening of RMB against USD there fif AERBE R ETT T 5% » Alg ¥
would be an equal and opposite impact on the AT F RBR B 18 0 F = £ F0 55 A
post-tax profit for the year below: Rzs2
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFETT FET
increase (decrease) in post-tax FRBRELE = T
profit for the year A Cri) 6,331 (8,058)
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is BIEERE  BRFERERIT TR
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange MERNZER - WERE ST
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the RETRE B IMNER R o
exposure during the year.
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FEE

The Group’s bank loans and loan receivable
included in other debtors have exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on variable-rate bank
loans which charge interest at prevailing market
rates.

In addition, the Group has exposure to fair value
interest rate risk through the impact of the rate
changes on pledged bank deposits and borrowings
which are at fixed interest rates. The Group’s fair
value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-
rate borrowings (see note 35 for details of these
borrowings) and derivative financial instruments
including pay fixed and receive floating interest rate
swaps. The purpose of the Group to enter interest
rate swap is to reduce the cash flow interest rate
risk but does not fulfill the hedge accounting
requirement.

UBRITH G KRG8 2% BIRTT
BERR EUE R (FT A E MR
B)Z SN RE) - AEE 2R
TERTAERSREN KRR -

AN - MR B E B B IR ERTT
FRREREBEREE  AUAEHE
AEH R FENERER - AEE
ZAFENERREZSRERE
REZFERZFIFFHRMES5)
ETEMBIA  BRESXNR
F R o RERER] LA K2
HzENERERERENEE
B B ATFEEITEETENR -
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of LIBOR, HIBOR and interest rate
of People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s
variable-rate borrowings and partially set off by the
derivative financial instruments including pay fixed
and receive floating interest rate swaps.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for variable-rate borrowings, excluding the exposure
from the bank borrowings offset by the derivative
financial instruments including pay fixed and
received floating interest rate swaps. The analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of outstanding
balances at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December
2012 would decrease/increase by HK$6,691,000
(2011: HK$3,787,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank borrowings, excluding the
exposure from the bank borrowings offset by the
derivative financial instruments including pay fixed
and received floating interest rate swaps.

REARETEERMBIAE)

MERREEARREE(Z)

mEmeE(E)

(i)

T =@ (&

AEBEZHBREMNEREBRFER
RAMERBE SRR EE &
AEEZRERENXAREESE
RRAKHE - FERERELEZBH
RITERFE - BERITRRFE
KA BARRITHEZKE - WK
ITEMBTABREE S RF
BB =) 8

BURE DT

AT U ST TS R B SRR
B R R R 5 LA (2
B R BB ) S 2
RITERER)EE - DI HBR
N2 B AR 2 BHEBR 2
IR BRI - 50EEH 2
R REE B HRIE 2 AR
BEEL 2 5 -

i A R85 50 & £ 25 B Fr A E
ZE2012F 12 A31 B IEFE 2%
F #5 kA #85016,691,0007%8 T
(2011 : 3,787,000/ 7L) * EX &
MR ALEZZ S RITHEREEF
KRB (NEERTEMETAE
BEE B RF B UEURER) K 34
ZIRITE AR
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BB 2012F 1231 HIFFE
5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group has significant concentration risk on certain
customers and the loan advance to an entity. As at
31 December 2012, eight (2011: three) customers
amounted approximately HK$1,385,745,000 (2011:
HK$1,592,360,000) and comprised around 81% (2011:
82%) of the Group’s trade debtors. Among the eight
customers, seven (2011: three) of them are customers
engaged in sales and distribution of LPG who are located
in the PRC and Thailand (2011: the PRC and Thailand),
representing 68% of the total trade receivable, while the
remaining one (2011: nil) customer is engaged in sales
of electronic products who is located Thailand (2011:
nil), representing 13% of the total trade receivable as at
31 December 2012. Most of the customers of the Group
are large wholesales and trading companies in the PRC
or overseas. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group is responsible to implement
credit monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debtors, other debtors and deposits at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ranking
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

REARETEERMBIRA(Z)

MERBREEZARRBE(E)

15 7 5%

R2012F 12 A31H - B¥ 5 T ETT
EEMSAEEZIUBIERZRS
SERRIRE S B REEGRS B RE
I vEBAUMBEEZERAME - &
EERELEEFERE—RERBRHEZ
BEREmMHEERZEFRERER - 1K2012
F12H31H 8%(2011:3% ) K F
H# {E #91,385,745,000% JL(2011 :
1,592,360,000/87T) ' G AL EEUE
5 B X 4181% (2011 : 82%) - 84 &
P 782011 :3%) AR F B &
ZE(2011 : FEAEKFE)REHE K
DEBIERZEE  (hEWE SRR E
§568% CMER N1 & (2011 ¢ %ﬁ)%}f/ﬁ\u
f RZEE(2011: )R EHEEETE
(52012F 12 A31 B2 EWE 5k
TRABEE13% - AEBAIMNEL AHE
FKBIMLERE S AR - BREEER
R AEEEREARETEEELRE
Fr - LARE(R BREN IR # 17 &) 2R Uk [2] 38 B BR
Ko BE  AEEBEZMEBR 255
BEER Z B E Z AR - EAbEUGR
HEZEEZAREER - LERENE
TREW Bl 2 SRIBMEH B 5 2 B8 o

HRXZHF I REREEFREERT
ERBEENRZRT WRBESRZ
EERBRAR -

13
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Equity price risk on available for sale investment

The Group’s available for sale investment as disclosed in
note 43 are measured at fair value as at 31 December
2012. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity price
risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
reporting date. A 10% (2011: Nil) change is used when
reporting equity price risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change inequity price. For
the year ended 31 December 2012, if the market bid
prices of the listed investments had been 10% (2011: Nil)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s investment valuation reserve for the year
ended 31 December 2012 would increase/decrease by
HK$6,748,000 (2011: Nil). This is mainly attributable to
the changes in fair value of the listed equity investments.

Equity price risk on convertible bonds

The Group is required to estimate the fair value of the
convertible bonds as disclosed in note 43 as at year
ended 31 December 2012 with changes in fair value to
be recognised in profit or loss as long as the convertible
bonds are outstanding. The fair value adjustment will be
affected either positively or negatively, amongst others,
by the changes in market interest rate, share price and
its volatility of the convertible bonds issuer.

REARETEERMBIA(Z)

MERREEARRBEZ)

AT (41 B 1 5 1 3 (R 4 I B

AREBE Al HERE (R 43 E)
T3R8 2012512 A31 B Z A E & -
Fit - NEB L RS ERER -

BEBER I

T XAt 2 BREE DT IR ERE B
HAX 2 ERERRRETE - 10%
(2011 )2 BHARABRAEEE
BEAERSESERRAR  TREE
HEHERERA AL EE) 2 51 -
REZE2012F 12431 H IEFE + 4
EHREZMBEG LR, TEK10%
(2011 : EB)RFTEHEMEHERTT
B RAAEERE E2012%F12 A 31
BItFEZ2RESHFEESEN B
6,748,000/ 75 (2011 : &) » W HEE
MR LRSI EAFERETR -

TR R AR A mAEE

AEEAEGBFEHZE 2012 F12 A31 B 1k
FE BB ES (R4 R 2 A
FE MRABABBRESER LR K
EEBEREIERAFLEES - AFE
AKX (EPEE) T RRkESFT
AZKREZEHREEIE EMREB A

@,
=
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Equity price risk on convertible bonds (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to the change of share price
and its volatility of the convertible bonds issuer at the
end of the reporting period. If the share prices of those
convertible bonds issuer had been 5% higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-
tax profit for the year increase/decrease by approximately
HK$3,042,000, as a result of changes in fair value of
convertible bonds.

If the volatility of share prices of those convertible
bonds issuer had been 5% higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$3,042,000, as a result of changes in fair value of
convertible bonds.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses are
unrepresentative of the inherent market risk as the pricing
model used in the fair value valuation of convertible
bonds involves multiple variables and certain variables
are interdependent.

REARETEERMBIRA(Z)

MERBREEZARRBE(E)

ARREFERAEmE(E)
HEE DT

TXBEE DT T IRIE A R AR E 5 31T
ARSHEPARE S 2 REL S K H IR
METE - WS BRRESFBITAZK
BEFT¥5% A HEMmEese
BAE  AEEZAFERREZHG
0,98 A 493,042,000 7T 0 JhE R
AR ESZTET A AT EEE T
g( o

WZEATRBREFBEITAZREKRE L
F/ TFE5% ¢ AT AL AR
B REB 2 ARFERRTBE )& F N
/R #93,042,0008 7T - T A AT
RfEH 2 R EEBPTE

EEERA  ARABEES 2 AFE
fEEMAZEBERA S RZBEH - M
ATEHRBEIKRE  MHEBESHT
RERBREH 2 TS EE -
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has undrawn
short term borrowing facilities with floating rate
amounting to approximately HK$8,872,725,000 (2011:
HK$6,531,798,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derive from interest rate
carries at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments (excluding
the call option). The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted contractual net cash (inflows) and
outflows on derivative instruments that settle on a net
basis. When the amount payable is not fixed, the amount
disclosed has been determined by reference to the
projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves
existing at the end of the reporting period. The liquidity
analysis for the Group’s derivative financial instruments
are prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management consider that the contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash
flows of derivatives.

BERBRETERMBIA S

MERREEARREEZ)

AR mE

EEERBDECRARE  NEEEER
REEEERRENIRERFRARE
BEEE UASAKEZEHEERMH
BeWRERERENB2FE - BR
BERRITERZERBRREREST
BERI2H -

MN2012FE 12 A31 B » REE 7 KIEE
EEZEEREEL A8,872,725,000
B (2011 : 6,531,798,00057T) °

TRANAKREFRTENBREZHT
BHZEMBR - TROLERAEER
AEEVMBREZEF AR ZARITRE
EREMBRE - TRERBMNERAEZ
REnE - Wi SRERNFEM R
B AR ST 2 MEIR 2 T =4

o

0 o

BEAN s TREFINAKETEMBFTA
(TEERBHR) ZRBES DN - %
REBBNFEAE ZITETARUR
BHRZOIA) RHFERE - B
MRIBLIFEEER - AIRESEEL2ZE
M ERIR 2 Wz th 4R P 238 2 TRE A
REE - AKETEMBTRAZRBHE
EOMDRBEHIHARE  REAR
BEERRENIBNEHERITATA
ZEEREBZHHEZHEE -
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk table

Weighted
average

effective
interest rate
miEFsy
ERE

%

2012 2012
Non-derivative financial ~ 3FATAMKAR
liabilities
Trade creditors and ENESRTRE
bills payable DES: =
Other creditors Hi RN
Amount due to a jointly  [EfTEREEEE
controlled entity g | =
Payable to non- ER—RHBAT
controlling FEHRE
shareholder of a ]
subsidiary =
Fixed interest rates EBER
borrowings 3.14
Variable interest rate FRER
borrowings 2.7
Derivatives — net fTHIE -
settlement EEEFE
Foreign currency NE R
forward contracts =X ahiony
outflow =
Cross currency interest RN &HF|&
rate swap/interest =8/ F%
rate swap outflow R =

e

BERBREERMBIA S

MERREEZARRYE(E)

ROELmEE(E)

B E T RFFmBRSFR

Carrying

amount at

Total 31 December

undiscounted 2012

Within 2yearsto  cash flows R2012%F

1 year 5 years HRER 12A31H
15/ 25F5% ReRE ZIBEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
3,258,442 - - 3,258,442 3,258,442
153,128 2,061 - 155,189 155,189
493 - - 493 493
5,550 - - 5,550 5,550
3,530,761 45,512 6,527 3,582,800 3,522,543
2,449,237 127,163 23,119 2,599,519 2,570,763
9,397,611 174,736 29,646 9,601,993 9,512,980
3,166 - - 3,166 3,166
15,736 5,384 637 21,757 21,346
18,902 5,384 637 24,923 24,512
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk table (Continued)

5. RExEAREBRMBIAE)

MERREEZARRYE(E)

ROELmEE(E)

RBET RFFmEZ% (&)

Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total 31 December
effective undiscounted 2011
interest rate Within Over 2 years to cash flows 12011 &
MEFH 1 year 1 year 5 years BRER 12R31H
EEF % 1ER 1€ E 2EELE Remeg ZREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
2011 2011
Non-derivative financial ~ FEATABB AR
liabilities
Trade creditors and EHESRTRE
bills payable ES — 1,074,288 - ~ 1074288 1,074,288
Other creditors iR - 247,676 23,227 - 270,903 270,903
Payable to non- EN—ZMBAR
controlling FEHRE 2
shareholder of a ;B
subsidiary 5,550 - - 5,550 5,550
Fixed interest rates EEER
borrowings 2.58 2,347,072 2,506,383 35,163 4,888,618 4,769,799
Variable interest rate EEET
borrowings 2.63 2,128,064 225,425 147,105 2,500,594 2,457,928
5,802,650 2,755,035 182,268 8,739,953 8,578,468
Derivatives — net fTHTIE -
settlement BEFE
Foreign currency SN
forward contracts BHRA
inflow (8,165) (5,950) - (14,115) (14,115)
Cross currency interest & X &M A=
rate swap/interest B /Fx
rate swap outflow ki hioken 76,694 8,357 6,976 92,027 92,027
68,529 2,407 6,976 77,912 77,912
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)
Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis and dealer
quotes for similar instruments.

° the fair values of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices;

° the fair value of derivative financial instruments
is made of discounted cash flow analysis using
the applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives; and

o the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative financial instrument)
are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

BREAREERMBIA(E)

AFE

MBEERMBRE(TEENTETR)
ZRFEDRFBERSRED T AR
TARRRERELAREEEAETE -

o IIREFFKMRHLNERRE T
LEBECMBEEZ A TEZER
B EEMERE

e DTEMBIARFENEAKIRGE
TN DASFRENTA T A ZHIRE
Bz RiREtE - MANEITE
TRAAREEERNGFE : &

s HuMBEEMIKABZAFE
(TMEEMEMBIR)RERRS
MEDMZ AREBEANERE -

EER/NEEUBHERTIZEHAA
TR BEERYHARZRHMESR
HRFERE -
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Fair value (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based

on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.

derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

REARETEERMBIA(Z)

DFE(E)
RUBRAEREZ L FEHE (E)

TREHOTURXTFEERRITEZH
BLTADH  HERABEAFERED
R—E=R -

s E—HRNTVEFEDHACDHEMNEE
KB ERIFRRT ST @R B
(RAB)EH

s FRAFEAETIREMEA
ZHmESN BEEXBBEAEE
(AER)HEE(BERITE)
SPARESH -

o  FHAFEAENFALIERE
ABEMSHBR(ELIERA AR
B ZBEXBEZHEINESH

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets RiBm iz - FlEFE
at FVTPL L EEE
Convertible bonds Al RARES - - 79,971 79,971
Derivative financial PTEMBTA
instruments — 6,906 - 6,906
Available for sale AR ERE
investments
Listed equity securities LEiERE S 80,809 - - 80,809
Total PR 80,809 6,906 79,971 167,686
Financial liabilities RIBa G- FlEFE
at FVTPL BB E
Derivative financial PTESIFT A
instruments — 31,418 — 31,418
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Fair value (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position (Continued)

REARETEERMBIRA(Z)

DFEE)
RHUBRAEEEZ T EE(E)

2011
Level 2 Level 3
FE_ FE=
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets RiBm iz A F1E
at FVTPL FTECHBEE
Derivative financial PTEMBTA
instruments — 74,530 — 74,530
Financial liabilities RiBa g FE
at FVTPL FTEZHEEE
Derivative financial PTEMBTA
instruments — 106,727 — 106,727

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the
current and prior year.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of
financial assets:

BE—RRBE_FzRERNFERBESF
B REBER -

MBEEZE=RNFEAEHE

Convertible

bonds

designated

as FVTPL

EESREAR

BOATFEHAEZ

] # B% R &

HK$’000

FET

At initial recognition R 25 T SR B 80,672
Losses recognised in profit or loss RIBRERZEE (701)
At 31 December 2012 Mm20124 12 A 31 H 79,971

Of the total losses for the year included in profit or loss,
HK$701,000 relates to convertible bonds held at the end

of the reporting period (2011: nil).

FRBELES - 5T AEzE 2701,000
BILHR2FREPRTEZ AT RKES

(2011 : &) o
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6. Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received
and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less discount, related taxes and returns and
rental income of LPG bottles for the year. An analysis of
the Group’s revenue from continuing operations for the
year is as follows:

2012 2011

A

WA EEAXRKBRIREPHESR
an W K RSB 2 & B ORI H0 - B RE
MEMRE) LEERERBEAZ A
FE-AF AEEHFEXBHLRLZ
WADHIT

HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FEL
Continuing operations XS
Sale and distribution of LPG HE &P HRIER 11,544,049 9,151,443
Sale of electronic products HEEFEM 886,410 941,715
Rental of LPG bottles HERERIE 25,917 23,485
12,456,376 10,116,643
7. Segment Information SHEH

Information reported to the Chairman of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”), for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on nature and location
of the goods being sold. These revenue streams and
the basis of the internal reports about components of
the Group are regularly reviewed by the CODM in order
to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance. No operating segments identified by the
CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

RERHERHARRFETAARR
TEEEEEEREE(TBEER
HEDSHLANEPRUERR 21
WRIE - T BEEREE T DED X
2 A FOR A B S 5 29 PO 26 9
2P HEERT S S BRI
EHBER - TEMBPRAFEREARE
BB 5 LR HEL R - BmBN
TRSEZ BERT -



Annual Report 2012 =—Z—ZF 51

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE B HmRA T

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE20124F 12 A 31 HILFE
7. Segment Information (Continued)

In previous years, specifically, the Group’s reported and
operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. Sales and distribution of LPG through Zhuhai
terminal and in the international market

2. Sales and distribution of LPG through retail
networks in the PRC and Macau

3. Sales of electronic products

The above reportable and operating segments were
based on the product type as well as the location of the
market and the type of customers. During the year ended
31 December 2012, CODM’s focus has been changed
after the expansion of the LPG business through the
acquisition of the LPG retail network in Guangzhou and
the setup of a new subsidiary to engage in sales of oil
products to marine transportation customers such as
vessels and cargo ships in Hong Kong. From May 2012
onward, information provided to CODM for performance
assessment and resources allocation is based on product
type only, regardless of the location of market and the
type of customers. The basis is consistent with the
Group’s long term business strategy. The Group is now
organized into the following major operating segments,
each of which represents an operating and reportable
segment of the Group:

1. Sales and distribution of LPG — This segment
derives its revenue from selling of LPG to various
customers including wholesalers, industrial
customer, auto-gas operators, overseas customers,
bottled LPG end-users, auto-gas end-users etc. The
operation is carried out in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Macau for both onshore and offshore customers.

2.  Sales and distribution of oil products — This segment
derives its revenue from selling of oil products to
marine transportation customers in Hong Kong.

3. Sales of electronic products — This segment derives
its revenue from trading of electronic products such
as integrated circuit and mobile phones etc.

SBRHEE)

RIBEER - 5B RRIEE B8 1 s
RAFSY  AEEZ2RREES S
m

1. BEWREGBEREEETSEER
DIEBIER

2. BAPERRMFAZTEREHEERD
HBRIER

3. HEETEM

L 2R EESBDAERBE LT
BUBEREFEEMET - REE2012
F12A31BLEFEAN AREBKE
EMNZEREEETRIEIES KR
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ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
B E2012F 12 A 31 HI-FZ

7.

Segment Information (Continued)

Amount reported for the prior year have been restated to
conform to the current year’s basis of segmentation.

In December 2012, the Group lost the control on the
subsidiaries that engaged in the segment of sales and
distribution of oil products and thus became discontinued
operation. The details of the discontinued operation is
set out in note 12. Information regarding above segments
except for sales and distribution of oil products is
reported below.

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2012

SBRHEE)

REREEZ D ‘*E HE-F AKBECEE
JBEFEMER I EHE -

m

R2012F12 8 - AEELE MRS

HE &Ko K mAZH B RR ZES

T WK BIEFEER - IEFBEB

%i’\ %‘Wﬁﬁ.&m LA b5 sE 2 &R
D SERK SRR IN) 23RN o

SBBARRA

AT RBEBH AR EENEEI D 2K
SEWRAREEDH

BFE2012F 12531 HILFE

Sales and Sales of
distribution electronic
of LPG products Consolidated
HER e
S@RILE BFES e
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FRET FET
Continuing operations BEER
Segment revenue D EEU A 11,569,966 886,410 12,456,376
Segment profit o ¥ m A 529,465 87,650 617,115
Other interest income HAbFI B UA 130,505
Central administration costs and RREEN AR
directors’ salaries EE=n (58,630)
Changes in fair values TEFBTIEATEZ
of derivative financial instruments g2 19,637
Changes in fair values AMRRESATEZ
of convertible bonds phr i (701)
Gain on deemed disposal WRAEHETHEE
of available for sale investments ®EE 23,724
Impairment on goodwill R (E (10,000)
Finance costs RE R AR (275,701)
Profit before taxation (continuing BRI (FEEX)
operations) 445,949
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7. Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Restated)

SERHEE)
SEABMARRRE(E)

#HFE2011F 12531 HILEE(EF)

Sales and Sale of
distribution electronic
of LPG products Consolidated
DEERIER BEFfEMm RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Continuing operations XY
Segment revenue ZE LN 9,174,928 941,715 10,116,643
Segment profit b2k bl 300,487 66,441 366,928
Other interest income H A WA 243,603
Central administration costs and FREEKNARESEHS
directors’ salaries (40,679)
Change in fair values of derivative ~ $TE#B K TEAFEZ
financial instruments i 8,495
Impairment on goodwill EESEAIE (40,000)
Finance costs RUE AN (205,403)
Profit before taxation BR 75 B 1
(continuing operations) (FEXER) 332,944

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. All of the segment revenue reported above
is from external customers. Segment profit represents
the profit earned by each segment without allocation
of central administration costs and directors’ salaries,
impairment on goodwill, changes in fair values of
derivative financial instruments, changes in fair values of
convertible bonds, gain on deemed disposal of available
for sale investments, other interest income and finance

costs.

EBWNBCEABREAERAEENMES
Pt ) & 5T ERERARR » L X P2 2 P
B BBABRBINBES - 78R F
BEDBRDETREEKNARESRH
T AERE - TEMBIARFEZ
N ABREESFAFEZSRE - B8
R/REERAHEEREMRS - R 2K
AR BE KRR S A o
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BB 2012F 1231 HIFFE
7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. S¥EBHEE)
Segment assets and liabilities SHEERAR

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and NTREEESREDZEAEEEER

liabilities by operating segment: BEDH :
Segment assets PHEEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
(Restated)
(EZ%l)
Continuing operations RS
Sales and distribution of LPG HE kD HRIEE 5,091,644 3,870,966
Sale of electronic products HEBTEM 606,410 457,296
> Total segment assets BHKEEE 5,698,054 4,328,262
6 Available for sale investment AR ERE 80,809 3,701
Convertible bonds AR E S 79,971 =
Deferred tax assets EIER TS E = 1,304 1,781
Bank balances and cash RITAEBRNEIRE 1,196,143 877,595
Pledged bank deposits BRI TER 4,056,010 4,209,577
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMBTEA 6,906 74,530
Entrusted loan ZEER - 644,423
Properties under development FEERTME
for sales (Note) (H&) 188,060 185,867
Properties held for sales (Note) BEGEMENZ) 221,989 =
Interests in associates Bt N A HE = 231,722 =
Other unallocated assets EfRDBLEE 592,179 296,399
Consolidated assets HEBE 12,353,147 10,622,135

Note: The Group has a subsidiary engages in the property
investment and development in the PRC which is
considered as ordinary course of business. The operating
results and other financial information of this subsidiary are
not reviewed by the CODM for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessments.

Mg - AEEZ —RNBAREEREZY

ERARYR  WRABRES -
EREARELARSRERRER
BRI B A A2 BEE R
BER -
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#E 2012412 531 AILFE
7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEBHEE)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHERERARE)
Segment liabilities SHEEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ETT FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations BIEXS
Sales and distributions of LPG HE kD #HBR(ER 3,416,868 1,315,332
Sale of electronic products HEETEM 15 129
Total segment liabilities BAEAE 3,416,883 1,315,461
Derivative financial instruments ST T A 31,418 106,727
Tax liabilities MBaE 40,063 44,790
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEE 145,661 21,461
Borrowings fEK 6,093,306 7,207,727 127
Other unallocated liabilities HEMARDEBE 40,840 58,434

Consolidated liabilities o= 9,768,171 8,774,600
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7.

Segment Information (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to reportable segments
(other than available for sale investment, convertible
bonds, deferred tax assets, bank balances and
cash, pledged bank deposits, derivative financial
instruments, interests in associates, entrusted loan
and certain other assets, certain other receivables,
properties under development for sales, properties
held for sales and certain property, plant and
equipment); and

all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
(other than current and deferred tax liabilities, bank
borrowings, derivative financial instruments and
certain other payables).

The Group has allocated goodwill to the relevant
segments as segment assets without allocating the
related impairment of goodwill recognised to the
respective segment.

SERHEE)
AWRERARE)

MEEDBRARDBZEERD B

if

BEENEREZYB(AIHH
ERE - TRRES  BEHBE
E - RITEHLEES - BERRT
TR PTEMBITA BEQF
f#m - ZAERNETHMHEE -
ETHMEEER  FEERTY
X REGENERETHE #
28 RSN - I

s MEBBREBEIEREHRMDR(BIHAR
ERERIERE ~ RITER - 0T
BTARETEMEMKERIN)

AEBEHEED
MEE BRED
BEEEMEOME -

EEZEBEIBIERD
Fic © 7 o0 AH R 7 B R



Annual Report 2012 =—Z—ZF 51

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2012

B E2012F 12 A 31 HI-FZ
7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. S¥EBHEE)
Other segment information Htt &
Continuing operations FFHEEH
For the year ended 31 December 2012 B F 20124 12 A 31 HIFFF

Sales and Sale of
distribution electronic
of LPG products Unallocated Consolidated
HER
DEAILR XS E =a
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET FET FEIT
Amounts included inthe  FtEHERFsk5H
measure of segment BEERTAZ
profit or segment BFE
assets:
Addition to non-current NEFERDEE
asset (Note) (W) 876,491 - - 876,491
Depreciation of property, — ¥1% - #25 KR4
plant and equipment ZHE 80,522 - 91 80,613
Amortisation of other H A &
intangible assets 27,023 - - 27,023
Amortisation of land use b fd FRERE Y
rights 3,257 - 9,705 12,962
Amortisation of prepaid B EREMAEER
lease payments for iy
coast 843 - - 843
Loss on disposal and S RMEE
written off of property, BN EE
plant and equipment &8 262 - - 262
Shares of profit of a jointly 715 — K £ RI1ZEH
controlled entity BERaM (1,219) - - (1,219)
Amounts regularly THERFELE
provided to the chief REREBKREIE
operating decision A5 s 5k &S
maker but not included B2ER
in the measure of
segment profit or loss:
Impairment of goodwill EREERE
recognised 10,000 - - 10,000
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7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. S¥EBHEE)
Other segment information (Continued) Hth o EEHEE)
Continuing operations (Continued) 1FEER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Restated)

BHZE2011F 1231 HIFFE(EZ)

130

Sales and Sale of
distribution electronic
of LPG products  Unallocated Consolidated
D EBIERE EFEM ROHE RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FET FET FET
Amounts included in the FtE2 D EEFsk D
measure of segment HEERTTAZ
profit or segment S8
assets:
Addition to non-current  IERIERENE
asset (Note) (Kiaz) 298,817 — 185,867 484,684
Depreciation of property, #3 - #23 K &iE
plant and equipment e 54,026 — 118 54,144
Amortisation of other E T & B
intangible assets 3,977 — — 3,977
Amortisation of land use b5 PR 46 £
rights 2,791 — — 2,791
Amortisation of prepaid  JBETENEEZIE
lease payments for 5
coast 825 — — 825
Gain on disposal and & RS
written off of property, Y
plant and equipment Was (148) - — (148)
Share of profit of a jointly G — %% F[F4Z &
controlled entity vl (927) — — (927)
Amounts regularly EHZ2HRFEZLE
provided to the chief RREERBDLE
operating decision A7 R 8
maker but not included B2 &% :
in the measure of
segment profit or loss:
Impairment of goodwill EREEBRE
recognised 40,000 — — 40,000

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and

deferred tax assets.

M JERBEETBREMB T ANRELER
BEE -
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7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. S¥EBHEE)
Geographical information mEZHE
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong REB7REEBUNRNEB(FTELE
(country of domicile) and the PRC, Thailand, Philippines HE) PR RH FEEREME
and other countries. X °
Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing AEEINEE P HIBA BT 2 FHE
operations from external customers is presented based BWARBBEEMBMNED I ZIER
on customers’ location of the operations. Information BEE BN ¢

about the Group’s non-current assets is presented based
on the geographical location of the assets:

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

SEBERYIA ERBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FHET F#&r FEIT
Hong Kong B
(country of domicile) (E2ZEEMRE) 318,737 240,701 246,178 5,645
The PRC H
(excluding Hong Kong) (TBIEEH) 8,742,547 6,430,512 = 2,247,935 1,481,079
Thailand Ze 2,418,710 2,371,215 - —
Philippines JERE 343,262 589,305 = =
Other countries HhBxR 633,120 484,910 1,712 7,155
Total =X 12,456,376 10,116,643 2,495,825 1,493,879
Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and Kiat FERBEETBIEREERSEE R

financial instruments. FETHo

131



132

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited 188 REBHR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. S¥EBHEE)
Information about major customers FREEERZEH
Revenues from customers contributing over 10% of the R2012F U TRFEBAEEEE
total sales of the Group in year 2012 and corresponding BEE10% A £ 2 WA - %2011 F 2 48
figures in 2011 are as follows: e :
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& FEIL
Customer A BEFA 1,697,320 1,565,933
Customer B =FB 1,126,669 1,429,500
Note: Revenue generated from Customers A and B are Hat BRFEARBFEBAEEAZWAHERE

related to the LPG business. No other single customers REB BB R2012 %2011 F &
contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue for both N TEEME - EEIASEH
2012 and 2011. EHBEE10% A L o

Other Income and Net Exchange (Loss) Gain 8. HAUKWARER(GR)IMEPH

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&r FEIT

Continuing operations BEES

Interest income FEHA 12,450 5,175

Interest income on pledged RMB bank E &3 A RE R 1717 A &

deposits WA 118,055 77,718
Others HAith 12,840 3,489
Interest income from entrusted loan ZEERFBIWA (Kita)

(Note a) - 160,710
Other income H A 143,345 247,092
Net exchange (loss) gain (Note b) b 5 (518 s /F 58 (et b) (83,889) 175,314
Notes: Bzt -

(@)  The interest income was related to entrusted loan based (a) BB 201010 H21 B R 2 E2R #
on the terms set out in the framework agreement dated 21 ZF LT B RABRETERE
October 2010. The detail of the entrusted loan is set out B o BB HEHNMF42 0
in note 42.

(b) The amount included net exchange loss arising from b)) SEEEEERARBRIFTRK

pledged RMB bank deposits for USD borrowings iﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁfEZEﬁWﬁ?%ﬁ%@
amounted to approximately HK$85,996,000 (2011: gain of $5§96!0(?£7’§ 7£(2011 : 148,078,000
HK$148,078,000). BTz IER) °
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9. Finance Costs 9. MFEF

—E-CFFR

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
Continuing operations BEES
Interests on bank trust receipts loans R1T{EEWIEER 2 A& 126,623 93,158
Interest on bank trust receipts loans A RBEIRITHERER T
pledged with RMB bank deposits RIT 2 EEBIBEERZFIE 81,155 60,877
Interests on bank borrowings wholly HARSFANEHEEZ
repayable within five years RITERZAE 67,923 51,368
275,701 205,403
10. Taxation Charge 10. RIETH
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated Rz BRREEME2E kSR AR
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive ZIRIEEE

income represents:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&r FEIT
Continuing operations BFEXES
Other regions in the PRC FR B H b i (2
Current tax BIVEA# 18 27,614 20,817
Deferred tax (note 38) BEFRIE (K73 38)
Current year NEE (9,889) @)
17,725 29,915
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the ERTEF M EEE 2 (st ERR

estimated assessable profit for both years. Y MIEFE R 16.5% 51 & -
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10. Taxation Charge (Continued) 10. MEXZH (&)
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on BEREARLMEPZEMRESFTOE D
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation XEHE]D REEMENEE K
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC Bl - FEIME AT H2008F1 A1 B
subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards. HAZTERZ25% °
There is no provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has BRAR R RE AN B A B EE B E
been made in the consolidated financial statements as JERBR T - H 4R G B Bk It
the Company and other subsidiaries had no assessable BENESTIEL RS -

profits arising in Hong Kong.

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the FRNZMIEX M EFEEERR REAM
profit per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and ZHKEKR ZBRTANRNERAT

other comprehensive income as follows:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FEL
Profit before taxation B 56 AT )

(from continuing operations) (HFFEER) 445,949 332,944
Tax at the domestic tax rate 25% WA F R 25% 5t H 2 Fi A 111,487 83,236
Tax effect of expenses not deductible NAIHIE 2 B2

for tax purpose 12,575 15,619
Tax effect of income not taxable BARMBA Z HEZE

for tax purpose (13,015) (34,013)
Tax effect of profit which R m Nz I E

are exempted from tax (88,065) (70,515)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERRIEEIB 2 FHIETE 20,133 32,971
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERTHREREEZRE 2

differences not recognised Mg 12,421 4,343
Utilisation of tax losses previously not EhF & RTARER Z i IEEE

recognised (37,811) (1,726)
Taxation charge for the year FARELZH

(relating to continuing operations) (BEFFEXBER) 17,725 29,915
The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC enterprise FRAZMEAAEE T ZELEME SR
income tax rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of [& A 2 N B 3R (BN AR B 1 TS B
the Group is substantially based is used. ) o
Details of the deferred tax asset and liabilities are set out BEMBEEERBEZFBEHINNME

in note 38. 38 e
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11. Profit Before Taxation

11.

e

2012 2011

Profit before taxation has been
arrived at after charging (crediting):

Continuing operations

Amortisation of land use rights
(included in administrative
expenses)

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments for coast (included in
cost of sales)

Amortisation of other intangible
assets (included in cost of sales)

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation for property, plant and
equipment

Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases:

— Premises

Staff costs

Directors’ fees (note 13)
Directors’ other emoluments
(note 13)

Contributions to retirement benefits

schemes excluding HK$89,000
(2011: HK$84,000) included in
directors’ emoluments

Staff salary and bonus

B B A& A 2 F0BR (FEAD
THIER :

SRR
b P
(BRETEXHA)

BREENEE RS
(BREAEHEKRAEA)

H b 8 & B3 3N
(BREEHEKRAA)

ZHET N &

M - MR RREITE

HEME - BB NREZ
B8 (Yas)
REMHVRERS -

— B¥F
EEMwe (WiF13)
EEHMME (#1aF713)

¥ 89,0008 7T
(2011 : 84,000 7T)
B AESMEIN
RREFIET B 50
BIgFehEs

BRI H

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FEIT
12,962 2,791
843 825
27,023 3,977
3,150 2,800
80,613 54,144
262 (148)
31,898 11,934
330 330
8,593 6,802
7,652 3,469
75,191 47,102
91,766 57,703
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On 5 September 2012, Sound Hong Kong Limited
(“SHK”) a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an investment agreement (the “Investment
Agreement”) with New Concept Capital Limited (“NCC”)
and Nitgen&Company Co., Ltd (“Nitgen”). NCC is an
independent third party to the Group and is a wholly
owned subsidiary of a company listed on the Stock
Exchange. Nitgen is a company incorporated in Korea
whose common shares are listed on Korean Securities
Dealers Automated Quotations (“KOSDAQ”), a trading
board of the Korea Exchange. Pursuant to the Investment
Agreement, both SHK and NCC conditionally agreed
to subscribe certain amounts of shares and convertible
bonds to be issued by Nitgen (the “Subscription”). The
Subscription was completed on 12 December 2012, SHK
subscribed 17,136,230 Nitgen shares (“Nitgen Shares”) at
price of KRW11,070,005,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$80,809,000) and convertible bonds issued by Nitgen
(“Nitgen CB”) at price of USD10,369,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$80,672,000). The details of Nitgen
Shares and Nitgen CB are set out in note 43.

On 5 September 2012, SHK, NCC and Nitgen Eco &
Energy International Holdings Limited (“NEE”) entered
into a sales and purchase agreement (the “Disposal
Agreement”) in which SHK and NCC agreed to
dispose their equity interests in Success Pillar Limited
(“Success Pillar”) to NEE at a total consideration of HK$
241,180,000 (the “Disposal”’). NEE is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Nitgen. Before completion of the Disposal,
SHK and NCC owned 65% and 35% of equity interest
in Success Pillar Limited respectively. Success Pillar
owned 51% of Ego Time Limited (“Ego Time”) and the
remaining 49% equity interest is owned by another
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Ego Time is a
newly set up investment holding company in May 2012
of two subsidiaries that incorporated in British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) and engaged in the business of sales
and distributions of oil products in Hong Kong. Upon
completion of the Disposal on 24 December 2012, the
Group lost control over Success Pillar and Ego Time.
The effective interest in Ego Time reduced from 82.15%
to 49%. The consideration of HK$156,767,000 and
HK$84,413,000 to SHK and NCC were settled by the
fund raise by Nitgen through the Subscription. Further
information on the Disposal is set out in note 44.

12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE B HmRA T

For the year ended 31 December 2012
B E2012F 12 A 31 HI-FZ

12. Discontinued Operations

AR

M 201249 A5H * Sound Hong Kong
Limited ([SHK] * AR @z 2 &EHWB A
A]) » B New Concept Capital Limited
([NCC]) K Nitgen&Company Co., Ltd
([Nitgen|) 5] 32 4% & # & - NCC & &
SEZBIYE=H TABIALE
mARAZEE&WEB R A - Nitgen A
REEBEFEMA Lz A ERHRK
BRBLARFIBEDREHS - BE
R 5 Bt 2 5% wR(TKOSDAQ]) Lk 71 °
BEXEEHHE NCCEKERE
2B E FNitgen#s T & 1T Z2 B &
IRRES(RBEEE]  RES
TH B R20124F 12 128 58 X ° SHK
8% 17,136,230 B Nitgen A% 17 ([ Nitgen
&% 1) - B # &11,070,005,000 5% [
(#8 & 1 #780,809,0008 7t ) & Nitgen
B 17 2 A #2 % & % ([ Nitgen 7] #2 & (&
% 1) {8+ A10,369,000% jT(H &
7 #80,672,0007% 7T ) ° Nitgen % {2 &
Nitgen AT AR EHFFHIBE A W43 ©

MR2012%F 9 A5H * SHK * NCC &
Nitgen Eco & Energy International
Holdings Limited ([NEE]) 7] i & &
&L & % & 1) SHKENCCHE
= & % % 7 Success Pillar Limited
([Success Pillar]) z it ¥ NEE » 424K
& /4241,180,0008 L ([HEFHE ) »
NEE ANitgenz 2 E W B A Fl - HE
= I8 5T K B SHKENCCH 5l # &
Success Pillar Limited Z 65% & 35%
f% #E o Success Pillar# & Ego Time
Limited ([Ego Timel)51% #z5 » Mk
TA9% REABHARG S —2EH B
A" A - Ego Time &R 201245 A
RS 2 EZERAR - ERERB A
AREBERES(ABRELAES])
M REBRBHEE RS HEK R
MER - B EFHER2012F12 A 24
H5EAK & + 7N % B % % Success Pillar
K Ego Time z#Ell# - Ego Time 2 &
BX#E B 82.15% 8 2 £49% ° X 1 F
SHK & NCC 2 X 156,767,000 7T
84,413,000 TE FRRABESIHEZ
FIBESSft - HEEHEZBEINERSH
REIFE44 -
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12. Discontinued Operations (Continued) 12. FISEERE &)

The details of the Investment Agreement and Disposal
Agreement are set out in the circular issued by the
Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules on 11 October 2012, and independent
shareholders’ approval was obtained at a special general
meeting of the Company on 1 November 2012.

The retained equity interest in Ego Time is held by
another wholly owned subsidiary treated as interests in
associates to the Group. The details of the interest in
associates are set out in note 22. On 24 December 2012,
the business of sales and distribution of oil products

REBERLERE ZFBHN 2012
FI0AMMBARRRE EmRAE
14AZE T3 Z B EK A+ 1T 98 S A% SR
BEARATNR2012F11 A1 BET2
ERERIAS EES -

Ego Time 2 (REBREBHS —2EM B
RERFE EHRARNSEEZ QA E
7o BE A RS IBEN 22 o A
2012F 12 A 24 H ' AEEE R L&
$HE Ko SHAK d B 2T o

became discontinued business to the Group.

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#EIT FHET
The results of the sales and distribution £E A #4E & 9 86K fiH 2
of oil products for the year were as EEWT 137
follows:
Profit of sales and distribution of oil SHE N ) $HPK mh i 2 Sk £l
products 8,040 —
Gain on disposal of sales and HEHE LD HEK BTG
distribution of oil products (note 44) (et 44) 376,277 —
384,317 —
The results of the sales and FNHEE N D HEK SR ZFEE
distribution of oil products for the (Bt AGZAEEENRER)
year, which have been included s
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, were as
follows:
Revenue A 1,005,920 —
Cost of sales SHER AR (967,216) =
Gross profit EA 38,704 —
Other income Eabug A 269 —
Selling and distribution expenses HE ko X (13,599) -
Administrative expenses TBE W (14,634) —
10,740 —
Profit before taxation B A5 AT v ) (2,700) -

Taxation charge T IESE 1 8,040 —




NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited 188 REBHR A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HF 20124 12 531 ALLEE
12. Discontinued Operations (Continued) 12. FISEERE &)
Profit for the year from discontinued operation included ERIEEEER N PEATSIA -

the following:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
Cost of inventory recognised as BRARZ 2 FEEKAE 967,216 —
expense
Depreciation for property, plant Yz - BB REREITE 30 =
and equipment
Staff salaries and bonus B T H M &AEAL 2,397 —
During the year, Success Pillar contributed A - Success Pillar &78 5 B 2 45 &35
HK$20,241,000 (2011: nil) to the Group’s net operating & mFRER K 20,241,000 7% 75(2011 -
cash flows, HK$5,789,000 (2011: nil) in respect of net /) - 1% &5 B P15 885,789,000
generated from investing activities and HK$15,349,000 (2011 M)RBE GG AAREFHE
(2011: nil) in respect of net cash used in financing 15,349,000 7L (2011 : £&) ©
138 activities.
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Success Pillar R E Rz EERBE
Success Pillar at the date of disposal are disclosed in EREER M 5E 44 3255 -

note 44.
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13. Directors’ Emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2011:

10) directors were as follows:

Chiu
Sing

Shum  Chung,
SiuHung  Raymond
g #RE

Cen
Ziniu

574

Shum
Chun,
Lawrence

5

13.

EEHe

B E F 1002 (2011 & : 1062) &
EZAZHEHMT ¢

Cheung
Kwan Chan
Hung,  Yuk Wai, Xu
Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe
BEA 0 RER ped

HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000

8T  FET FET FET FET FET  FET  FET  FET  FET  FET

Fess e - - - - - - - 180 100 100 30

Other emoluments Efole

Salarles and other benefits & REMER 3000 1550 1,300 300 % 126 803 - - - 85m
Contributons o retiement {312/

benefits schemes 14 14 14 14 5 14 14 - - - 89

Total emoluments Heag 3,014 1,564 1,314 314 20 1,300 817 130 100 100 8,923

Chiu Cheung
Sing Shum Su Kwan Chan

Shum Sy~ Chung, Cen Chun, Ca KaFa, Wang Hung,  Yuk Wai, Xu Total

Hung  Raymond iy Lawrence Kikun Brian Jan  Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe Hi

0 BRR A% L 2 RE REE BE 2011

HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000

7Ar  TEr FEr TEr FEr TEr #Er TEr fEr TEr o FEn

Fess fig = = = = = = = 130 100 100 30

Other emoluments Efoie

Salaries and other benefis  FE REMET 3000 1,00 647 30 46 762 447 = = - 6718
Contributions to retiement  EEMET AL

benefits schemes 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 - = = 84

Total emoluments [Ea 8012 1,062 659 362 474 774 459 130 100 100 713

No director waived any emoluments during both years.

RPMFRATEESHEREAHE -
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14. Employees’ Emoluments 14. ERE&
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the REESNESHEATEIEA4(2011 :
Group, four (2011: three) are directors of the Company M) ARNTESE  Eff4 DR Fu iy
whose emoluments are included in the above disclosures. TFERA o Eer142(2011 : ML) AT
The emoluments of the remaining one (2011: two) were ZENEWHENT :

disclosed as follows:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Salaries and allowances e MoEah 1,244 2,116
Contributions to retirement benefit RONEFIFT S K

schemes 14 24

1,258 2,140

2012 2011

No. of No. of

140 employees employees

EASH =L 4=

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 T = 1

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L E 1,500,000 % 7T 1 1
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15. Dividend 15. &R

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#r FET
2011 final dividend recognised as FNERFZDIKZ 2011 F

distribution during the year RAEARR B — &A% 2.3 71l

— HK2.3 cents (2010 final dividend: (2010 F AR EEE. :

HK1.0 cent) per share 1.07810) 30,035 13,058
Subsequent to 31 December 2012, the directors R2012FE12A31H%E EFEZ M
proposed a final dividend of HK3.8 cents (2011: R 20134F 5 20 H &5 kR & fit 2 K
HK2.3 cents) per share amounting to approximately RABRERERBRKE - FRIKE3.8
HK$49,622,000 (2011: HK$30,035,000) to be paid to BAL(2011 : 2.3 1l) - & HEIR B A
the shareholders of the Company whose names appear 49,622,000 7t (2011 : 30,085,000 %8
on the register of members 20 May 2013. This final 7 ) o Ub R EANR B 78 7 AR PR A FE JE R ER
dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders at HFERZ E#ER - FAIEE - K2013
the forthcoming annual general meeting. On 18 March F3H18H ' EETREE ZRNEE
2013, the number of shares issued and fully paid is #1,805,853,374 1% °

1,305,853,374.
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16. Earnings Per Share 16. BEREF
From continuing and discontinued operations BERIERSERE
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per AABlz E@EFE AR EREAR
share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the RESEZF TR T BIETE ¢

Company is based on the following data:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FAET
Earnings 2%
Earnings for the purposes of basic & & % E N & #5% Z 7 Fr
and diluted earnings per share KRZBHN (KRABEAA
(profit for the year attributable to FEREF A A )
the owners of the Company) 810,934 306,159
Number of shares Hﬁﬁﬂﬁ
Weighted average number of STEERERBNAERAZ
ordinary shares for the purpose of 3B I N T 8
142 basic earnings per share 1,305,853,374 1,305,853,374
Effect of dilutive ordinary shares SR 5 Satlievd -2
Share options 5 AR 22,806,035 19,822,931
Weighted average number of FTESREERTMERZ
ordinary shares for the purposes 3B I N T 8

of diluted earnings per share 1,328,659,409 1,325,676,305
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16. Earnings Per Share (Continued) 16. BEKREBR (&)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share from continuing operations attributable to the
owners of the company of the following data:

HERY

AATZ BEERBEADBELBE
o Al IR A B R 53R T 5 B
it

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET F&T
Earnings figures and calculated as B &RETENT -
follow:
Profit for the year attributable to the ZNR FHEA A FE1EF 7@ 7
owner of the company 810,934 306,159
Less: Profit for the year from B IERFBEBFNR T
discontinued operation (384,317) —
Earnings for the purpose of FTEREERTREARNAT
basic earnings per share from FER A 2 &7
continuing operations 426,617 306,159

The denominators used are the same as the detailed
above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operations
in HK$0.29 (2011: nil) per share and diluted earnings per
share for the discontinued operation is HK$0.29 (2011:
nil) per share, based on the profit for the year from the
discontinued operations of HK$384,317,000 (2011:
nil) and denominators details above for both basic and
diluted earnings per share.

BREANREERNMAz DR
I

FIHMARE

BEIFFTEEEFRNE M LH
384,317,000 jT(2011 : £ ) & L it
EREAREERNNZ DEE  EF
BEREEREARBFN ABER0029E T
(2011 - &) - MIFFBEEBEREER
A AEFR0.298L(2011 « £) °
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. %  -BBERBME

Furniture,
Construction Leasehold Plant and Gasplant  Gaspumps fixtures and Motor

in progress Buildings  improvements machinery  and facilities and equipment equipment vehicles

ERIE BF HRAWERE  MBRAR  WERBN  RFRRE GA RERER it |

HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000
TET 7T TET 72T TET 7T T 7L 7L

COST BE
At 1 January 2011 RANEIA1E 67,764 31,937 29% 1313 529,322 193,192 13,083 2,021 861,602
Additions HE 286,833 169 56 - 413 2,597 i 8,032 208817
Transfer & (50,327) 854 - 1,834 44,967 2,672 - - -
Disposals and wrte-off {HE Rt = - (298) - - (670) (106) (1,158) 2.299)
Exchange realignment EiAE - 1611 14 112 25,009 9,507 579 1,056 37,988
At 31 December 2011 R011E12A318 304,270 34,571 2,766 3,259 509,711 207,298 14,243 29,957 1,196,075
Acuired on acouisition of a WE-FRBATMNE

subsidary (ofe 41) (241) - - - - 71286 196,404 1474 - 269,164
Additions AE 144,722 - 333 - 70,305 9,302 1,344 5,389 231,395
Transfer &2 (5,751) - 3459 - 2,292 - - - -
Disposals and write-off HE R - - - - - (1) (621) (331) (1,728)
Exchange realignment EiAE 418 ) 12 (1) 669 655 5 12 1,764
At 31 December 2012 2012512318 443,659 34,565 6,570 3,258 744,263 412,889 16,445 35,021 1,696,670

144 DEPRECITION AND IPARVENT KB

At 1 January 2011 M01EIATA - 9,014 2431 383 93,962 69,792 8,564 9,193 193,339
Provided for the year il - 2859 14 58 29,238 16,638 1082 4175 54,144
Eiminated on dlsposals and R ERHER LR

wite-of - - ) - - 29 ) (10%) (1,363
Exchange realignment EiAE - 521 1 H] 3007 3727 388 43 8,171
At 31 December 2011 011E12A31B - 12,304 2,544 462 126,221 89,028 9,931 12,805 254,291
Provided for the year EREh - 2,953 340 161 34,808 35,917 1,338 5,126 80,643
Eiminated on disposals and HNHE Rt R

wite-of - - - - - (339) (193) (339 (1,164
Exchange realignment EiAE - 8 - - 65 103 2 12 190
At 31 December 2012 2012E12A318 - 15,355 2,884 623 161,100 125,610 10,778 17,610 333,960
CGARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2012 2012E12A318 443,659 19,210 3,686 2,635 583,163 27,219 5,667 17411 1,362,710
At 31 December 2011 2011 E12A318 304,270 211 220 2,197 473,484 117,370 4312 17,152 941,784
The above items of property, plant and equipment, L EBEIRBHFEEB(EERIRE
except for construction in progress, are depreciated on a BRON) - THE NI FRUEARITE ©

straight-line basis at the following rates per annum.

y (.
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Buildings Over the term of the lease
Leasehold 20% to 33'/,%
improvements

Plant and machinery 5% to 33'/,%

Gas plant and facilities Over the shorter of the lease
term of coast use right and
land use right, or 20 years

Gas pumps and 10% to 33"/,%

equipment

Furniture, fixtures and  15% to 16%/;%

equipment

Motor vehicles 16%/,% to 33"/,%

The buildings are situated outside Hong Kong, in the

PRC, and are held on land under medium term leases.

The gas and oil plant under construction are situated
outside Hong Kong, in the PRC, and are held under
medium term leases.

LPG bottles with carrying values of approximately
HK$5,743,000 (2011: HK$6,944,000) included in gas
pumps and equipment are leased to customers for
short term to generate rental income. The rental income
generated was approximately HK$25,917,000 (2011:
HK$23,485,000) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

17. 3% - BRERE(E)

EF 1R R 49 4 5P

HEMERE 20% %= 33'/,%

W28 N a5 5% % 33'/,%

R AR REREAERT
HfE FAREFR A F
Hisk 20 FHf 2 B
S

AR K& 10% 2 33'/,%

Bt~ KE 15% & 16%/:%

K&
E 16°/:% = 33'/,%

BFIMURHE(FRBRIN) - AP
MH L E3A -

FEFR U B T ek B (BB RN - i
B B HS ©

AP AR R KB 45,743,000 T
(2011 : 6,944,000 T ) 2 BAL RIRTY
LEBAEAETER,  REAHESK
A REZE2012%412 A31 B ILEEAT
Ef e WAL K25917,0007% 7T
(2011 : 23,485,000 7T ) °
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18. Land Use Rights 18. L in{EAE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET F&T
The Group’s land use rights INE B 7 (s AR
comprise: BIE
Land use rights outside Hong Kong, RHE (FHEIN)
in the PRC under medium term WIARE LA 2
leases T3 FA4E 240,813 253,866
Analysed for reporting purposes as: ZZ2HBE WD :
Non-current asset FERBEE 231,298 250,842
Current asset mENEE 9,515 3,024
240,813 253,866
146 During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group REBEZE2011F12831BLEFER - A&EH
acquired a leasehold land in Zhuhai through purchase BREBA—RNBARIKE —BUNRKEZ
of a subsidiary (the “Land”). Details of the acquisition ME T ([Z T ]) o W2 FIFFAM
are set out in note 40. The size of the Land is 15,750 40° Z LM EFE A15,750F K - REH
square meters. The Group will develop half of the Land Bzt —FBERAEZE-—HEFBAY
to construct a property for owner-occupied purpose and ¥ —FABREREASEYE FEBRED
half for properties for sale. The detail of properties under WYIEE 2 FEB M EE 31 #EE -

development for sales is disclosed in note 31.




Annual Report 2012 =—Z—ZF 51

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012

AFE20124F 12 A 31 HILFE
19. Prepaid Lease Payments for Coast

20.

19. BERAMEARTR

2012 2011

HK$’°000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
The Group's prepaid lease REB 7 BEAMEERIE
payments for coast comprise: BIE
Coast outside Hong Kong, in the A B (FAERIN) -
PRC under medium term leases WA BN B 28 EF 10,809 11,657
Analysed for reporting purposes as: IZZ2MHENDIT :
Non-current asset EMEEE 9,963 10,811
Current asset MENE E 846 846
10,809 11,657
The prepaid lease payments for coast represent the BEBNEERENERKE 2 8RE
rights to use coast in Zhuhai ranging from 20 years to 28 FAtE - R19994F 1 A1 B - HEH

years, starting from 1 January 1999.

T F20FE285F -

Goodwill 20. HE

HK$’000

FAET

COST 5% 3
At 1 January 2011 M201141H1H 130,224
Impairment loss recognised BRI ERE (40,000)
Exchange realignment PE 5 % 6,205
At 31 December 2011 Mm2011412 A 31 H 96,429
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE (10,000)
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 41) W —KBRAF (#:F471) 202,509
Exchange realignment PE 5 R 670
At 31 December 2012 R2012% 12 A31H 289,608
CARRYING VALUES RE{E
At 31 December 2012 R2012% 12 A31H 289,608

At 31 December 2011

Mn2011412 831 H 96,429
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
acquired a new subsidiary and the goodwill arising on the
acquisition amounted to approximately HK$202,509,000
(2011: nil). The details are set out in note 41. This
goodwill is assigned to a separate CGU.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out
above has been allocated to ten (2011: nine) individual
CGUs in the sale and distribution of LPG segments. All
CGUs are included in the segment of sale and distribution
of LPG.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the management
of the Group determined that there was an impairment of
HK$10,000,000 (2011: HK$40,000,000) for the goodwill
of three CGUs (2011: three CGUs different from the
three CGUs in 2012) (“Impaired CGUs”). There was no
impairment of the other CGUs containing goodwill. Due to
keen market competition in the locations of the Impaired
CGUs, the revenue of the Impaired CGUs in 2012 was
behind management’s expectation, the management
revised its cash flow projections of the Impaired CGUs
with the key assumptions set out below.

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE B HmRA T

For the year ended 31 December 2012
B E2012F 12 A 31 HI-FZ

20. Goodwill (Continued)

[

(%)

HE2012F12A31 HILFE - K5 E
WHEFHH B AR » mMEEHEE 2 EE
#)4202,509,000/875(2011 « Z) » &%
BENHE41 - BESEREERBREE
A BT o

RERAME  EXAEZHED
PEREHERDHBRIER DR Z10ME
(2011 : 9fE) ERIR EELEL - FTE
ReELBMEFAHERD HARILR

A\ K
pax W

HE2012F12 A1 HILFE - A&EH
EEEBETEIEFASBRHERMNET
ERBHERDHBRERDE LR EE
EB (2011 : 3ERESEEEME R
2012F 73RS EL BN ) 2B N
32 10,000,000 7% 7£.(2011 : 40,000,000
BL)ZBEEBEE(ERERSELS
i) BRERERSELEEMNAE
WMZmERERR ERERSES
BAR2012FZ2RABREEE 28
B MEEECEIERERSELE
UzBeneEE  EERIZFIN
“|i o
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20. Goodwill (Continued)

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below:

Impaired CGUs

The recoverable amounts of these units have been
determined based on the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. The group performed impairment
assessment by estimating the value in use of the cash-
generating unit in which the goodwill and the intangible
asset are attributable to, which approximately the fair
value less cost to sell. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering 5-year period, and discount rate
of 12% (2011: 12%). The cash flows for the financial
budgets are using a steady growth rate ranging from 4%
to 7% (2011: 4% to 8%) for a 5 year period. The cash
flows beyond this 5-year period are extrapolated using a
zero percent growth rate.

Other CGUs

The recoverable amounts of these units have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering 5-year
period, and discount rate of 12% (2011: 12%). The cash
flows for the financial budgets are using a steady growth
rate ranging from 4% to 8% (2011: 4% to 10%) for a 5
year period. The cash flows beyond this 5-year period
are extrapolated using a zero percent growth rate.

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
related to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such
estimation is based on the unit’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.

20.

meE)

NEREELEU AINESEEE
MEFZHRAKRERMLDNT

ERERSESEM

ZEBA 2 B EIREBR AT ER
HEXRAREABEZRSEETE - A
CEZEARTNEREFEEMBR 2
EXBA 2 ERBEETRERNG  H
ABANTFEREEKE - Tt EEHRA
EEECHEZSFHUBBERFT 2
HeR= 788 &HTIR E12% (2011 -
12%)5TE - R TBERZ2HEREN
SEHZRBRERREIA%ET% (2011 :
A% E 8%)HHT - L5 FHIR v HERE
LA 8 R AR o

HthReEEEa

ZEBMNzARBSBEREFEAER
SEEEE c ZAtEEARATEEEHR
/EZ\"_)E'EHJ%WT?%%EMF*EPZfﬁﬂimuiﬁ_
Bl R #T 3R #E12% (2011 - 12%) 5T & ©
EEER S RE NS FHZBE
BERA%ZE 8% (2011 1 4% = 10%) #E
i o ﬁt5¢%f§2£ﬁéuw§l}(;§i§$

ﬁ%mﬁﬁfﬁiwb]\/uwﬂj@fﬁﬁF{E
5%2%4143;?{?%?&’7%i‘fﬁﬁﬁﬁ’%&%ﬂ
TR RBREBEEMCBERERE
BREEFGZTHERMEDL
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21.

150

Other Intangible Assets

COST
At 1 January 2011
Exchange adjustments

[57% 3
2011461 A1H
s

Distribution

network
o i
HK$000

&7

2,644
131

21. HftEERE

Business
license

ERRE
HK$’000
FHET

7,786
214

Leasing
agreements

HEGE

HK$’000
FET

14,285
709

HK$’000
FET

24,715
1,054

At 31 December 2011

Acquired on acquisition of a

subsidiary (note 41)
Exchange adjustments

»2011 412 A31H
AU EE — KB A A
mER(Hat41)

P& 5 R

2,775

355,038
1,218

8,000

20,894
71

14,994

25,769

375,932
1,286

At 31 December 2012

M2012%12 A31H

359,031

28,965

402,987

AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2011

Charge for the year

Exchange adjustments

HBRAE

R2011%E1 A1H
FRZH
P& 5 R

677
271
40

2,638
1,136
99

8,902
2,570
507

12,217
3,977
646

At 31 December 2011
Charge for the year
Exchange adjustments

R2011412 831 H
FRTH
P& 5

988
21,974
75

3,873
2,422

11,979
2,627

16,840
27,023
88

At 31 December 2012

M2012%12 A31H

23,037

6,301

14,613

43,951

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2012

IREE
R2012412 A31H

335,994

22,664

378

359,036

At 31 December 2011

»2011%E12 A31H

1,787

4,127

3,015

8,929

I_a—s_-—\s'_'—’ i

i —
K
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21. Other Intangible Assets (Continued) 21. HtiEpEE(E)
During the year ended of 31 December 2012, the other REZ2012F 12 A31 BIEFE - W&
intangible assets acquired on the acquisition of a new B AR MES EMBREEELNA
subsidiary amounted to approximately HK$375,932,000 375,932,000 76 (2011 : &) o Ug B B
(2011: nil). The details of acquisition of subsidiary are BAE B 41 35 -

disclosed in note 41.

The distribution network, the business license and the DAL EEHNRBEEESRTIEE
leasing agreements were acquired from third parties in BEHFRRE=ZFEA -

business combinations.

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. FiiEFEEAERAERAFE - 25
Such intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line EIZEENBERRENL T AR

basis over the following periods:

Distribution network 10 years Pal =il 104
Business license 5 to 10 years BEAR 55104
1= 2
Leasing agreements 5 to 9 years HEWw=E 5E 94
22. Interests in Associates 22, BiEATFESR .
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Cost of interests in associates B 2 2 R Bz A AR
Unlisted L 231,722 —
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22. Interests in Associates (Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had interests in the
following significant associates:

Place/
Country of principal
Name Form of incorporation/ place of
of entity entity registration operation

B,
HiE€® EHBEEX ZKEX FEEER

Ego Time  Incorporated BVI Hong Kong
Bty REBEZHS &S

Note: NewOcean Oil Products Company Limited and
NewOcean Petroleum Company Limited are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of Ego Time (“Ego Time and its
subsidiaries”).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
setup Ego Time and its subsidiaries for expanding
business operation in the segment of sales and
distribution of oil products in Hong Kong.

22.

Class of

BEAFTER(E)

MR2012F12 A31H » REERMNUTE
BB ARF AL

Proportion
of nominal
value of
issued
capital
held by
the Group Principal

shares held 2012 activity

ERMERF
2 R 1THRA

PR 5 B% 47 361 31 HELH FREH

Ordinary

49 Investment
holding
WE R

Mt B EBEERRAR R B AME
fRARAEgo Tmez =& W B A &
([Ego Time REMEBAR ) °

REZE2012F12 A31BLEFE - A&
E K32 Ego Time R EMIB AR - LATARE
EBHE N D HMER K EDEE -
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BB 2012F 1231 HIFFE

22. Interests in Associates (Continued) 22. BEBEARREE(E)
Ego Time was a subsidiary of the Company in which Ego TimeRAA R G M BAGE  H
51% were held by Success Pillar and 49% were held 51% M ARR 2 EEIFEZEN B A A
by another indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Success PillarF 5 - 49% B AR 7 5

Company. Success Pillar was an indirect subsidiary of
the Company and the shares of which were held as to
65% by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
as to 35% by NCC. After the Disposal on 24 December
2012 as set out in note 12, the effective interest in
Ego Time reduced from 82.15% to 49% and the Group
discontinued this operation. The details of the profit
and loss are set out in note 12. The fair value of the
investment retained in Ego Time at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under interest in associates.
The cost of interest in associates included goodwill,
and intangible asset of approximately HK$142,936,000
and HK$83,764,000 respectively. The intangible asset
represents the customers relationship for the business
of sales and distribution of oil products which will be
amortised for 12 years based on the expected useful
life. For the year ended 31 December 2012, there is no
significant profit and loss effect from the associates as
the disposal was completed close to the year end.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associates is set out below:

—RiEZE2 &N B AREAR ° Success
Pllar R AR ARz EEHREBE AR &
EhBEARRZE2EWEB R R KRNCC
2Bl B 65% 2 35% o RMIsE12 Fr &%
Z2012F 12 A24H HEFEE B
Ego Time < BEFE#E#H 82.15% i &
49% @ MAEBE R IHEE TIHER -
BarBH R E12 o BKEIEH #E
ZHEgo TimeRB ZHEE X FEHMR
EEtE N RSB N HB G 2 VT HE
RoBERRKABEEERERLEE
2 Bl #49142,936,000 78 7T & 83,764,000
BT B EENEE XD HEKmBE
MEBZEFRBEFE - BB {ER
FHIEE SH12F - B E2012F 12 A 31
BIEFE BARHEEREIFERS
B - BN R EE R B KR o

\|

REEBE N T2 MBERESHT 0
N

HK$’000

FET

Total assets BEE 375,637
Total liabilities FEY=N (194,442)
Net assets BEFE 181,195
Goodwill EES 142,936
Group’s share of net assets of associates AEEBED(EEE AR 2 BEFE 88,786

231,722
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HE20124 12 H31 AIFEE
23. Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity 23. —REREFIERES

—RAFZFREES

Interest in a jointly controlled entity

THE GROUP
xEE
2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FETT
Cost of unlisted investment in a R—REREFIEEZIE L
jointly controlled entity R E AR 13,073 13,073
Share of post-acquisition profits, Fribig A&s 7 - REE1E
impairment loss and other NH fh 2 E s
comprehensive income (2,653) (3,872)
10,420 9,201

MR2012F & 2011412 A31 8 * K~
SEHEE THIELRIEH EEE 2

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group had
interest in the following jointly controlled entity:

154 Proportion of
Form of nominal value of
business Country of Principal place Fully paid up registered capital
Name of entity structure incorporation  of operation  registered capital held by the Group Nature of business
FREFEZ
1. £4 RAERMERN HMAUER EETRBE CEHRERES EMEFEELS =REHE
2012 2011
BMDBIRRARAR  Incorporated  PRC PRC RMB2,250,000 49% 49%  Sale and distribution
(TB#)) (Note) (M) BAEMAIL e e ARH2,250,0007C of LPG
HERDBERILR
Note: The Group's entitlement to share in the profits of its Kt - AEBH(REEREHEE Z®HZ

jointly controlled entity is in proportion to its ownership RS THIR A N ER R hiR K v A B HA R
interest after the sub-contracting period mentioned in the BEMhZEB AR AIFT
following paragraph. "o

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Qingxin
Bai Fu Yang Petrol Chemical Company Limited (“BFY”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the joint
venture partner of #&#1 (the “Venturer”) on 3 November
2006, the operation of &1 has been sub-contracted to
BFY with a sub-contracting period of 8 years until 2014.

REARRZ2ENBRARBENEAE
AABETAERAR(TBEF]) REH
ZEEBH(EEE]N2006F 11 A
BHFIM Z W% B ZEBEINAT
BEF  HIEE2014F - RHIBEF ©
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BHE20124 1231 AILFE
23. Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity (Continued) 23.

Interest in a jointly controlled entity (Continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s interest in jointly controlled entity which is
accounted for using the equity method is set out below:

2012 2011

e

—REFENERER(F)

—RIiAEWERES(E)

AEB ARG HEARZ LEEHE

BRSVHENSEHINWT ¢

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Current assets mENE E 3,155 2,085
Non-current assets ERBEE 5,350 5,815
Current liabilities mEaE (66) (58)
Income recognised in profit or loss  RIBFRER 2 WA 41,504 36,790
Expenses recognised in profit or loss MBS HER 2 FI st (40,285) (35,863)
Other comprehensive income Hin 2wl - 413

24. Other Assets 24, HfthiZE

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Deposit for purchase of property, BEYHE MRRIMEZ2ES
plant and equipment 1,068 1,068
Deposit for acquisition of LPG W EMNBRERRLL 2 ZE
stations in Guangzhou (Note a) (Biata) - 104,848
Deposit for acquisition of Bi¥rgelR  WEHELRERERAF
BRABRAA([BIFEIR]) ([HtxeeR ) 2% (Kfatb)
(Note b) - 69,967
1,068 175,883
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24. Other Assets (Continued)

25,

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to the agency agreement signed between the
Group and the lawyer firm, RMB85,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$104,848,000) was deposited to the
lawyer firm as a refundable deposit in December 2010 to
arrange the acquisition of not less than 15 LPG stations
in Guangzhou and handle the related share transfer
procedures. During the year ended 31 December 2012,
the directors of the Company considered not to continue
with the potential acquisition arrangement, and the amount
of deposit was fully refunded by the lawyer firm.

(b)  The amount represented the deposit paid by the Group for
acquisition of B#¥T4EJR in the PRC in 2011. The acquisition
was completed in January 2012 and the details of the
acquisition are disclosed in note 41(c).

Inventories

24. RfthRE(E)

w2 :

(@)

25. 8

BREAEEHEAZEMTEE Z AR
B 1% 3% M2010FE128 0 AR #&
85,000,000 7t (#8 5 7 47 104,848,000
BIL) BT RRZEMITIEATRE
B2e UWZRHBBEEMNTLR15E
BWAER MR - RFEHBERDEE
FE H E2012F12A318 Ik F
B ARREZEBENEEEEWE
ZHE - BT REE B RS A ©

AR IEHE AN £ E 2011 g R R E
WEHHEERZEMNES - WBER
2012F 1 A5ERK - Wi 2 1B SR KT
T 41(c) °

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEiT FET

LPG BIER 322,123 143,685
Electronic products B Em 383,032 289,910
705,155 433,595

The cost of inventories charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year
amounted to approximately HK$11,398,888,000 (2011:
HK$9,689,988,000).

FR

BReEEKRERMEZIFE

Bk R 49 4 11,398,888,000 7 7t (2011 -
9,689,988,000/87T) °

y (.
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BEZ20124 12 431 HILEE
26. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors, 26. BIKEHRER - BUIRE - HthfE
Deposits and Prepayments IWIER - RERAMRE
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Trade debtors EUE 5 BR K 1,709,600 1,939,828
Bills receivable W E R 359,537 188,095
2,069,137 2,127,923
As at 31 December 2012, included in the Group’s MN2012FE12 A31H ' BEAEAER
bills receivable approximately of HK$114,621,000 are FEWZ= 45 49114,621,000 7 7t 2 [A) £R
discounted with full recourse to banks. The details of {TEEIR  RITUHEAELRECERE - %5
those discounted bills receivables are disclosed in note BARIR BN E R 2 B SR ML 27 o
27.
The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days. AREEBZFHEEHANOK . HE
The bills receivable are matured within the range of 30 2012 F 2011 E12 831 B IFEE E
days to 90 days for the years ended 31 December 2012 WEE ZEHAHN FI0KXKEIK °
and 2011. The following is an aged analysis of trade MNERPAREWE FER L EKREZE
debtors and bills receivables at the end of the reporting BRI D ITIE X Z QBRI AER
period presented based on the invoice date, which EH 27T :

approximated the respective revenue recognition dates:

2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHET

0 to 30 days 0E30K 1,387,388 864,702
31 to 60 days 31 260X 306,538 183,772
61 to 90 days 61 290X 303,795 317,612
91 to 180 days 91 £180K 67,842 690,510
Over 180 days HBiE 180K 3,574 71,327

2,069,137 2,127,923
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Deposits and Prepayments (Continued)

Included in the Group’s trade debtors, are debtors of
approximately HK$6,300,000 (2011: HK$150,769,000)
denominated in USD, which is not the functional currency
of the relevant group entities.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customers. Recoverability of the existing
customers is reviewed by the Group regularly. Included
in the Group’s trade debtors balance are receivables
with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,859,331,000 (2011: HK$1,252,925,000), which are
neither past due nor impaired.

Included in the Group’s trade debtors balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$209,806,000 (2011: HK$874,998,000) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The trade debtors
past due but not provided for were either subsequently
settled as at the date of this report or no historical
default of payments by the respective customers. The
average age of these receivables is 107 days (2011: 131
days). As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group
has no provision for allowance for doubtful debts.

Ageing of trade debtors based on the invoice date
which are past due but not impaired

26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2012
B E2012F 12 A 31 HI-FZ

26. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors,

Rl R SRR - EIRE - HthfE
R - HeRAMREA(E)

AEE 2 EINE ZERFF + 496,300,000
#71(2011 : 150,769,000 7T, ) A X TT
B ExUIHBAEEERE 2K E

AEEBRERERFTELAN L
FHEBEERFPZEEE R URTEE
B -ASEETHENEERFZE
Hee e BREEAEBZE 5 EWE
K 491,859,331,00078 7£(2011 :
1,252,925,00078 70 ) FEUW E 5 BR 3k 2 #8
HEHTZBHATORE -

AEBZEKESERERGES £
8% ™ {2 49209,806,00078 7£(2011 :
874,998,000/ 7T ) 2 FE W IR XM £ B
BERH BAEERERBEBERE -
ANES BN IS A A B A 2 SRR SR I
o BIBHAREREGZ EKE SRR
ERAREBEE  HBEZFBEL
AR FIA - ZERBERF 2 FHERER
A107 K(2011 : 131K ) o 20124
K20114 128381 H » AEBTERR
BR B 3845 -

CBMEXRREZEEESERERER
Bz IRES

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHETT FET

61 to 90 days 61290 H 205,932 169,749
91 to 180 days 91 & 180 H 300 634,508
181 to 365 days 181 365 H 3,574 70,741
Total Bt 209,806 874,998




Deposits and Prepayments (Continued)

Included in other debtors, there are trade deposits paid
to suppliers of approximately HK$614,042,000 (2011:
HK$411,381,000) in relation to the purchase of LPG
which will be delivered within one year commencing from
the date of the signed purchase contract.

Also approximately HK$115,059,000 (2011:
HK$88,453,000) included in other debtors are interest
receivables from pledged bank deposits and bank
deposits, those amounts will be received monthly or
when the pledged bank deposits are released.

In December 2012, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into a loan agreement with an independent third party
to provide a short term loan of RMB200,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$246,655,000) which
is entrusted by equity share of an unlisted company
owned by the independent third party in the PRC and
bears floating interest rate of People’s Bank of China
plus 3% per annum with a maturity period of 12 months.
The cash provided by the subsidiary of the Company is
kept in a custodian bank and is restricted to be used
for developing a potential property project in Zhuhai in
the PRC. The loan receivable will be fully repaid to the
Company if it is not utilized for the property development
project within the borrowing period.

Annual Report 2012 =—Z—ZF 51

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2012
B E2012F 12 A 31 HI-FZ

26. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors, 26. BINE IR - BUrRIE - HME

R HERAMREA(E)

HmEKREREREENHERS
Z 517 & #1614,042,00058 7T(2011 :
411,381,000 7L ) * H KB ERIER
(RETEEANE—FARNMN) -

H th & W BR SR 7R B 15 47 115,059,000 78
£ (2011 : 88,453,000 7T ) Z & & ##
BITFERRIBITERZEBKFE - ZF
& FBIR A UER 3 A R R AR 1T 13 U 1R B
UGER -

R2012F12 8 + AR & KB A 7 &
BYFE=HINER B RS
B A R # 200,000,000 7T (1 & R 4
246,655,0007%87C) * AR RBILE =
BB ZIELTRARERBRMDER - EP
BARBITZEFMENI%ETE - 2
HFEHA12M@ 8 - AARWE A AR
ZHETFENRTEERT  RIEANEZEREF
BIZRGBEYHETEE - MABNEEH
NEBEMHEREL - BREFEE
HEBTART -
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27. Transfers of Financial Assets

27. HBAMBRE

160

The following were the Group’s bills receivable as at
31 December 2012 that were transferred to banks
on a full recourse basis for cash proceeds of HK$
114,621,000. Based on the agreements entered into
among the Group, the customers into issued the bills
receivable and the banks, the interest expenses arising
from discounting the bills receivable to the banks, would
be borne by the customers. However, the Group is still
the primary obligator in respect of the settlement of the
cash proceeds. If the bills receivables are not settled
at maturity, the banks have the right to request the
Group to pay the unsettled balance. As the Group has
not transferred the significant risks and rewards relating
to these receivables, it continues to recognise the full
carrying amount of the receivables and has recognised
the cash received on the transfer as a secured borrowing
(see note 35). These financial assets are carried at
amortised cost in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position.

As at 31 December 2012

Carrying amount of bills receivable
Carrying amount of associated borrowings

FEWEIE 2 BRE{E
MERAE T BREI B

LATR & A& ER20124F 12 A31 B 1%
CPEHBREEMEBZTRITZERE
&+ LIS B € FT1S 338 114,621,000
BIL e BEAEE BETEKZEZ
BERIBITATEI M 2 Wik » MERTTELIR
JERER AR BREPEE - &
i AEBDAYMNERESMEREZE
TEBFA o WEKEIENE HR KB
B ROERERAEEZNREELS
B o ARASEWEER HEZ SRR
REBZEARKR KON ESBER
HHERERZEZREE  TEERE
BETWE 2 ReEREERMIBITER
(RMIES5) » ZE MK E ERBEMAA
RAEBERE AT RIER ©

#2012 12A31H

Bills
receivable
discounted to
banks with

full recourse
R2mER
BEEMBITHR
ZEWRE
HK$’000
FAET

114,621
(114,621)
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28. Amount Due From an Associate

29.

The amount due from an associate is in trade nature
aged within 90 days based on invoice date. A credit
period of 30 days to 90 days is granted to the associate.
All balances are neither past due nor impaired at the
reporting date.

Pledged Bank Deposits, Bank Balances and
Cash

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The
deposits have been pledged to secure short-term bank
loans, and are therefore classified as current assets. The
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$368,829,000
(2011: HK$647,085,000) carry at floating interest rates
which ranged from 0.55% to 3.4% (2011: 0.5% to 2.9%)
per annum and will be released upon settlement of the
relevant bank borrowings. The pledged bank deposits
included an amount of approximately HK$3,687,181,000
(2011: HK$3,562,492,000) carried at fixed interest rates
which ranged from 0.35% to 4.5% (2011: 0.5% to 3.28%)
per annum and will be released upon settlement of the
relevant bank borrowings.

The bank balances carried interest at market rates which
ranged from 0.01% to 2.3% (2011: 0.01% to 0.2%) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2012, the RMB pledged bank
deposits of approximately HK$3,606,395,000 (2011:
HK$4,192,272,000) were pledged for the bank trust
receipts loans.

As at 31 December 2012, the pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$4,866,012,000 (2011: HK$4,977,783,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not freely convertible
into other currencies. Included in the Group’s pledged
bank deposits and bank balances, are approximately
HK$167,494,000 (2011: HK$17,747,000) denominated
in USD and approximately HK$2,553,571,000 (2011:
HK$3,553,178,000) denominated in RMB, which is not
the functional currency of the relevant group entities.

28.

29.

R B E A TRIEA

FEWEE A AR RIEZE M EREER
HIETE 2 BRIR B0 RIAR - A& E M B
BRARIRTFI0OREOARZEESR - F7
BESNSRE BB RBHERE -

BERRTER BTRBRRAS

ZHRBEREBETROEAAEEE
BRETHREZCERZER %25
GRERBIELAEHBETER ZE
R-BMOEARBHEE - BEEMRE
17 & X #9368,829,000/% JT(2011 :
647,085,000/ T ) % )% &) F F =X
N F0.55% %F3.4% (2011 : 0.5%
F29%)FT B WHBRKRBBARTE
OBEERER - BEFRITEREE
A B #93,687,181,000/8F JT(2011 :
38,562,492,0007% 7T ) + 1% & i F F =
N F0.35% £4.5% (2011 : 0.5% &
3.28% )5t B - WBNBRRITENZE
FFARRR o

SRITEHBRIZN T0.01% E2.3% (2011 :
0.01% £ 0.2%) Z T HFHEETB -

R20124612 A31 H » #93,606,395,000
B 7T(2011 : 4,192,272,0008 ) 2 A
REBEMIRITHERE B RITEFEUIE
BEmEE

R2012F12 A31 B - BERHRITERK
K RT#E R 3R € 49 4,866,012,000 7 7T
(2011 : 4,977,783,0008 7T ) AAREE
B WTNATERERAHEMEE K&
B BEBRIT T RRBRITESS - 4
167,494,000/% 7t(2011 : 17,747,000
BIT) AETTEE © 492,553,571,000 78
7t(2011 : 3,553,178,000/87C) BIAAR
BEE ETRARETIIFHEEEE

B IR -
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30. Properties Held for Sales

31.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, a subsidiary
of the Company entered into a purchase agreement
with an independent third party and Dongguan Langgin
Garden Development Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Langgqin”), a
property developer in Guangdong district. Pursuant to the
purchase agreement, the Group acquired the properties
held for sales at the consideration of RMB180,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HKD221,989,000) from the
independent third party, in which those properties are
located in Dongguan Langgin of Dongguan.

30.

HRTEME

HZE2012F12A31HIEFE » KA A
MEBAREBYE = REREMEE
REARRTREELEMBERRAG(E
SREDITURE DR - REXER
& - ANSEB AR{E AR 180,000,000
7T (FH & 7 49221,989,000 7 7T ) B 8 3L
FZFRBREEEWE  ZEWMEY
MR ETZRERE o

HK$’000
F#iT
Properties held for sales which will be BR1I2EARNERZHEEFEEWE
realised within twelve months 221,989
Properties Under Development for Sales 31. FRERRDPYE
HK$’000
FEIT
At cost £ DN
At the acquisition date UK B HA 82,814
Exchange adjustments ME W A 3,642
Additions NE 99,411
At 31 December 2011 R2011 412 A31H 185,867
Additions NE. 2,227
Exchange adjustments IE 5 A (34)
At 31 December 2012 R20129 12 A31 H 188,060

The Group is developing half of the Land into properties
for sale. The details of the Land are set out in note 18.
All the properties under development for sales are not
expected to be realised within twelve months after the
end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of
properties under development for sales is situated on
land in the PRC under medium term leases.

AEERZIMZ —FERKABFED
oL FIBHNME 18 FABR
ERRTVEFEHRHTIEEZH/YIRR
12EARNER - FEZRTYERZEKE
BRI H B Z T30 AR B LR -
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32. Trade Creditors and Bills Payable

33.

The aged analysis of trade creditors is as follows

presented based on invoice date:

e

32. EMESHBRRREMRE

FERE BRI ZERERD
FIanR

REZAM2

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
0 to 30 days 0E 30K 440,047 337,726
31 to 60 days 31 £ 60K 91,719 67
61 to 90 days 61 £ 90K 192,408 —
91 to 180 days 91 £180K 165,730 318,283
Over 180 days i@ 180K 193 118
890,097 656,194

The aged analysis of bills payables ENZEIREH SO

is as follows:

0 to 30 days 0ZE 30K 325,047 175,451
31 to 60 days 31 £60K 521,320 194,221
61 to 90 days 61 £ 90K 279,238 48,422
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 1,242,740 —
2,368,345 418,094
3,258,442 1,074,288

Amount Due to a Jointly Controlled Entity

As at 31 December 2012, the amount due to a jointly
controlled entity was approximately HK$493,000. The
amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

33. EftEARFHRERE

N2012612 A31 H @ EH LR E
B2 SRIA 4 A 493,00078 JT © 7KIB AR

B RARERER

o
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34. Other Creditors and Accrued Charges

35.

As at 31 December 2012, the other creditor included
a call option of RMB16,143,000 (equivalent to
HK$19,909,000) (2011: HK$19,412,000) granted to &
INTHREESERRAR (“&RE"), an independent third
party, for allowing %5 to acquire 1,500 square meters
of the properties located on the Land to be completed
by the Group. This call option is exercisable upon the
completion of construction. The detail of call option is

included in note 40.

Borrowings

34. HttEMIRRRERA

R20124F12 831 H - H 4 & 1 BR &
AEBETBIE=FENTREES
ERARIRBENDZREHEARK
16,143,000 7t (48 % 7 19,909,000 #
7£) (2011 : 19,412,000 7T ) * U A
B W BB 5% 30 76 B AR B SEAK
21,500 F oK o R BRI A A
ERTEKBITE - REBHEZFIBHR
BIEE40 ©

35. f&®

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank trust receipts loans IRITEEWIEE K 1,519,815 2,352,726
Bank trust receipts loans (pledged  $RiT{EEUWIERE R
with RMB bank deposits) (AARBRITERER) 3,588,551 4,011,321
Other bank loans HniR1TE X 984,940 863,680
6,093,306 7,227,727
Analysed as: DA
Secured e 3,848,545 4,150,878
Unsecured E i 2,244,761 3,076,849
6,093,306 7,227,727
Carrying amount repayable: IREEZAER AT EFEERES
Within one year —FR 5,906,795 6,782,885
More than one year, but not BE—FETZRME
exceeding two years 158,041 273,515
More than two years, but not BEMFETZRAF
exceeding five years 28,470 171,327
6,093,306 7,227,727
Less: Amounts due within one B BIRRE A ER
year shown under current —FRE#2 FIE
liabilities (5,906,795) (6,782,885)

186,511 444,842
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35. Borrowings (Continued) 35. {B&:(E)

Bank trust receipts loans include approximately
HK$3,230,474,000 (2011: HK$4,451,339,000) fixed-rate
borrowings which are due within one year. They carry
average interest at 4.28% (2011: 2.77%) per annum. The
remaining bank loans are variable-rate borrowings which
carry interest at 1-month LIBOR + 1% and HIBOR +
2.25% (2011: 1-month LIBOR + 0.4% and HIBOR + 2%)
per annum ranging from 1.2% to 6% (2011: 0.59% to
6%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2012, other bank loans of the
Group comprised of an amount of approximately
HK$692,871,000 (2011: HK$545,220,000) drawn
under term loan facilities which carry variable interest
ranged from 2.08% to 7.2% (2011: 1.3% to 3.76%) per
annum of which approximately HK$31,007,000 (2011:
HK$93,266,000) is secured by the bank deposits of
the Group and guaranteed by the Company and its
subsidiary. The remaining bank loans of approximately
HK$292,069,000 (2011: 318,460,000) are guaranteed
by the Company and its subsidiaries which carry fixed
interest ranged from 3.25% to 6.98% (2011: 2.40% to
7.87%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2012, included in the other bank
loans, approximately HK$114,621,000 bank loans which
are related to bills receivable with full recourse to the
bank. The details of those discounted bills receivable
are disclosed in note 27. During the year, the Group
arranged bills receivable with recourse in aggregated
amount of approximately HK$1,234,766,000 (2011:
HK$660,688,000) to banks as short term financing which
constituted non-cash transaction.

#R 1715 FE MR 18 K R 49 3,230,474,000
# 75 (2011 : 4,451,339,00078 7T ) & F
BEF  N—FARIE  FHENERE
4.28% (2011 : 2.77%) » #4 N iR 1T &
REZEER  FFEAE—EARBIR
TRIZERE+ 1% EEBRITEEFRE
+ 2.25% (2011 : — {8 A fa L 17 A
2R B+ 04%NBBRTRAERE
+2%) " NTF1.2% E6%(2011 : 0.59%

£6%) °

R2012F12A831H AE B 2 E s
BITERBE—SREEFTHNE208%
2£72% (2011 : 1.3% £3.76%) 2Z %
FAERGFEZEHEREERRY
692,871,000 7T(2011 : 545,220,000
BIT) ZFIA o ZAEFRTF 0 4931,007,000
7 (2011 : 93,266,000 7T ) LA 7K
EEBRITERIEERA TEARA R
EWBARER - HBHBITERLY
292,069,000# 7t(2011 : 318,460,000
BIL)VEARB REWBARER - B2F
FZ N F3.25% & 6.98% (2011 : 2.40%
B7.87%) 2 EEFEETE ©

R2012F12A31H - HiETERE
FE#1114,621,0008 T 2 SRITERCHE K
RITHEEZHERECERERE) - A
Bz SRR B EIR 2 FFaB M s 27
BTN AEBERHNBEEZEHERE
2 W E I G £ 491,234,766,000 7% T
(2011 : 660,688,000/ 7T ) F R 17 ° 1E
AEMRE  BRIEHEERS -
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35. Borrowings (Continued) 35. {B&:(E)
The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in REBZEFAFEAEEERIEE
currencies which are not the functional currencies of the Ko BEEERE  #YIAT

relevant group entities are set out below:

RMB usD

AR R

HK$’000 HK$’000

TAET TAT

As at 31 December 2012 R2012F 12 A31H 366,641 1,266,270
As at 31 December 2011 R2011412 A31H 35,703 1,562,638

36. Share Capital 36. I’R&E

HK$'000
166 FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each ESREEO.1 BTz TRk
(2011: HK$0.1 each) (2011 : ®RO0.1ET)
Authorised share capital: EERA
At 1 January 2011, 31 December R20114%F1 A1 8 20114
2011 and 2012 K 201212 A 31 H 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid share capital: 2217 REERRAN -
At 31 December 2011 and 2012 2011 F K 2012 4
12 A31H 1,305,853,374 130,586
Note: No issue of shares were noted in both 2011 and 2012. Kzt 1R 2011 & K 2012 F R EZEI TS ©
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37.

Share-Based Payment Transactions
Equity-settled share option scheme:

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Special
General Meeting of the Company held on 18 June
2003, the Company adopted an option scheme (“Option
Scheme”).

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to participants including directors,
employees, suppliers and customers etc. Under the
Option Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company,
may at their discretion grant options to participants to
subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance with
the terms of the Option Scheme. The subscription price
shall be a price determined by the directors, but shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of offer for grant of options, which must be
a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
the offer for grant of options; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share. The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue. Based on the 1,305,853,374 shares
(2011: 1,305,853,374 shares) in issue as at 31 December
2012 and 32,582,284 options (2011: 32,582,284
options) outstanding under the Option Scheme, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Option Scheme
and any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed
130,585,337 shares (2011: 130,585,337 shares).

37.

LI B ERZIHES
B MRt -

RIEARQFN2003F6 A 18 BT
BREFNASERBZ EBRZR
UNGIE SRl ites w4
1) -

BRETEZENARNES B - #
EEkEFEE2EEREFEIKE R -
BIEBRESE  ARFEZSAHGE
028 AR T A R IRE IR T 2 AR
BARRNRIRM 2 EBIRE - REEERE
EETE - ENMFER()RER THERE
ZBWEAERSH)  BROHEBIE
HsREBXRFTRZMME: ()B2EREY
RYBREZBIMAEZSE  BHOE
GRS ARERARZ FHKRNIE
Kt EE(ARSE /LE) - RIE
BE R ot B I K 5 [ {A) L b B AR A 5t
BRI 2 BRI A T T
2R BRE AETEBBEETR
B Z210% ° 1% 2012412 A31H 2
B # 17 % {7 1,305,853,374 f& (2011 :
1,305,853,374 % ) I & IR & T i)
RIT1E 2 32,582,284 17 & A # (2011 :
32,582,284 FE R #E ) 5T & - BB &
BE i s & A E A % H 2 2 3
B EETERA FREITZRGBE -
A H 115 #838130,585,337 A% (2011 :
130,585,337 %) °
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37. Share-Based Payment Transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme: (Continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options might be granted to a participant, when
aggregated with shares issued and issuable (including
exercised and outstanding options and the options
cancelled) under any option granted to the same
participant under the Option Scheme or any other share
option scheme within any 12 month period, must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue from time to time.

There was no requirement for a grantee to hold the
option for a certain period before exercising the option
save as determined by the board of directors of the
Company and provided in the offer of grant of option.

The exercise period should be any period fixed by the
board of directors of the Company upon grant of the
option but in any event the option period should not go
beyond 10 years from the date of offer for grant.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must be
made within 28 days from the date of grant with a non-
refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee to the
Company.

37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE B HmRA T

For the year ended 31 December 2012
B E2012F 12 A 31 HI-FZ

LI B BRZIHES (&)
HaREMEED - (2)

BRI AR AT B SR A (] L P AL
FEERT2EEZEMBERE(RED
TEERITEZEREREFH B
LR CBBITRA TRITZRNE
B&fEtEE  REM12EAREE2
HERR BREMS R 2 RSB H
BETGEBTREHETRNZ1% -

BRARBEZTGRERNIELR THER
EZEFEPHREN  WEREAKAR
RITEBREME HABRE RS
] o

TEMAR/ARAEZTERNRLBR
R ETE 2 MR EREMER
T BEREAEAEBERELR T
H#EET10F1% -

AR AR - BARR LB
FEEF 28 RAAA R AR N AR EFRIA
1.008 7T °
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37. Share-Based Payment Transactions (Continued)

Option Scheme

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s
share options granted under the Option Scheme held by
employees (including directors) and movements in such
holdings during the two years ended 31 December 2012

and 2011:

Both 2012 and 2011

Option type

RRERA

Date of grant

Vesting period

37. LEMBERZIHRZR(#Z)
FR Bt

TREENREZE2012F %2011 E 12 A
SITHIIMEFERE(BEES)FAELR
NRREBRETIRE ZBRERE
AR E BN EEFE

2012 R 2011 F

Number of share
options outstanding
at 1 January 2011,
31 December 2011
and

31 December 2012
R®2011E1A18 »
2011128318k
2012128 31H®R
RITEZREENE

Exercisable period Exercise price

2006A 15 May 2006 16 May 2006 to 17 June 2006 to 0.625 14,910,537
16 June 2006 31 December 2015
200657 15H 2006 F5A16E % 2006 F6 A17HZE
20066 A 16 A 201512 A31H
2006B 16 June 2006 - 17 June 2006 to 0.625 17,671,747
31 December 2015
20066 A 16 H = 20066 A17HE
2015512 A31H
32,682,284
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37. Share-Based Payment Transactions (Continued) 37. UERAERIXHZSH(Z)
Option Scheme (Continued) MEEERT B (&)
Both 2012 and 2011 (Continued) 20125 R 20115 (&)
Details of the share options held by the directors ERMEBBEERFEZ2EREFBN
included in the above table are as follows: T

Outstanding at

1 January 2011,

31 December 2011 and
31 December 2012

®2011E1A18 -
2011128318 R
20125 12 B 31 B k1T

1 January 2011 to 31 December 2012 201141 A1 HZE2012F 12 A31 H 22,641,926
There was no share option granted for the years ended HE20124F K2011412 A31 8 Ik F
31 December 2012 and 2011. JE 3 AR R R R -
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38. Deferred Taxation

The following are the major deferred liabilities (assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during
the year and prior reporting year:

38. EIERIA

e

FARBEZHRFE  AKEE®ERZ
EXELERAE(EE) RERZESHIT ¢

Accelerated Other
tax intangible
depreciation Tax losses assets
mERFRE REER HttELEE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T FET FET FET
At 1 January 2011 R2011E1A1H 17,183 (1,610) 3,193 18,766
(Credit) debit to profit/loss iNGAE=E
for the year (AR X 1,092 (100) (994) @)
Exchange adjustments [ 5 R 882 (71) 105 916
At 31 December 2011 M2011F12 A31H 19,157 (1,781) 2,304 19,680
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—fEKT B A A
(note 41) (Hizt41) 40,233 - 93,983 134,216
(Credit) debit to profit/loss REREBE
for the year (ABR) < BR (3,609) 476 (6,756) (9,889)
Exchange adjustments BEE 5, 3 (77) 1 426 350
At 31 December 2012 R2012%12 A31H 55,704 (1,304) 89,957 144,357

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

for financial reporting purposes: DT

2012 2011

AT RIEMBE2RAE 2 ELHRBEH

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBE E 1,304 1,781
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFIBEE (145,661) (21,461)
(144,357) (19,680)

171



172

NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1882 REBHER Q5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IN=R R LR e

For the year ended 31 December 2012
B E2012F 12 A 31 HI-FZ

38. Deferred Taxation (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
estimated unused tax losses of approximately
HK$358,857,000 (2011: HK$431,478,000) available for
offset against future profits. Deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$5,216,000
(2011: HK$7,124,000). No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to remaining balances of
approximately HK$353,641,000 (2011: HK$424,354,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$32,602,000
(2011: HK$10,322,000) will be expired before year 2015
(2011: year 2014). Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$88,988,000 (2011: HK$39,304,000) in respect of
accelerated accounting depreciation. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned
by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards.
Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$418,248,000
(31 December 2011: HK$259,997,000) as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

38.

BIERIR (&)

RE2MEAR - ANE B F AT LK 8 R 2R
e Al 2 R B) A B 1B /& 1 40 /& 358,857,000
7 J0(2011 : 431,478,000/ 7T )° B
B #15,216,0007% JT(2011 : 7,124,000
BIL)ERELEHBEE - AR AR
2% F SR B LA TR R - &R 4E B A
T 4 # #353,641,000% 75(2011 :
424,534,000 7T ) ERIEETIE & B ©
4932,602,00078 7t (2011 : 10,322,000
BIC) 2 ATER T IBE 1B & R 2015F
(2011 = 2014 4F ) i HAJ - £ fth /&5 8 Rl
A ERR HA AR EE o

RERPEK - ERMNESHITES » K
@A 0] HF E b =504 88,988,000 75
7£(2011 : 39,304,000 7T ) B A K
AR AR AR E R UK B E
IR 7 BRI A Z AT RE IR A - B
ERZ SR IR b E SRR 18

BIEFRRMEHE - B20084F1 A1H
#B - FR BB A B BT R ER 20 A i = R
2R BESMIENT - AEEIWERE
ARBENB AR Z R AT 2 B
Z=%58418,248,000/% 7L (2011 F 12 A 31
B : 259,997,000/ 70 ) RER & B 53R 3%
WNEHRIEEHRIBERE L ARASE
ARG B R 2R 2 BT 0 T B R
EREARET G Al B SR B D o
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39.

Payable to Non-Controlling Shareholder of a
Subsidiary

Pursuant to an agreement dated 1 July 2007 (the
“Agreement”) entered between a wholly owned
subsidiary, Qingxin NewOcean Transportation Company
Limited (“Qingxin NewOcean”) and the non-controlling
shareholder of BINTIZZEMRABR AR (“2E") (“NCS”),
NCS granted a call option (“Call Options”) to Qingxin
NewOcean to acquire 10% equity interest from NCS at
a consideration of approximately RMB 4,500,000 for the
period from 1 July 2007 to 30 June 2009. In addition,
Qingxin NewOcean has granted a put option to NCS to
sell the 10% equity interest to Qingxin NewOcean at a
consideration of approximately HK$5,550,000 (equivalent
to RMB 4,500,000 translated at year end exchange
rate) from the period from 1 July 2009 to 31 July 2009
(“Put Option”). Qingxin NewOcean exercised the Call
Option on 30 June 2009 and proposed to settle the
consideration by the other receivables due from NCS.
NCS did not agree the settlement arrangement and
requested for cash settlement of RMB4,500,000. The
case was referred to the court, a final judgment of the
court in the PRC was issued on 17 January 2011. Based
on the court judgment, Qingxin Newocean has to settle
the consideration of RMB4,500,000 by cash and pay a
compensation of approximately RMB1,670,000 to NCS.
Up to the date of this report the required settlement has
not been made by Qingxin NewOcean. The consideration
payable to NCS was recorded as current liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2012 and 2011. In addition, the provision
of compensation was included in other creditors and
accrued charges as at 31 December 2012. As at the
date of this report, the transaction is not yet completed.

39.

FE £ — SR B B 2 B) FF 2 i R 3R

BEEFGNEEGERAR(EH
SZaEDEENMEEMRRERA A
([E2ZE ) 2 IEFE dI R 3 ([ JEFE M AR 3R 1)
R2007F7A18 %& 5 2 0 &
&) FEEFIRRE BB HR
EHIRE(RES®E]) - °ATR2007F7
A1HB £2009F 6 A30H 8 A%
A R ¥& 4,500,000 7t X {E [A] FE 4% Hll f% 3R
WEE10% ki - BE - BHEFHER
FE 0 Il IS BRI SR OA #E 0 B R 2009
7H18 £2009F7A318 H /- N
#95,550,00078 JL (LA F K [E KB E 18
=N AR 4,500,000 7T ) 778 31 5% #
B E10% R E(TRIERE]) - B &
18 2 R 2009 4F 6 A 30 H 171 52 B 58
¥ WER A EYEE SRR 2 E e
WHRIBZARE - JEEHIRFEIL TR
EYNTH TERUREIHFTAR
#4,500,0007C ° IE R B ERIERT ©
BlAPBE 201141 A17 B & &R ¥
oo RIBEBTHIR - BTG FE AR
% X A K% 4,500,000 7t X (B 3 [7] 3F
7 AR R S S 49 A R % 1,670,000 7 2
BEE -HEAREASH BHZETE
8 AR SZ AT 2 SKGRIA o FEAT FEIEBIRR R
KR ER20124F K2011F12 A31H 2
REVBRAREARBABGERE - 1t
SN - BEEREE TR AR 2012F 12 A 31
A BEMmENERRREGTER - RAR
SHE RS EAKRTERK °
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40. Acquisition of Leasehold Land Through 40. FEBWAMBATIEEESE i

Purchase of Subsidiary

On 15 June 2011, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase contract with two independent vendors, #5
and FKILEBAFRE AR, to acquire 100% equity interest
of IKBMMEBESERAT ("ZEK/E") at an aggregate
consideration of approximately RMB80,225,000
(equivalent to HK$96,468,000) and grant a call option to
the vendors. Details of the call option are set out in the
note below. The acquisition was completed on 30 June
2011 and ZK/&RK/E has not yet commenced business at
the date of acquisition. The acquisition was accounted for
as acquisition of the leasehold land and the associated

R2011E6 15 H » A& B H il £ 15
VSEFRBEKILEBEER A AE L
BEAR WBREMKEESER
AAI((H®REBRE ) 2 2BER " BR
B4 A AR ¥80,2250007(H & R
96,468,000/ 7T ) K M & /7 & H R HA
W o RBHRE 2 FBHAN THE - Ik
BEBER2011E6 A30B 5T © MR I
BEHH HKERESHNAMARER - Wi
ABRAWERE i RIKERE 2 HE
=N

liabilities of k&S .

Net assets
acquired at
the date of
acquisition
WG Az
174 s EERHE
HK$’000
FEL
Net assets acquired IS EEFE

The Land % 165,628
Other payables H A fE S 58 (49,748)
Total consideration BB 115,880

Satisfied by ATE) 7 A 2 A+t
Cash consideration paid (Note a) ENBREeREHFEa) 96,468
Call option (Note b) REEERE (M5 D) 19,412
Total consideration BB 115,880
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40. Acquisition of Leasehold Land Through
Purchase of Subsidiary (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Group paid cash consideration of approximately
HK$96,468,000 to the renders as at 31 December
2011. The Group will develop half of the Land to
construct a property for owner-occupied purpose and
half for properties for sale, in which half consideration of
approximately HK$48,234,000 was recorded as acquisition
of leasehold land through purchase of subsidiary
and, the remaining consideration of approximately of
HK$48,234,000 was recorded as increase in properties
under development for sales respectively in consolidated
statement of cash flows.

On 15 June 2011, the Group entered into a supplemental
agreement with x5 to grant the call option to 5 to
acquire 1,500 square meters of the properties located on
the Land to be completed by the Group at a maximum
price of RMB15,000 per square meter. The call option is
exercisable upon the completion of the construction. The
call option was measured at fair value on initial recognition.
The fair value of the call option is determined by, Norton
Appraisals Limited, an independent valuation company,
and the amount of approximately HK$19,412,000 (2011:
HK$19,412,000) as at initial recognition date is included in
other creditors and accrued charges in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012.
The model adopted for the measurement of the call option
was Black-Scholes model. The key input for the Black-
Scholes model are: market value of RMB37,500,000 for
the 1,500 square meters of the completed properties,
volatility of 3.47% and risk free rate of 3.49% per annum.
Based on the contractual terms, the call option requires
physical delivery of the underlying assets (properties
located on the Land) only and is not readily convertible to
cash. The Directors consider the call option is not within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” and accordingly, the call option is
subsequently measured at cost.

40. EBWMAMBLFIMHER L1t

(%)

Mt

(@)

R2011E12A318 A& E 2 @A
B 5 X € K (E 496,468,000 7
T AREBEBZ Lz —FEREIN
BE—EEETERAYWE —F4
BRIEAFTEME Bz —*RK
{8 4948,234,0007 Tt k&2 THREH
48,234,000 8 LR BN EBHERE
R AEAEENB AR mIkER
ELi URESABEFEMEL
oo e

R2011 66 A15H » AEEEKRSHT
ST B AR AR B IR R
RS EEEF A ARKAR 15000
T UK BB 7 P 5% - 3 3 45 R A 5 B SR A
21,500 5 K% - REHETR
BRTEKEITE - REHERI SR
REZATEANE - REHEZATF
ERBYGEARETHREIEE
R A EFE mR2012412 A 31
B ¥R EHZ419,412,000%
Jt(2011 : 19,412,000/ 7T ) Z KB
FTAEMEMNEREETEANAN - R
BHERY P ERFRAFENE -
ATEREREMERAZE BERFE
Re BEHEAZEEHAKE S :
1,500 F F RKEKMEZTEARE
37,500,000 7T * K 1@ 3.47% & & & b
FE3.49% ° RFEE K IEFK - RIEH
BERATERIFHEBEE(NZ L
WEZME) BETERELRARS -
EEREREHETTBRE B SR
HERF R BE T H : RKRTE]
ZEEAN - Bt REHEEBRK
ANEtE -
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41.

Acquisition of a Subsidiary

In January 2012, upon satisfactory the predetermined
conditions as set out in note 42(a), the Group exercised
the Call Option to acquire 95% equity interest inEFTaE
J2from an independent third party ¥k ;& m AF @M 75 A IR
ANal(“BFE@BA ). The acquisition was completed on
22 January 2012 (“Acquisition Date”). This acquisition
has been accounted for using the acquisition method of
accounting. The initial exercise price of the call option of
RMB580,000,000 (equivalent to HK$712,884,000) was
adjusted by the outstanding amount due to shareholder
and the shortfall in the agreed carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB310,000,000 (equivalent to HK$381,009,000)
and RMB11,937,000 (equivalent to HK$14,672,000)
respectively. After taken into account of those
adjustments, the total exercise price for the acquisition
was approximately RMB258,063,000 (equivalent to
HK$317,203,000) and the settlement of amount due to a
former shareholder was approximately RMB310,000,000
(equivalent to HK$381,009,000). The primary reason for
the acquisition of Bt¥TAE)Ris to expand a new business
segment of retail operation business of LPG gas
station in Guangdong district. The amount of goodwill
arising as a result of the acquisition was approximately
HK$202,509,000.

41.

Wz R B 2 7

R20124F1 8+ FFHIsE42(a) FrEk 2 5t
RIEHERE  AEBE—BIE=FH
ST BMIEAR AR ([EEMRE])
TERBEE B ARG
R - LB EE B KR 20124F 1
A22B([WEER])ZEK - WEEEE
KRAEEAR - REHE 2T
(8 & A B ¥ 580,000,000 7t (18 & R
712,884,000/ 7T) - BB BIKER 2
RIERE BBERBEZEAETR
ZF#E 5 R4 A AR 310,000,000
7T (FZ7381,009,000 7T ) & A R #
11,937,000 7L (48 & 14,672,000 %
TL) > EEBNZERE  WBEZBITE
B4 A& A R # 258,063,000 7T (# & K
317,203,000/ 7T) * REMNBERSE
KIEL) B AR 310,000,000 7T (FHER
381,009,000 7T ) » WiEH TR < &=
ERRAEHETRIELRTSEEREZRER
B2 RIEAMA UL - AU EE
ZEE %) /202,509,000 7T ©
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41. Acquisition of a Subsidiary (Continued) KigMEAT(Z)
Total consideration #RE
HK$’000
FET
Call Option (Note a) RIBHARE (Kt a) 36,909
Fair value of previously held 5% equity interest PRBEEEEH 5% KiDER 2 A FE
(Note b) (Htezb) 27,409
Exercise price for acquisition of 95% equity W 95% M fn et 2 1112 B
interest (Note c) (Mfetce) 317,203
381,521

Notes:

() EE3@METS issued a Call Option to a wholly-owned subsidiary,
FIBEEFREARAR ("ABFKE") to acquire 95%
of the registered capital of Hf ¥7 62 JR on 23 December
2010, which is amounted to RMB37,061,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$45,524,000 as at Acquisition Date
(81 December 2011: HK$45,715,000)). The details of Call
Option are disclosed in note 42B. The fair value of the
Call Option on the date of exercise was RMB30,030,317
(equivalent to approximately HK$36,909,000). The change
in fair value of approximately HK$8,615,000 was charged to
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2012.

(b) 5% registered capital of Bt 1 &£ JR was acquired at
a consideration of RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,685,000 as at Acquisition Date
(831 December 2011: HK$3,701,000)) by a wholly
owned subsidiary, ¥ 8gEIR(FE) BR8], from E/M
FREEM B AEAR AT on 23 December 2010. The amount
has been classified as available for sale investment
as at 31 December 2011. The amount is treated as
if it was disposed of and reacquired at fair value of
RMB22,303,000 (equivalent to HK$27,409,000) on
the Acquisition Date. The gain on deemed disposal of
approximately HK$23,724,000 was credited to profit or
loss.

(c) A deposit of RMB57,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$70,015,000 as at Acquisition Date (31 December
2011: HK$69,967,000)) was prepaid for the acquisition of
Bt#rae/Ron 21 December 2011. The details of deposits
are disclosed in note 24(b) and note 42C.

Hat

R2010512 523 B - BF 38 M4 75 1A A
SE—RE2ENMBARINEE B FK
BAERARI(TEEFIREDELHRE
HARE - AR AR FTREIR 95% 2 iE it &
K RIEH A AR 37,061,000 7T (4
Z R U EE B #45,524,00078 7t (2011
#£12 A31 8 : 45,715,000 # L)) °
REHEZFBRN F42BH = -
RITEBREHREZAFEAARE
30,080,317 7t (18 % 7 #36,909,000
L) o 478,615,000 7T 2 A F1EEK
FEBEHE2012F12 A1 HILFE
ZEEME -

R2010F12 8238 28 A =
MiEARFEER(FE)HFRA A
MEMKRERIER 2R UKREA
R # 3,000,000 C(#8 &5 R W 8 B 4
3,685,000/ Jt(2011412A318 :
3,701,000 7T ) ) B A B #T R IR 5% 2
FEMME AR o ZFRIBER2011F 12 A 31
BESEARHEEERE - ZBEHRE
LA EE B 2 R FE AR 22,303,000
TT(48 & 727,409,000 TT ) #& 18
ERHEREHTRBEFAEE - 4
23,724,000 B T2 R ALHEMBE
ST ABEF o

R2011E12 A21 8 » A U BE B ¥ 6t
JRE AN —2 AR 57,000,000 7T (48
Z R U E 470,015,000 7T(2011
12 A31H : 69,967,000 L)) 2
B o Be 2 BRI 24(0) X3
42CHHER -
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41. Acquisition of a Subsidiary (Continued) 41. KWBMEBLATE(£)
Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of RIEBAREEERAR
acquisition
HK$’000
FEL
Net assets acquired: IS EEFE :
Non-current assets B EE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - Heas KR 269,164
Other intangible assets B &E 375,932
645,096
Current assets THEEE
Inventories FE 2,771
Trade debtors and bills receivable B E 5 IR R ERM R 172,546
Other debtors, deposits and prepayment HEMEUERE « e RFaN I8 11,426
- Bank balances and cash RITEHREIE S 104,902
291,645
Current liabilities MEEE
Trade creditors and bills payable ENE SRR R ENEZE (99,620)
Other creditors and accrued charges Hb SRR ERTE A (16,516)
Borrowings — repayable within one year BR — R—FAEE (126,368)
Amount due to former shareholder (Note) FES T —BIRRER (A7) (381,009)
(6283,513)
Non-current liabilities FETEI B &
Deferred tax liabilities EERIAE E (134,216)
Net assets at the date of acquisition RKEHEEFE 179,012
Note: The amount due to former shareholder was fully settled et - B F—RIRE 2 RIEE R EK

immediately after the completion of the acquisition. B BEHE -
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41.

Acquisition of a Subsidiary (Continued)

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition (Continued)

The receivables acquired (which principally comprised
trade debtors, bills receivable, other debtors and
deposits) with a fair value of HK$178,451,000 at the
date of acquisition had gross contractual amounts of
HK$178,451,000. The best estimate at acquisition
date of the contractual cash flows not expected to be
collected amount to nil.

The acquisition-related costs amounting to
HK$1,200,000 incurred in the year ended 31 December
2010 were recognised directly as an administrative
expense in that year. There is no acquisition-related
costs being incurred during the year ended 31 December
2012.

41.

WrRBPR B AR (&)

REBAREEERARGE)

RKERAMB ZRERIKER(EZAEK
BZERR  BUREE  EMERERTIKE
)7 4178,451,000% T2 A EZ
WAL EH) A 178,451,000 7T ° I
WEEH @ FERITRERE ZRARERE
ZEREMETAE -

RELE2010F 12 A1 B IEFEARESE
#91,200,000 7% 7T 2 W BE A A A A - 74
ZFEENCEFERRAITHEZ L - RE
E2012F12 A1 HILFER » WET
A BB SN < W RE AR B AR o

Goodwill arising on acquisition WREEZRE
HK$’000
FET
Total consideration BRAE 381,521
Less: Recognised amount of identifiable net & - BRI L EFEMSCHERTEE
assets acquired (100%) (100%) (179,012)
Goodwill arising on acquisition U B 7 A g 202,509

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition was

expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Rt BWEAES 2 EE KT A Tk
FiIA e
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41.

Acquisition of a Subsidiary (Continued)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

The goodwill arose on acquisition of & ¥ 8¢ J& was
attributable to the anticipated profitability of distribution
of LPG to Guangdong district market through the LPG
network owned by EFTEJR and the anticipated future
operating synergies that the Group can leverage on
the existing LPG sourcing team, revenue growth and
future market development from the combination. The
LPG network owned by Ef#T8E)R are mainly located in
favorable locations next to public transportation stations.
In addition, B¢ZTE)R is one of the major LPG suppliers
of public transportations in Guangdong district. In the
opinion of directors, this acquisition would improve their
market share in southern region of the PRC. In order to
ensure the quality and continuous supply of LPG to the
business of H#TaE)R, the Group has set up an offshore
subsidiary with experienced LPG purchasing team
to act as the purchasing arm for H#rée/R to source
international LPG. This offshore subsidiary and B #TagR
is counted as a separate cash generating unit (“E§FTeEIR
CGU”) and the goodwill of HK$202,509,000 is allocated
to this CGU.

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

Consideration paid in cash
Settlement of the amount due to former
shareholder
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances
acquired

o it

NIREZHRE
(IR B —RTARER 2 5R0R

41.

R EB AT (&)
BiHEaRERBZRE

Wt Re R EE 2 BB FERNE
BERe REA R{E AWK RERE D
SHRIERZBART - k& fH &G
REBZ AR A SAEE RS AE
ERA 2 RIEREEEK - WAERR
RRMIHRE - B RERS 2RIER
MR EEMRARRBT AT 2 HHAL
BB BFEERAERA AR
E—EAFxZEZRERERER - EFR
A ZBEREEREENTREREE Z2m
BRE R - BERABEREREED
MEBEEHEZRIER  ANEBEKYT
—FﬁWﬁﬁm%ﬁZ@%zgﬁﬁrﬁ%@
A ERB SR ZBE P R HEE
BRIER o B =M B A R REE AL IR
WEEA—EDRI 2R EEEM([H
#eeRCGU]) + 49202,509,00078 7T 2
HENE DR HIIRSEAREN -

EWBEE R & S@AH

HK$’000
FET

247,188

381,009

SR MFRBREIEE HE

(104,902)

523,295
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42. Available for Sale Investment and Entrusted
Loan

Pursuant to the Agreements referred to in note 41
above, certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into the
following transactions with two independent third parties
(the “Transactions”):

A.

A wholly owned subsidiary, ¥ /& g8 (& ) ,
agreed with BEJMZREMRBBR A A to acquire 5%
registered capital of HXT8EJR at a consideration
of RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,701,000 as at 31 December 2011). BtHaE
JR is a privately owned entity incorporated in the
PRC that operates 17 LPG stations in Guangzhou.
The acquisition was completed on 23 December
2010 and the 5% registered capital of E¥#T8E)R was
classified as an available for sale investment in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2011.

On 21 October 2010, a wholly owned subsidiary,
H = £ & agreed to provide an entrusted loan
of RMB 580,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$681,607,000 as at 31 December 2011) to FEi@
Y75 (the “Entrusted Loan”). EL@ATSowned 95%
of the registered capital of Bt#T4E)JR. Based on the
terms set out in the Agreement, the Entrusted Loan
was repayable on 23 December 2011 with total
interest of HK$ 120,000,000 payable at maturity.
The Entrusted Loan was pledged by 95% registered
capital of Et¥ge/R. On the same date, FE@BMTE
also issued a call option to B &/ F#& & which allows
AEF%E to acquire the 95% registered capital
of B¢# gL (the “Call Option”). The exercise period
of the Call Option was from 23 December 2011 to
22 January 2012. The details of the Call Option are
set out in note 41(a). There were several conditions
set out in the Agreement to be fulfilled by BE @715
before A& 1% #& would consider to exercise the
Call Option, including i) a special audit on B #aE
J&, i) BRI TS to pay up all the interests in respect
of the Entrusted Loan, iii) all required operating
licenses of RE#BAMTHES were still effective (together
referred to as the “conditions”) etc. During 2012, it
BN had fulfilled all of the above conditions and
H = F & had exercised the option in January
2012.

42, TTHHERBREAEMR

RIE X4 PRI 2 ek - ANEE
ZETHIE AR R R B E =TT

P —

UTRS([ZERS]) !

ZEMNBRRFERER(PEH)HE
EMZRERZERARRE LA
KB A K # 3,000,000 7t (72011
F12 A31 8 8% R 43,701,000
B ) WEEFEREMELRZ
5% o Bt 37 B IR T B R B 5 i A
VZIANBEEERE  REMNKEE
17 @B RIMA I - WESER
2010 12 A 23 H £ 5K » 1 B 37
BERFEM B AR 2 5% R 2011412
RA31 B2 iFZEaHBRARD IS
A HERE o ZIBREEK A
BriRE (A )FIER o

R2010FE10821 0 2 & Mt B
NAIABARERERTEMN
REETE R AR 580,000,000
T(R2011E 128318 # & B
#9681,607,000/% 7t )([£ & &
X)) o BE B M5k A B 3 o R sk 17
BARZI5% - WRIBZHZEFTHZ
&R REERAER2011E12 A
23HEE  REPRERMZFL
48%E /5 120,000,000 7T - EEE
X DA B T RE R 52 it 8 AN 2 95% 1
- B - ERESAEE ST
KRERLRBEE AR FRE
A U BE Bt 37 BB R sk i & N 2 95%
([REEHE]) - REBHEZI1TE
B 2011412 A23 B £ 2012
F1A228 k- REHEZFB
HRWiE41@) c =S EE S
B E TR RS EARE BT B M
TEEER 2B TIEMSE - B15) B
FRORETIERIEA ¢ i) RIS
SREZEERZE2EBHE i) B
BTS2 — YT 48 & 7 Al 2B 1AT)
RBEBRE(HEBEMEME]) - B 2012
£ HBMBOBTRAE L ig
" mBAEEFREER2012F 1
RAT{ERE s -

S
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42. Available for Sale Investment and Entrusted
Loan (Continued)

B.

(Continued)

On initial recognition, the Entrusted Loan had been
split into two components according to Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” at their respective
fair values. A loan receivable of approximately
HK$638,053,000 with effective interest rate
at 25.5% per annum and a Call Option of
approximately HK$43,554,000. The loan receivable
was subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method and the call option
subsequently measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses. As at 31 December 2011, the
Entrusted Loan and Call Option of approximately
HK$644,423,000 and HK$45,715,000 respectively
were classified as non-current asset because the
Directors considered it is probable that the Group
would exercise the Call Option to acquire & #7
g2 J8 and the funds generated from repayments
of Entrusted Loan would be used to settle the
consideration and other required cash outflow
related to the acquisition.

On 20 December 2011, A = /&% & and BL @M
7% entered into a supplemental agreement (the
“Supplemental Agreement”) for several revised
procedures in relation to the completion of the
potential acquisition. Pursuant to the Supplemental
Agreement, FE:@f5 7 agreed to repay the whole
amount of Entrusted Loan and the revised
deposit to be paid by A& F#&E to @AM was
RMB57,000,000. In the opinion of the directors,
the terms set out in Supplemental Agreement has
no significant impact to the valuation of the Call
Option as at 31 December 2011. On 21 December
2011, AE/FKRE paid H@EMT the deposit of
RMB57,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$69,967,000) and the amount was included in
other assets and classified as non-current assets as
at 31 December 2011.

42, MTHHERBREAER(EZ)

(%)

NS HERE  ZXEXBRESR
Bt ZR FIRE BT A
BREGTEIDHNNANERFAE
#9638,053,000/8 7T 2 & W &
K HEBRERE255% k4
43,554,000 7T 2 RIBEIE D &
MER D o FEUE FRBE 1 LA B B &
FEZ BSE AT E - SRR ERERETR
LA BX, 2N 8k A 1] 2 58 Bl ek (B &5 18 5
=° R2011%F12H31 8 & Al
47644,423,000 B TTZ RZELEH K
#45,715,000/8 7T 2 REEHAE D
HAIERDEE  REAESRA
ZNER B P] RE 1T {50 SR B HAAE DA UK R B
ek BEEZXERAELEZE
SRARZHKEZ BRARERE
MATHEIRES R °

MR2011F12 8208 B & F &
BRI BMIST R EEREZ %
ISR PRl M7 e ([ 71
&) REwTHR  EBMERE
EEEZAERZEPRE  BE
FIRE N TRBME 2 &IER]IR
% A N R ¥ 57,000,000 - =ER
5 TR PTG £ R R
HEGMEBKRERNZE - KR 2011
F12H21H BEFRERER
M 7% 2 R e A R % 57,000,000
(F % R #69,967,0007 7T ) * 1M
R2011F12831H ZHHEE
FAAEMEEYHDEAIERDE
E o
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42. Available for Sale Investment and Entrusted
Loan (Continued)

On 22 January 2012, B = ¥ & & exercised the Call
Option to acquire the 95% equity interest of B %7 &t
J&. Both the Call Option and the deposits had been
considered as part of consideration transferred in the
acquisition transaction. The details of acquisition of
subsidiary are disclosed in note 41.

The Group has another available for sales investment as
at 31 December 2012 which is set out in note 43.

43. Available for Sale Investment and Convertible
Bonds

42, TTHHERBREAER(E)

R2012F1 220 BB A REDTT
FRIEAEE AR EEIR 95% 2 sk it %
Ko RIWER ST - RIBEEREZS M
HHEZRIEASHNRE - WEHBA
AIFEBE R FE 41 #5¢ -

ANEBENR2012F 12 A1 BB S — A
HEELE (HRMHIFE4L3) ©

43. TTHHERBRUTRERRS

HK$’000
FET
Available for sale investment comprise: AEHERERTE
— Equity securities listed in Korea — REE LT RAES(HiFa)
(Note a) 80,809
Designated as fair value through profit or BB B RN KEEEAFENE
loss:
— Convertible bonds of listed entity, — EmEBABRRES  BATE
at fair value (Note b) (HtiEb) 79,971
Notes: Hiat -

(a) Pursuant to the Investment Agreement, there is an one-
year lock up period for the Nitgen Shares. In the opinion
of directors of the Company, the Group would actively
seek for potential buyer in the public liquidity market
upon the end of the lock-up period for the Nitgen shares
and is expected to be realised within one year, thus the
amount is classified as current asset. The fair value of
Nitgen Shares is based on quoted market bid price of
shares of Nitgen traded on KOSDAQ, and amounted to
approximately HK$80,809,000 in total as at 31 December
2012.

(a) WBIFEEEWZE  Nitgenl& D F — F
ZEH - ARBEERE A5ET
M Nitgen kB ZEHEREBBEER
ARAREMSEERMEEEER I
TEHER—FRNER WEBEH
A m e & E - Nitgenlk o 2 A F
& J % AKOSDAQ E & Z Nitgen %
MZzmBEARBTE - R20124F
12 A31 H & # 4 480,809,000 7T
ATE o
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43 Available for Sale Investment and Convertible
Bonds (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Nitgen CB is unlisted, non-interest bearing and issued
for a maturity term of 36 months from 11 December
2012 to 11 December 2015. The holder has the right to
convert the Nitgen CB into shares in Nitgen at any time
on or after the first anniversary the date of issue of the
convertible bonds up to the close of business on the
date one business day prior to the maturity date of the
Nitgen CB. In the opinion of directors of the Company, the
Nitgen CB is expected to be realised within one year as
the Group would convert the Nitgen CB into shares once
the Group has the right to convert on 11 December 2013
and directors of the Company have intention to dispose
the converted share immediately after the conversion.
The Nitgen CB is non-interest bearing and the conversion
price for conversion share is US$0.585793 (equivalent
to approximately HK$4.55) per conversion share.
The fair value of Nitgen CB is determined by, Norton
Appraisals Limited, an independent valuation company
and amount to approximately USD10,279,000 (equivalent
to HK$79,971,000 as at 31 December 2012. The fair
value of liability component was calculated based on the
present value of the contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the required vyield, which
was determined with reference to the credit rating of the
convertible bonds issuer and remaining time to maturity.
The effective interest rate of the debt component of the
Convertible Bonds is 15.56%.

The Trinomial Option Pricing Model is used for the
valuation of conversion option of the Nitgen CB. The key
inputs into the model for the conversion option of the
Nitgen CB as at 31 December 2012 are as follow:

Valuation Date As at 31 December 2012

Spot Price: US$0.61
Conversion Price: US$0.585793
Time to maturity: 2.95 years
Risk-free Rate: 3.16%
Volatility: 39.38%

The fair value of each of the liability components and
conversion option of the Nitgen CB at the end of the
reporting period are determined by valuation performed
by Norton Appraisals, firm of independent valuer not
connected with the Group.

43. THHERBRATBERES (Z)

Hiet - (&)

(b)

Nitgen A] 2 B8 & 5 & 3E £ K& R &f
B BTz EHBFHA2012F12 A
11H £2015F12HA11H - A& Hi36
18 B - #5 A& # K Nitgen A] 2 % &
#8171 H — B F & Rk 2 & = Nitgen
AR ESDRE N — AL £ E R
CREERBARIETHNERM BHE
Nitgen A # f% & % & 12 & Nitgen iR
7 NRAEERA ' Nitgen 7] 2 &
EHBHBER—FRETR  AEER
2013 F 12 A1 HEEBRKE A&
[ 7] B8 B 45 Nitgen AT 2 % (& 58 i &
Bfh MARREZABENEREER
BIF% HE B EIRAEHD © Nitgen 7] 2
BREEFL TS RN ZBRE
BRI 0.585793 ETT(HZE
R#4.55 ) o 20124412 A 31
A BB GEEAFYHBEEIEE
(R A B FT & F 2 Nitgen Al #2 J& (B 55 2
AN FEH# A10,279,000 % 7T (R
79,971,000/ 7T) © &M 2 AFE
TIBBEANEEZARRESRERNA
EWEERITIE 2R EFE - MARKR
SRENKELEANBRRESET AR
AR EEEHAZHTREAET -
ARBEEHFBEESHD2EBRIERA
15.56% ©

(& Nitgen AT 2 R (E AR IR 2 (B E
R A=A B EEELN - K2012
%12 A31H ° 5t Nitgen Al # & & A
g B2 EBHASIELT ¢

f5EBAH 1 20125E12A31H
REE : 0.61%7T

HRR(E - 0.585793 %7
FIHA4FER - 2.95%

EEBFIER 0 3.16%

B 39.38%

2 MEIKR Z Nitgen FJ 2 i & 5 2 (&
BRERESEZAFEHERE
37 B 7 B S (E AR TT E BB
AEBERDRETZAEMETE °
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43.

44.

Available for Sale Investment and Convertible
Bonds (Continued)

The subscription of Nitgen shares is classified as
available for sale investment and Nitgen CB is classified
as designated as at fair value through profit or loss. The
changes in fair values of convertible bonds for Nitgen CB
is approximately loss of HK$701,000 as at year ended
31 December 2012 in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Disposal of a Subsidiary

As part of the transactions under the Disposal Agreement
referred to in note 12, SHK, disposal of the entire
issued share capital of Success Pillar to NEE, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Nitgen at a total consideration
of HK$156,767,000. Before the Disposal under the
Disposal Agreement, the shareholding of Ego Time is
51% indirectly held by the Company through Success
Pillar, and the remaining 49% equity interest is owned
by another wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
The Disposal was completed on 24 December 2012, the
effective interest in Ego Time was reduced from 82.15%
to 49%. The net assets of Success Pillar at the date of
disposal were as follows:

43.

44,

HHERERTRERES(Z)

RENitgen 8D 1D B A HEE%
& - M Nitgen ] & EFH Th 5 B AIE
BB iBm A sk RIE AT EANE - HE
2012F 12 A1 HILFE @ e Z2EK
.2 Nitgen AT IR EH 2 A BEE
%) A E518 701,0008 7T ©

H &= — R E LT

ERREK E12FiE EREETZ
R 52— 8% SHK[ANEE (Nitgen Z
2 &M 7)) HE Success Pillarz &
BT - BR{ER156,767,000
B RIBRBELEHHETHESEHE
Bl - Ego TimeZ IR#E B A A 8 & B
Success Pillarfd # & 551% *© & ~
49% RIERARNE B —2EWEB QR %
Ao HEEEDN2012F 12 A24 %
X © Ego Time 2 Bz 82.15% &
DE49% - AHEHH] © Success Pillar
ZEEFENOT

185



NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1/SsEREBHER A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012

#E 2012412 531 AILFE
44. Disposal of a Subsidiary (Continued) 4. HE—RMBEBLAT(E)
Net assets of Success Pillar disposed of FrtH &2 Success Pillar ;3 & &
HK$’000
FET
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment Yzt - 2R s 283
Loan receivable R E K 1,257
1,540
Current assets B EE
Inventories T8 3,172
Trade debtors and bills receivable FEUE 5 BR 3R K B U ZE 134,561
Other debtors, deposits and prepayment H R - e RTBN A 7,164
Bank balances and cash RITEHEE S 10,681
155,578
Current liabilities BB &

186 Other creditors and accrued charges H b e BRI BT B A (1,251)
Amounts due to group companies ANESEINGIE S (137,084)
Tax liabilities MIBEE (2,700)

(141,035)
16,083

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— B a2 W e
Consideration received and receivable on the H&=EE 7 BN EKRE 156,767

Disposal

Fair value of the retained 49% equity interest PR 2 49% I #E 2 A& 231,722
Non-controlling interests FEFE R = 3,871
Less: Net assets disposed of R BHEFEE (16,083)
376,277

Net cash inflow arising on disposed of HEFTELZ FRE A
Cash consideration received BUWEERE 156,767
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of & : D HERTEHR KIS (10,681)

146,086
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44.

45.

46.

Disposal of a Subsidiary (Continued)
Net assets of Success Pillar disposed of (Continued)

The Group has lost controls and instead has significant
influence over Ego Time. The net asset value held by the
Group after the Disposal is HK$5,022,000 and the fair
value of Group’s interest in Ego Time was approximately
HK$231,722,000 as at date of lost control, determined
based on fair value report issued by Norton Appraisals
Limited, an independent valuation company, has been
regarded as cost of interests in associates, and the
difference of approximately HK$226,700,000 has been
credited to consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. The details of the interest in associates are set
out in note 22.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2012 and 2011.

Lease Commitments

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

44.

45.

46.

HE—HRBEAT (&)
Frii € Success PillarBEE (&)

NEBE kFEEgo Time 2 H# - 1
AHETEEAZEH REES
HE AEBEFARCEETFEAR
5,022,000/ 7T + 0 4S5 B 58 2k < 4%
#E B Ego Time 2z 2 A ERI4
/231,722,000 7 7T (IRBEB LB A F]
THEBRFEBRARMEL 2 A ¥ E
WMEETE)  BEHESEIERERRERK
AN+ T Z= FE#9226,700,000%8 7T 2 5F A
MAETEHNER BMEATERZFRE
A EE22 o

BARRAR

MR20124F k2011412 A31H @ K&
B EERKHAREE o

HEKiE
FREESEEA
REZBHR - AKERBETAHHELE

BOAMN z ARRIEEH - 28
=R (1

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FEL

Within one year —F R 20,250 7,242
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE-ZRFRN(BIEEHERFE) 39,674 7,132
Over five years BEAE 22,888 2,175
82,812 16,549

Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals
payable by the Group for LPG gas stations. As at 31
December 2012, rentals are fixed for an average of 6
years (2011: 4 years).

KEHERBDNEBEAEERRRL
RRIEERAZEE - B20129F 12 A 31

B fHeETEHFHE6F(2011: 4

F)e
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47.

BE20124F 12 A 31 HILFE
Other Commitments 47. HMhkiz
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Capital expenditure contracted WRLATRIE B ;B ET4Y
for but not provided in the BRAGE VB HRE
consolidated financial statements BiEcEART
in respect of:
Purchase of gas plant and BB RE RS
machinery 90,086 85,956
Retirement Benefits Plans 48. BRFEFIsHE

48.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. Starting from 1
June 2012, the Group and each employee employed in
Hong Kong are required to make a contribution of 5% on
the employees’ monthly relevant income with a maximum
monthly contribution of HK$1,250 per person (prior to 1
June 2012: HK$1,000 per person).

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute fixed percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
specified contributions.

AEBMABERBREZ2BEEAKEER
Bt AEeTE - ZFtEcEEHR
REBEESHAITE  AETEANUNES
izl e 5201266 A1 HE - A%
ErREBREAZEMNEEAT AKE
BEHEBABAZSRIELHER - §AHK
ERABEA1,2508 (201266 A1 H
Al : & A 1,000/87T) °

AEERTENBARZEES MNTE
BB R ZRREFEE - ZFHERQ
BRERFERBHFAEATERARLZ
[E E LE I 5K o AN SR B R IR AR A5t &
ZHE—BEREREEHRR



Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties during the year:
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B E2012F 12 A 31 HI-FZ

49. Related Party Transactions

REALEXS

BREAMBRER MBS FEESE
Sh + ARG R ERRRIE A T 4T T 5
TR

2012 2011

Sales to a jointly controlled entity
Rental expenses paid and payable

to Shum Ho, Neo (Note) 2 A&z

A — KA HI BB HE
S RN T s (M AE)

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TATT
1,176 2,947
960 848

Note: Shum Ho, Neo is the employee of the group and also the
son of Shum Siu Hung and Tong Shiu Ming. Shum Siu
Hung is the executive director of the Company.

On 16 May 2011, Sound Management Services Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into
an office tenancy agreement with Shum Ho, Neo for
the use of office premises provided by Shum Ho, Neo
located on 20th Floor, Times Tower, 393 Jaffe Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong at HK$80,000 per calendar month
for a period of one year commencing on 16 May 2011.
On 16 May 2012, the agreement was renewed for one
year to 15 May 2013 at HK$80,000 per calendar month
with the same terms.

Save as disclosed above and note 33, there were no
other significant transactions with related parties during
the year or significant balances with them at the end of
the year. The transactions disclosed in this note and note
33 are connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but are de minimis
transactions exempted from reporting, announcement,
and shareholders approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.

g AEBZEEZETZ VHERE NS
ZF ZLERARBZHITES -

R2011FE5H168 » "R alz & &Mt
BARFEERREERARESER]
S AEFL - A 80,0007 LA A
BIENI B S #2538 393 SR AT
RO ZHMAEYE - FHEIH2011
F5H16B B H —F o RN20124F5
A16 8 ZANRBARGERESR —F=
201345 A15H * AT 80,000 T °

/7

BRA £ R P RE33PTIMEEE SN - FAHE
AEALTIBEMEARS » RERK
HEFNEEANGER - RIELMMRRE
14AE - NERMEIBMHE LIRS
BARAZEERS  HERE TR
RERRETHRR  AEMERIER
EZHERERRKFZRS -
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HF 20124 12 531 ALLEE
49. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 49. MEAXZH(E)
Compensation of key management personnel TEEREARZERM
The remuneration of directors and other members of key FAEENEMETEEIEAS ZFHBHW
management during the year was as follows: T~
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
Short-term benefits 52 HAtE A 8,834 7,048
Contribution to retirement benefits R EFEH 2] 5%
schemes 89 84
8,923 7,132
The remuneration of directors and key executives is BENETETHABZHFMNHFMEE
determined by the remuneration committee having regard ERBEARBRTISBEETE °

to the performance of individuals and market trends.
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BE20124512 31 A1 E/E

50. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 50. FLFRZEEMELAFFERE
Company
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 KA A R20124F % 2011412 H31 8
December 2012 and 2011 are as follows: ZEBEWBARFBOT ¢

Proportion of

Place of Issued and fully nominal value of
incorporation/ paid up share issued/registered
registration/ Class of share capital/ registered capital held by the
Name of subsidiary operation held capital Company Principal activities
HReI &R/ BRTRBE FLRAMBERT/
HEAFRR BEHE PRI %R 2 94301t BEMEFEELH FERH
2012 2011
BFY (Note d) PRC * Registered RMB5,000,000 100 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
BER(Hita) M capital AR%5,000,00070 HERDHERILR
&R
NewOcean Resources Singapore Ordinary SGD100 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
(Singapore) Pte Ltd. g Lak 100 FT ML HERADHERIER
Shenzhen Baorun Liquefield PRC* Registered RMB15,000,000 100 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
Petroleum Gas Company i - capital AR 15,000,000 HERAHRILR
Limited (Note d) AR
ATEEREERAR
(Hista)
SHK BVI Ordinary USD1 100 100  Investment holding
EBRASE LBk 1% RERR
Sound Agents Limited (“Sound ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
Agents”) (note f) BE LRk 28T and electronic products
MEREABRARA HERDHERIEAREFEM
(TEREA L Hitr)
Sound Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Trading of electronic
MEBEEERAF BE LER 2B products
EEETER
Sound Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100  Providing management
Services Limited (“Sound BE LER 2B services to group
Management”) (note f) companies
MEEERBERAA MEER RREE RS
(TEER ) (W2
Sound Technologies Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Trading of electronic
MENRERRT B TRk 28T products
EEETER
.‘. -
Eay s
G P T |
o Sl o el o R L ! Z
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50. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 50. FLFZEEMBLAFFEZ)
Company (Continued)

Proportion of

Place of Issued and fully nominal value of
incorporation/ paid up share issued/registered
registration/ Class of share capital/ registered  capital held by the
Name of subsidiary operation held capital Company / Principal activities
M iR, ERTREBRE  FLAMRKERT/
HELARER BEME Fris B iR %R B/ HERES BEREFEELH FEXH
2012 2011
Qingxin Yong Long Gas and PRC * Registered RMB4,280,000 72 72 Sale and distribution of LPG
Chemical Company Limited ~ #E] * capital AR 4,280,0007 HERDHRIER
(*Yong Long’) (Note a) HMER
BMEAEIMARAA
Tkl (Hita)
RS RERERAH PRC* Registered HK$6,600,000 100 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
(Note d) (Wi d) PE capital 6,600,000 BERMERILR
HER
EnGETARRERLH PRC Registered HK$1,400,000 100 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
(Note d) (Fizd) PE capital 1,400,000/ HERDHERILR
192 AR
BNERREER AR PRC * Registered HK$1,600,000 100 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
(Note d) (W72 d) ME capital 1,600,000367 HERABERIR
HMER
BNTEMR AR A PRC * Registered RMB500,000 100 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
(TREMF&]) (Note b &) B " capital AR¥500,0007C HERDERILR
(Wb ka) HER
ARENEREARAR PRC * Registered RMB500,000 100 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
([EH3E]) (Note ¢ & d HE - capital AR¥500,0007 HERDHRILR
(Hitcka) AR
MBRCNE)BERAR PRC Registered USD41,946,771 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
HE e capital 41,946,171 57T HERAHERILR
HER
BE Mo o) (i d) PRC * Registered RMB7,755,100 90 81 Sale and distribution of LPG
R - capital AR¥7,755,1007C HERAHRILR
HMER
BMmHEREARAR PRC * Registered RMB2,000,000 90 81 Sale and distribution of LPG
(Note d) (F1itd) - capital AR 2,000,000 HERADHERILR
EEEEERRARAA PRC * Registered RMB990,000 100 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
(Note d) (Hfitd) e - capital ARH990,0007 HERAHERILR
HER
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50. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 50. FLFZEEMBLAFFEZ)
Company (Continued)

Proportion of

Place of Issued and fully nominal value of
incorporation/ paid up share issued/registered
registration/ Class of share capital/ registered  capital held by the
Name of subsidiary operation held capital Company Principal activities
M iR, ERTREBRE  FLAMRKERT/
HELARER BEME Fris B iR %R B/ HERES BEREFEELH FEXH
2012 2011
Baifuyang Macao Commercial Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
Offshore Limited i TRR 100,000 and electronic products
BEA R R R F RS R AR 100,0002 7T HERDHERIRRETEm
NewOcean (Shenzhen) Energy ~ BVI Ordinary US$1 100 100  Investment Holding
Investment Limited EBRNE LER 1£7T RERR
ECRID EEREBR AR
AR (RE) (Note d) PRC* Registered US$67,670,000 100 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
(Hita) e’ capital 67,670,000 %7 HERDHRILR
HER
NewOcean Development BVI Ordinary US$50,000 100 100 Investment holding 193
Limited EERENS LER 50,000% 7T RERR
MBERERAR
Best Resources Base Limited BVI Ordinary US$50,000 100 90  Investment holding
(Note d) RERRE Lk 50,000%7T RERR
EEERAR(fza)
Rise Smart Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 90 Providing management
(Note d) BE LEk 10,0007%87C services to group
BRELBRARA(H#d) companies
MEEARREERRE
BEARE PRC * Registered US$41,946,771 100 100 Investment holding, sale and
e capital 41,946,771 %0 distribution of LPG
AR REER - HERD HRILR
Fam=BREERNq" PRC * Registered RMB5,015,700 100 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
(Note d) (#fita) - capital AR%5,015,7007 HERDHRILR
HMER
BARMERAR Note o) Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100 90 Sale and distribution of LPG
(Hiia) AP LRk 3,300,000 HERMBRILR
3,300,000 2T
T aMote o) (litd) PRC * Registered RMB33,000,000 100 90  Property development
HE capital AR¥33,000,0007T NEER
HMER
.‘. -
= .\ -
s bl (TR R
. Tﬁ{ . 1 L A ! X / . 3‘
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50. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
Name of subsidiary operation
BRI &R/
HEAFER BEmE
NewOcean Energy (Hong Kong)  Hong Kong
Company Limited (Note g) &
MasR(BE)ERAR
(Hizte)
Bk PRC*
-
Fruto International Macao Macao
Commercial Offshore Limited &9
ELERRMREEEREER
194 A7
Ocean Union Development Hong Kong
Limited &k

REEEBRAA

Domestic — invested enterprises

i Wholly-owned foreign enterprises

e

M, 2 3 e -'__!' -

__1:‘.:- '-i."_ J -F._..'-
A

r %%

Issued and fully
paid up share
Class of share capital/ registered

held capital
ERfTRME
FrisBR iR %R B%/ERES
Ordinary HK$10,000
Fk 10,0007
Registered RMB85,500,000
capital AR 85,500,000 7T
AR
Ordinary Macao dollar
Lk 100,000
100,000 BT
Ordinary HK$1
LiER 18T

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued/registered

capital held by the

Company

EAARBERT/

EREFEELA

2012 2011
68 68
100 -
100 100
100 100
NERE
REIELHE

50. FRFZEEMBLTIFMS &)

Principal activities

ERRE

Investment holding

RERR

Sale and distribution of LPG
HERDHRILR

Sale and distribution of LPG
HERDHRIR

Investment holding

REER

— il = e
S T
- 1 NE
Ln  n Al
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50. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Pursuant to an agreement entered between BFY and
the non-controlling shareholder of Yong Long, (“PRC
Investor”), the operation of Yong Long was sub-contracted
to BFY with a sub-contracting period of 5 years since
March 2011. The PRC Investor was entitled to a fixed sum
of sub-contracting fee payable of RMB200,000 (2011:
RMB200,000) per year by BFY. BFY entitled to 100% of
the results of Yong Long during the subcontracting period.

M F & is indirectly held by the Company through the
declarations of trust executed by Z/&jt and 2|/ who
held the interest in &)1 #7)8 of 20% and 20% respectively.
The remaining interest in#&/1#1& is indirectly held by the
Company.

BE1E#H/E is indirectly held by the Company through the
declarations of trust executed by ZF4 and £\ who
held the interest in Z1&#1/8 of 20% and 20% respectively.

The remaining interest in Z+&#1& is indirectly held by the
Company.

In September 2012, the Group purchased the 10% the
equity interest in its subsidiary Best Resources Base
Limited, (“Best Resources”) from the non-controlling
shareholder . Best Resource and its subsidiaries become
wholly owned subsidiaries to the Company.

In September 2011, the Group disposed of 32% of its
equity interest in NewOcean Energy (Hong Kong) Company
Limited, reducing its controlling interest to 68%. The
proceeds on disposal was HK$19,497,000. A deposit of
HK$9,402,000 was received in 2010 and the remaining
amount of HK$10,095,000 was received in 2011.

Sound Agents and Sound Management are indirectly held
by the Company through the declarations of trust executed
by Shum Chun, Lawrence who held the interest in Sound
Agents and Sound Management of 50% respectively. The
remaining interest in Sound Agent is indirectly held by the
Company.

50. ARFZEEMBAFFSEZ)

HiaE -

RIZ A & MoK SR S BCR (T B
REE R 2% KEZEHE
SNFIERBEF - SNFIEBE 201143 A
ERHsFE - PEKREEERKRA
EXARNZBEENHEREFARE
200,0007t(2011 = A R 200,000
Jo) e MONHIHARE - A EFEA KR
100% 2 %45 °

BN G EBERFRTRENSERTL
ZEREEAEAARARMEREE - F
1R 7T B BN 15 A AR N 3 20% 4
@ BMFESR T ZREh AR EM
BHE -

BERIEERRS T4 RSN FERTL
ZEABAEARRRIRERE - £
FHRBFDRHEBBIE20%H#E
e BEFAEHR T ZEEA AR AN
BRA -

R2012F 9 A » ANEBE[AIERAR R IE
BEENBAREEZEGRAR(EE]
Z10%BE - S EREHBRARNKA
KRB ZEEWNBRT °

R2011FE9R  AEBEEFETER
(BB)ER QA 232%kiE @ <H
PRI R EIR = 68%  HE Z TSR
JA 7£19,497,0007 JT ° 9,402,000
T2 E B R20105F Y E » &R 58
10,095,000 & 7L E A 2011 FULER »

MEBREARFTEERAARAER
LR (DRFANEREARNEER
50% #E ) PR 3 2 (SR B A & M
B MBREBAZKRTEEHRANAA
RERA o
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50. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 50. ELAFZEEMBLATFHSEZ)
Company (Continued)
Except Sound Hong Kong Limited which is owned RITEBEBERARARARNFEERE
directly by the Company, the above principal subsidiaries Gh o bl = BB A R R AR F E
are owned indirectly by the Company. BHR o
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities BB A RIR G AR Sk R 1A f] B P A8E 4
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during ERIREERERES °
the year.
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company LRFNEERAETEFEREEEE
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected REEZARBINBART - EHERAT
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of LHEMMB AR ZERZBNITE °

other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
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BE20124512 31 A1 E/E
51. Derivative Financial Instruments 51. fTEMBIR
Derivatives financial
instruments
EMBIR
Assets Liabilities
HE =K
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ETT FET
2012 2012
Current mEh
Foreign currency forward SNESRERG %)
contracts 6,906 10,072
Cross currency interest rate R X E¥EF| RIS HE 4
swaps contracts - 13,334
Interest rate swaps contracts FEIFEE L - 8,012
6,906 31,418
2011 2011
Current ED
Foreign currency forward INECSRERS )
contracts 28,815 14,700
Cross currency interest rate R E¥EF|RIGHE 4
swaps contracts — 69,677
Interest rate swaps contracts FEIFEELD - 22,350
28,815 106,727
Non-current e B
Call Option RS R 45,715 —
= N | } -
N ﬂ-‘.;ﬂ ! [ i | ",_r.:
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51. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued) 51. STEMBIRE)
Major terms of the derivative financial instruments are PTEMB TR E ZEZBMAT

summarised as follows:

A. Foreign currency forward contracts — net A. HMEEHEH — EHBHE
settlement

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates

Z2BReH FHA Ex

2012

Buy USD264,564,899 8 January 2013 to RMB/USD6.21 to
(approximate to RMB1,671,803,724) 20 September 2013 RMB/USD6.48

B A 264,564,809 % T 20131 A8HZE 6.21 AR¥ "ETE
(#) NR#:1,671,803,7247T) 201349 A 20 A 6.48 AR¥ ETT

2011

Buy USD371,225,857 16 March 2012 to RMB/USD6.21 to
(approximate to RMB2,361,759,000) 20 September 2013 RMB/USD6.65

B A 371,225,857 % 7T 2012463 A 16 HZE 6.21 AR¥E EE

2% (H AR#2,361,759,000 7T) 201349 A 20 H 6.65 AR¥ FET
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51. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

B. Cross currency interest rate swaps contracts/
interest rate swaps contracts — net settlement

Notional amount

£ 34

2012

USD168,748,112
(approximate to
RMB1,075,766,305)

168,748,112 3% 7%
(H9 AR #1,075,766,805 7T)

2011

USD445,694,877
(approximate to
RMB3,008,576,000)

445,694,877 F T
(#) AR 3,008,576,000 7T)

C. Call Option

Period

R

10 January 2013 to
28 January 2015

20131 H10HE
201541 H28H

28 January 2012 to
28 January 2015

201241 A28H=Z
201541 A28 H

AE @S 7S issued a Call Option to B & ¥1% & which
allowed B&EFE to acquire the 95% registered
capital of Ef ¥ 82 JR. The exercise price of the
Call Option was RMB580,000,000 subjected to
adjustments and the exercise period of the Call
Option was from 23 December 2011 to 22 January
2012. The details of the Call Option are set out in
note 41. During 2012, BEEM TS had fulfilled all of
the above conditions and B & ¥ #& had exercised

the option in January 2012.

51. FTEMBEIRZ)

B. XRRABHRHAYEH FlHHEN
aN-REBH

Exchange rates/interest rates

B FIE

Floating rate ranging from one month
LIBOR to six month LIBOR + 3.5% per
annum to fixed rate ranging from 0.9%
to 3.68%

RMB/USD6.55 to RMB/USD6.82

FEHENENF—ERARBBITREREE
NE A mBERITRIZEFE +3.56% =
BEFFENF0.9% = 3.68%

68.55 A\R# ‘E 1% 6.82 ARH ETT

Floating rate ranging from one month
LIBOR to six month LIBOR + 3.5% per
annum to fixed rate ranging from 0.15%
to 3.68% per annum

RMB/USD6.55 to RMB/USD6.82

FEREFEMENF —EA RBIRITRE
HEENEARBRITRIE
HE+3.5% ZEEFMNENF0.15% &
3.68%

6.55 AR# ETE6.82 AR ETT

C. mRmmE

EEMEREEFRERLRE
HARE - 2B = IR E T Uk e B
RERFEM & AN 2 95% o R U8 HARE
ZAITEE A AR 580,000,000 7T
(AT FHAE) MABABHEZITE
B A 2011F 12 B 23 H £ 20124
1HA228 - REHEZFBHR
M3E41 o R20124F - EE@BMER
EREMFBGE mMESFR
BEER2012F 1 B{T{E R -
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M5 E

Results

iR

For the year ended 31 December

H#E12A31AILLEE

2011 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 13,462,296 10,116,643 8,477,715 6,483,119 6,158,614
Profit before taxation B A% A A 832,966 332,944 155,451 155,093 54,122
Taxation charge HEX (20,425) (29,915) (18,067) (42,642) (1,211)
Profit for the year FREF 812,541 303,029 137,384 112,451 52,911
Attributable to: FE1G
Equity holders of the NI £ TR UN
Company 810,934 306,159 136,647 112,451 52,911
Non-controlling interests FEiz bl = 1,607 (3,130) 737 — —
812,541 303,029 137,384 112,451 52,911
Earnings per share FREF
Basic (in HK dollars) ERCGET) 0.62 0.23 0.12 0.12 0.085
Diluted (in HK dollars) #Eo8T) 0.61 0.23 0.12 0.12 0.085
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERER

At 31 December

®12B831A

2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets mEE 12,353,147 10,622,135 5,799,599 4,226,442 2,700,263
Total liabilities maE (9,768,171)  (8,774,600) (4,321,008) (3,210,225)  (1,982,655)
2,584,976 1,847,535 1,478,591 1,016,217 717,608

Equity attributable to equity AARZEZFZEA

holders of the Company FEGHER 2,568,404 1,823,754 1,468,708 1,014,690 716,077
Non-controlling interests bl 16,572 23,781 9,883 1,527 1,531
2,584,976 1,847,535 1,478,591 1,016,217 717,608
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